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well as a growing number ofcustomers for whom wc tnnsport
gas that they purchase directly from suppliers.

DisbursirrgAgent
Common and prcfcrrcd stocks:
Niagara Mohawk Power Corp.
300 Eric Boulevard West
Syracuse, NY 13202

Bonds:
Marine Midland Bank, NA.
140 Broadway
New York, NY 10015

Shareholder Inquiries
Questions regarding shareholder accounts may bc dircctcd to the
company's Shareholder Services Department:

(315) 4284750 1400448-5450
(Syracuse) (elsewhcrc in the

continental U.S.)

Arlalyst Inquiries
Analyst inquiries should be directed to:
Leon T. Mazur, Director-Investor Relations, (315) 428-5876.

Stoeh Esrdrange Listings
Tieher SymboL NMK
Common stock and most preferred series arc listed and traded
on the Ncw York Stock Exchange.
Bonds arc traded on the Ncw York Stock Exchange.

Tlris rePorl tuas Produced by Niagara Mohawlr emPloyees.

Printed on reeycled paper

Transfer Agerlt and Registrars
Common and prcfcrrcd stocks:
The Bank ofNcw York
P.O. Box 11002
Church Street Station
New York, NY 10286
1400 524-4458

Bonds:
Marine Midland Bank,~
140 Broadway
New York, NY 10015

r



Highlights

operating revenues ....~.....

Income available for common stockholders

'earnings per common share

'" 'ividends per common share ...

Common shares outstanding (average) ........

1996

$ 3,990,653,000

$ 72,109,000~

$ 0.50":

$

144,350,000

1995

$ 3,917,338,000

$ 208,440,000

$ 1.44

$
' 1.12

144,329,000

%Change

(65.4)

(65.3)

f

Utilityplant (gross)...

Construction work in progress ....."...........

Gross additions to utilityplant.................~....
s I e

Public kilowatt-hour sales.

Total kilowatt-hour sales.' ...

Electric customers at end ofyear......~...........

Electric peak load (hilowatts) „........................

1 gas sales (dehathenns) ...........".............
l

ral gas transported (dehatherms) ............

Gas customers at end ofyear .... ~ ~..........

Maximum day gas deliveries (dehetherms) ....
f

v e

"Includes extraordinary item

$ 10,839,341,000

$ 279,992,000

$ 352,049,000

33,393,000,000

39,127,000,000

1,556,000

',021,000

84,881,000

'134,671,000'26,000

„

1,152,996

$ 10,649,301,000 1.8

$ 289,604,000 . (3.3)

$ - 345,804,000., 1.8

33,011,000,000 1,2

37,684,000,000 3.8

6,211,000
'

(3.1)

78,481,000 8.2

144,613,000 (6.9)

'18,0001.5

1,21,1,252 (4.8)

e

1,555,000 '.1

'he

19%
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Letter to
Our SharehoLders

Dear Shareholder:

The pace of change quickened, in 1996,
both at Niagara Mohawk and throughout the
utilityindustry. Barely a ayeek passed without
major developments in the regulatory,
legislative or'ompetitive arenas. Through it

all, we continued to focus on our primary goal: finding
a solution to the problem of mandated contracts with
Independent Power Producers (IPPs).

Although settlement remained elusive in 1996, our
efforts culminated in our March 10, 1997, announce-
ment of an agreement in principle to terminate or
restructure 44 IPP contracts held by 19 developers.

Removing the IPP Burden
As I have reported in the past, our payments to IPPs

—about $ 1 billion annually —have become a serious
and growing burden on our customers and sharehold-
ers. The clearest and most troubling indication of that
burden was the Board's painful but necessary decision
'to suspend the dividend on our common stock.

The IPP problem also threatened to block progress
on our PowerChoice proposal to create a competitive
electricity market and open new avenues for growth in
our business. That is why we initiated discussions with
the IPPs in late 1995, with assistance from the office of
New York Governor George Pataki and Public Service
Commission Chairman John O'Mara.

By August 1996, these discussions had advanced to
the point where we believed itwas appropriate to pro-
pose a specific transaction to resolve the IPP problem.
We offered to terminate 44 IPP contracts —represent-
ing 90 percent of our over-market payments to IPPs-
in exchange for a combination of cash and securities.
We immediately began negotiations that continued
until an agreement in principle divas'reached in March.

In exchange for terminating or restructuring their
contracts, the IPPs would receive $3.6 billion of cash
and debt securities, and 46 million shares of Niagara
Mohawk common stock. In addition, the company and
the IPPs would enter into new agreements that would

further compensate the IPPs and.hedge the prices for
specified amounts ofpower. The anticipated savings in
purchased power costs would allow us to pay off the
new debt over a seven-tonight year period and truly
put the IPP cost burden behind us.

Financial Results
The negative impact ofescalating IPP payments, and

the need to change accounting principles in anticipa-
tion of the onset of competition, weighed heavily on
our 1996 financial results. Results 'were further'amp-
ened by the continued sluggishness of the economy in
our service area and an increase in bad debt expense.
Earnings for 1996 were $72.1 million, or 50 cents per
share, compared to 1995 earnings of$208.4 million,or
$1.44 per share.

The achievement of an agreement in princ
terminate or restructure the largest IPP contracts
tions the company to move fo~vard in compliance with
the state Public Service Commission's plan,

discussed'ore

fully later, to restructure the electricity market-
place in the state. Our PowerChoice proposal, which is

very close to the PSC's own plan, would have our fossil
and hydro plants selling power at competitive rates in a
deregulated wholesale market.

Accordingly, earnings for the past year reflect the
decision to discontinue use of cost-based regulatory ac-

counting principles for those assets. That resulted in a
write-offof$103.6 millionofregulatory assets associated
with the fossil and hydro business, which is recorded as

an extraordinary loss after tax of $67.4 million, or
47 cents per share. An increase in bad debt expense also
negatively affected earnings by 43 cents per share.

r
For the year, our electricity sales rose 3.8 percent,

while electric revenues fell0.8 percent due to a decrease-'n

miscellaneous revenues. Our natural gas business
continues to grow steadily, with retail gas sales up 8.3
percent from last year. Total gas deliveries, including
gas'transported for customer-owned gas, rose 2.3
percent. Gas revenues were up 17.2 percent from
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e achi evement ofan agreementin principle

to terminate or restructure the largest

IPP contracts positions the company

in the state.

1996 HighLights
Although our attention and resources were focused

most intently on resolving the IPP problem, we achieved
noteworthy accomplishments during 1.996.

Unregulated-Business
Our,,unregulated businesses within Plum Street

Enterprises are pursuing a number of opportunities
both in the U.S. and overseas. In October, we named
J. Phillip Frazier president ofPlum Street Enterprises.
With his extensive experience in competitive industries,
Phil is a tremendous addition to our senior manage-
ment team.

In another step to'repare for competition, we
sold half of Canadian Niagara Popover —owned by our
Opinac subsidiary- to Fortis, Inc.'Fortis is a Can'adian
company with deep experience in that country'
electricity industry. The partnership with Fortis will
position Canadian Niagara Power to capitalize on the
transition to a competitive marketplace in Ontario.

I

r Performance
ur nuclear plants performed 'exceedingly well in

1996. Nine Mile Two posted a 3794ay run ofcontinu-
ous operation, the longest in the plant's history. For
the fourth consecutive year both Nine Mile One and
Two qualified for General Electric Company's capacity-
factor honor roll.

Both plants ended 'the year with an 87 percent
capacity factor, the highest ever for Nine MileTwo in a
refueling year, and the third-highest capacity factor in
Nine Mile One's 27-year history. The average capacity
factor for U;S. nuclear" plants is approximately 78 per-
cent. In addition', a comprehensive assessment of
performance released in July by the Nuclear Regula-
tory Commission praised the plants for the safety focus

l ofday-to-day operations.
We are in the process of forming a nuclear operat-

ing company with Rochester Gas k Electric. We are also
'talking to the New York Power Authority and Consoli-
dated Edison about joining us in a company encom-
passing all of New York's nuclear facilities. We believe
creating an organization with the singular focus ofsafely
and efficiently operating New York's nuclear plants

benefit our shareholders and customers.

l
Bank Credit Facility

In March 1996, the company closed on an
$804 million bank credit facilityfrom a consortium of
15 banks, providing us with both necessary working
capital for the present and financial flexibilityfor the
future. The. bank agreement allows the company to
borrow up to $ 125 million under a revolving line of
credit and up to an additional $255 million on a long-
term basis.

Natural Gas Plan Approved
to move forward in compliance anth, iu December, we reached agreement

on a three-year natural gas rate plan that
the State pahhe SerVice QOmmiSgivn>S plan will result iu overall savings >o customers

of about $ 10 million per year and give

o restructure the electrici i marPetPlace us an excellent oPPortunity to exPand
market share. The rate plan willshift more
costs to basic service charges while lower-
ing the cost per unit of gas used. As a
result, prices willmore closely reflect the
cost ofservice, and cross-class subsidies will

be reduced. This willlower rates to our largest custom-
ers, while modestly increasing the bills of smaller
residential heat customers and those who'"use gas for
cooking or water heating.

N I A G A R A M 0 H A W Ik P 0 W EL' C 0 R P 0 R A T I 0 N
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Fou have my commitment 0
that our overriding concern will

continue to be restoring the overall
Outlook

During the remainder of 1997 we will
concentrate on finalizing the IPP agree-
ment, obtaining needed approvals and
closing the transaction by year-end.
Although a final agreementwill not elimi-
nate all of our financial challenges, itwill
give us far greater control of our destiny.
And itwillclear the way for implementa-
tion ofPowerChoice.

To hear more about plans for the
future of Niagara Mohawk, I'would like to invite each
ofyou to attend our Annual Meeting. This year's meet-
ing willbe held on Tuesday, May 6, at 10:30 a.m., at the
OnCenter in Syracuse.

You have my commitment that our overriding
concern willcontinue to be restoring the overall value
ofyour investment. Lastyear, our employees perf
remarkably well under adverse conditions. In 1

will renew our commitment to work professionally,
ethically and tir'elessly to reward your faith in
Niagara Mohawk.

value ofyour investment...

In 1997, we willrenew our commitment

to reward yourfaith in Niagara Mohawk.

V

Customer Service
Consistent with our commitment to provide

excellent customer service, we have embarked upon a
comprehensive effort to upgrade the technology that
serves as the backbone ofour customer service system.
This far-reaching initiative will address virtually every
business process in energy delivery as we continue to
look for ways to do things more efficiently. We have
targeted the end of 1998 to have the new customer
service system up and

running.'owerChoice

We continued to refine our PowerChoiee proposal for
creating a competitive electricity market. In May, the
state Public Service Commission issued its "Competitive
Opportunities" order, which calls for establishment ofa
competitive electricity market in NewYorkby early 1998.
We have joined with other state utilities in challenging
the PSC's order because we believe certain provisions
would unfairly penalize our shareholders.

On balance, however, the Competitive Opportuni-
ties order reflects the approach to competition we
proposed in PowerChoice. Although man'y issues still
need to be resolved, it is clear that our vision of a com-
petitive utilitymarket is both workable and consistent
with the direction ofNew York regulation. We believe
that a competitive electricity market should provide
growth opportunities for Niagara Mohawk, which
would, in turn, provide benefits to shareholders.

WilliamE, Davis—
Chairman of the Board and
ChiefExecutive Officer
Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation

to work professionally, ethically and tirelessly
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Management s Discussion and Analysis ofFinancial Condition
and Results ofOperations

Certain statements included in this Annual Report
regarding expected capital expenditures, statements of
management's plans and objectives for the Company's
future operations and statements offuture economic
performance, including those contained in or implied by

'he

discussion in this section ("Management's Discussion
and Analysis ofFinancial Condition and Results ofOpera-
tions"), arc forward-looking statements as defined in
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Those
fonnird-looking statements include information on the
financial condition of the Company, the agreement-in-
principle to terminate or restructure selected IPP con-
tracts, recovery ofregulatory assets with a non-bypassable
charge, the Company's financing capacity to fund the ter-
mination or restructuring of the IPP contracts, as well
as expected future construction expenditures, debt repay-
ments to deleverage the Company and working capital
deficits, expected PSC approval ofcostwf service based
electric rates, including recovery ofcosts associated with
the expected termination or restructuring ofselected IPP
contracts, continued application ofSFAS No. 71 to the
electric transmission'and distribution, and nuclear open-
tions, recovery ofcosts of its generating assets under
PowerChoice, an expected decrease in future bad debt

. expcrise as compared to 1996 results, and the assumptions
described in the Annual Report underlying such fonvard-
looking statements. The Company's actual results and
developments may differ materially from the results dis-
cussed in or implied by such fonvard-looking statements,
due to a number of important factors. Those factors
include, but are not limited to, matters described in the
context ofsuch fonvard-looking statements, as well as such
other factors as set forth in thc "Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements" contained herein.

Events Affecting 19% and the Future

~ On March 10, 1997, announced a jointlydeveloped
agreement-in-principle to terminate or restructure IPP
power purchase contncts in exchange for
approximately $3.6 billion in cash and marketable debt
securities, and 46 millionshares ofcommon stock of the
Company, and enter into ncw agreements that would
further compensate thc IPPs and hedge prices for spe-
cificamounts ofpoiver.

~ Discontinued application ofSFAS No. 71 to fossil/
hydro operations, and wrote offfossil/hydro generation
'regulatory assets of$ 103.6 million (extraordinary loss of
47 cents per share).

~ 1996 earnings after the extnordinary item declined
65% to 50 cents per share.

~ Increase in bad debt expense of$96.4 million as com-
pared to 1995 (43 cents per share).

0~ Common dividends 'omitted.

Announced Agreementin-PrinciPle to
Terminate or Restructure A'PP Contracts

The drive to introduce competition by both federal and
state regulators, as well as the threat ofselfgeneration and
relocation by industrial customers, has intensified thc
Company's focus on costs that significantly influence the
price of its products. The Company proposed PowerCh
in October 1995 to achieve stable retail prices, customs.
choice and an open, competitive electric generation
market. However, the implementation ofPowerChoice
depends upon reducing the cost ofpower the Company
is required to purchase from IPPs.

On March 10, 1997, the Company and 19 developers of
'PP projects jointlyannounced an agreement-in-principle

to terminate or restructure 44 power purchase contracts.
These contracts represent more than 90% of the Com-
pany's above-market power costs under all existing IPP
contracts. Subject to regulatory approval, the agreement-
in-principle contemplates that electricity prices for all
customer classes would be reduced, with larger reductions
allocated to large commercial and industrial customers to
retain and attractjobs in upstate New York.

The agreement-in-principle contemplates that the Com-

pany would terminate or restructure the 44 power con-
tracts in exchange for approximately $3.6 billion in cash
and/or marketable debt securities, and 46 millionshares
of the Company's common stock, representing approxi-
mately 25% of the anticipated fullydiluted outstanding
common shares. The new debt willbe subordinate to exist-

ing firstmortgage bonds. The value of the common equity
component willvary depending on the market value of the
shares at, closing. In addition, the Company and several
IPPs would enter into new agreements that would further
compensate the IPPs and hedge prices for specific
amounts ofpower.

~ Securities ratings downgraded.

~ $804 millionsenior debt facilityestablished.

~ Request for 1996 rate increase rejected. 1997 rate
request temporarily stayed pending further proceedings.

% ~

~ FERC issued open access transmission order, which, with
'ertainexceptions, provides for fullrecovery ofstranded

wholesale costs, leaving itup to the states to decide
recovery ofretail stranded costs.

~ PSC issued order to restructure New York State electric
industry, calling for a competitive wholesale power mar-
ket in 1997 and introduction of retail access for all elec-
tric customers in 1998. Stranded cost recovery to be
determined on a utility-by-utilitybasis.

~ Reached a conditional multi-year gas rate settlement
with the PSC in December 1996.

N I A G A R A M 0 H A W K P
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The amount ofsubordinated debtexpected to be issued is
approximately $8.2 billion,with terms from two to seven
years. Itis the Company's objective to achieve at least a BB-
/Ba3 rating on the subordinated debt, although achieving

h a rating is not a condition ofthe agreement. Achieve-
itofsuch a rating is not assured and ifnot achieved

uld result in higher interest costs than presently estimated.
Although subject to final negotiation and execution, the

agreement-in-principle contemplates that the Company
willenter into price-hedging agreements or contracts with
certain IPPs that may be in the form offinancial contracts
for differences and physical bilateral agreements, options
contracts, indexed financial instruments, or a combina-
tion thereof. Contracts for coal and waste-fired projects
willhave a 17 year term with total annual energy of
approximately 850 GwHrs. Hydro contracts willrange in
length from 20 to 35 years with total annual energy of
approximately 900 GwHrs or less than 3% of total load.
Over the term of the new contracts, prices for hydro gen-
erated electricity would range between $85 to $ 130 per
Mwh, subject to final negotiation, while prices for coal and
waste would range between $28 and $45 per Mwh. For gas-
fired projects, the amount ofenergy under contract would
begin at 4,630 GwHrs and increase to 8,000 GwHrs in
twelve years. The price for a portion of the energy would
be fixed, and the remainder would be indexed to reflect
competitive market gas prices. Of the load under existing
contracts, approximately 5,000 GwHrs would no longer be
subject to a contract, with the Company meeting its
requirements through market purchases. These arrange-

ents willenable the Company to substantially reduce the
ofpurchased power in the future, while managing the
. risks ofpurchased power. Initiallya substantial

ortion of the cost reduction willbe offset by interes't on
subordinated debt issued to carry out the termination and
restructuring of the IPP contracts, and the'amortization of
the resulting regulatory asset.

The transaction is subject to several contingencies,
including negotiations with each IPP ofspecific terms of
the new agreements that may be executed; execution of
binding agreements including the master restructuring
agreement; approval of the Company's shareholders; PSC
approval of the agreement, including an acceptable long-
term price structure and a non-bypassable charge provid-
ing for recovery ofstrandable costs, including the
termination or restructuring costs of the IPP contracts;
other state and federal approvals and successful comple-
tion ofall financing transactions on reasonable terms; the
resolution ofall tax issues and obtaining required amend-
ments or waivers under existing credit agreements and
third-party contracts.

The Company willwork to achieve a fina'ncial closing of
the agreement-in-principle by year-end 1997.

'han@ngComPetitive Environment
The accelerating pace ofcompetition is driving dra-

matic changes throughout the utilityindustry. Regulators
oth the state and federal levels have issued orders to
icture the electric industry. (See "PSC Competitive

Opportunities Proceeding —Electric" and "FERC Rule-
making on Open Access and Stranded Cost Recovery" ).
The Company believes that the price ofelectricity may be
the most important element offuture success in the
restructured industry and has intensified its efforts to
reduce various costs that significantly influence the price
ofelectricity.

The Company is challenged by state-imposed burdens,
especially state-mandated contracts that have required the
Company to buy electricity from IPPs in amounts that
exceed customer needs and at an average price which is
more than bvice as high as the cost ofpower that could be
purchased in the wholesale market. In addition, the Com-
pany and other New York utilities bear an excessive tax
burden that is more than bvice the average for utilities
nationwide.

The Company has pursued a number ofactions to miti-
gate the impact of these factors on prices. These actions
have included renegotiating and buying out some IPP
contracts (including those discussed above) and canceling
others when contract terms were not being adhered to.
The Company has also sought regulatory relief from the
PSC, seeking curtailment rights, the ability to monitor IPP
compliance with federal legislation, and firmsecurity
rights for contracts with advance payment provisions. The
Company has been successful in obtaining the ability to
monitor compliance, but has not received approval to
implement curtailment or obtain firm security. (See-
Other Federal and State Regulatory Initiatives-"PSC Pro-
posal ofNew IPP and PPA Management Procedures" ).

The Company has also been actively seeking reductions
in its state and local tax obligations by working with utility,
customer and state representatives to explain the negative
impact that all utilitytaxes, including the GRT, are having
on prices and the economy. Atthe same time, the Com-
pany is contesting the high real estate taxes it is assessed by
the many taxing authorities in its service territory, particu-
larly those imposed upon its generating facilities.

Nevertheless, mandated IPP purchases and high taxes
have', in the past, combined to create upward pressure on
prices. Further price in'creases would make itmore diffi-
cult for the Company to retain its customers in the longer
term and an increasing number ofcustomers are pursuing
other supply options including self generation, alternate
supply so'urces, and municipalization. As a result, electric
margins have narrowed and sales have been flat, damaging
the Company's financial condition and putting further
pressure on the Company to seek even more rate increases
under traditional costwf service ratemaking.

Other actions taken by the Company during the past
four years to address the increasing competitive environ-
ment include sharply reducing internal costs. The Com-
pany has reduced the size of its work force by about 3,300
employees, or 28%, and has eliminated, consolidated or
modernized many ofits operations. The Company has also
sharply reduced capital spending. Electric construction
spending in future years is budgeted to be at or below the
level ofdepreciation expense, thereby resulting in little
or no growth in rate base with a corresponding impact
on earnings.
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These cost control efforts have produced significant
savings. However, the savings have been outpaced by
continuing escalation in the externally imposed costs
discussed above. Recognizing that major changes in the
electricity marketplace in New York State were needed, the
Company undertook an exhaustive analytical process with
the goal ofcreating a rational energy market that would
linksupply, demand and price, provide customers with
better and broader services, and provide greater opportu-
nities for building shareholder value. Tliatprocess
resulted in the filingof the Company's PowerChoice
proposal on October 6, 1995, which the Company subse-

quently amended to include the imp)ementation of the
agreement-in-principle (see "PowerChoice Proposal" ).

The Company believes the pursuit ofPowerChoice is the
best course ofaction to deal with emerging competition
and address the factors that, have been pushing up prices.
The Company believes that the state must play a role in
reducing costs as a way ofenhancing benefits to be derived
from implementation ofPowerChoice. The State's partici-
pation could include reducing or, eliminating the state,
GRT, which taxes revenue rather than income, timely pas-
sage ofa securitization bill that would permit lower

cost,'inancingofregulatory assets, including costs associated»
with the IPP agreement-in-principle, and/or reducing
mandated social programs. Addressing these issues willbe
diHicultand willalmost certainly require regulatory
and/or legislative action, the outcome, ofwhich is uncer-
tain. The PowerChoice proposal is not dependent on such
State participation.,

PoxoerChoi ce ProPosal

On Octobe'r 6, 1995, the Company filed its Pow'erChoice

proposal with the PSC. The PowerChoice proposal, which
now includes the implementation of the ag'reement-in-
principle, would:
~ Create a competitive wholesale electricity market

and allow direct access by retail customers. To give cus-
tomers their choice ofpower suppliers and pricing
terms, the Company willopen its system to competing
electricity generators as early as 1998. The timing offull
implementation depends on resolution of technical,
administrative and regulatory issues. Envisioned is the
formation ofa competitive wholesale spot mar'Let in the
Company's service area under the supervision of the
FERC that is consistent with the PSC COPS d'ecision (see
—"PSC Competitive Opportunities Proceeding —Elec-
tric" and "FERC Rulemaking on Open Access and
Stranded Cost Recovery" ). Beginning with its largest
customers, the Company would allow fulldirect access
to alternative suppliers ofelectricity. Thc Company
would deliver that power over its transmission and distri-
bution system. Access for the remaining customers
would be phased in over several years.

~ Provide relief from overpriced IPP contracts that were
mandated by public policy. As a result ofstate and fed-
eral policy, the Company has 157 contracts to buy power
from IPPs at above-market prices, even when the power

is not needed. The Company's payments to IPPs
increased from less than $200 million in 1990 to $1.1
billion in 1996, and ifno action were taken would con-
tinue to grow by an average ofapproximately $50 mil-
lion per year over the next five years as contract, prie
increase. To create an open and competitive market

'chieve a reduction in average prices, the Company
recently announced an agreemcnt-in-principle to termi- . ~ .
nate or restructure 44 IPP contracts, which represent
more than 90% of the above-market cost ofmandated
purchases by the Company.

The Company proposes, and believes it is probable
that the PSC willapprove, deferral and recovery of
the IPP contract termination or restructuring cost
and recovery of this asset as well as other stranded costs
through a non-bypassable charge tied to distribution
and transmission services. The Company believes that a
non-bypassable charge is necessaryduring the transition
to competition to ensure its financial stability. The PSC
has been kept informed throughout the course-of the
negotiations of the agreement-in-principle. Ifthe PSC
does not approve the deferral and recovery of the IPP
contract termination or restructuring cost through a
non-bypassable charge, the Company may be unable to
complete the associated financing and closing. In that
event (or ifthe IPP agreement-in-principle is not effec-
tuated for any other, reason) thc Company would face
continued financial decline.

~ Separate the Company's non-nuclear power generation
business from the remainder of the business. The Com-
pany has proposed that one company would own an
operate its present non-nuclear power plants. Allth
Company's assets and businesses other than non-nuc
generation would be held by a holding company that
would provide cost-based rate-regulated transmission,
distribution, nuclear and gas services through a regu-
lated subsidiary. The holding company would also pro-
vide competitive unregulated services, such as energy
marketing and other services tlirough a second sub-
sidiary. The companies would be financially restruc-
tured so that stockholders and other constituencies
would be treated in a fair and equitable fashion. Any
release ofassets under the Company's mortgage inden-
ture would be effected in accordance ivith the terms of
the indenture. The Company willcontinue to evaluate
alternative structural options considering actual devel-
opment ofcompetitive markets and regulatory policy.
The Company believes New York State can bc helpful in
this restructuring process, through the purchasing or
refinancing of the Company's nuclear plants or through
the use ofother risk-mitigation strategies associated with
those facilities. (See "Governor Pataki's Proposed
Legislation" ).

~ Reduce average prices for Company electric customers;
with reductions to industrial customers to facilitate
economic and job growth in the service territory.
Ifthe proposal is agreed to by all necessary parties, the
average prices paid by residential and commercial c
customers could be reduced slightly, with more sub
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tial reductions for industrial customers. The Company
has proposed that strandable costs be recoverable by the
Company through non-bypassable charges on rates for
remaining distribution and transmission services.
Stranded costs are utilitycosts that may become unre-
overable due to a change in the regulatory environ-
ent. To ensure maximum recovery of these costs, the

Company has proposed that the strandable costs be
recovered in rates in a manner which minimizes the,
Company's exposure due to sales volume variations.
Recovery ofstrandable costs by the owner of the Com-

'I ' pany's fossil/hydro generation facilities is intended to
be accomplished through an option pricing contract for
a period ofapproximately five years so as not to impede
each unit from being an efficient participant in the
competitive generation market. Nuclear generation
costs would be recoverable through a financial instru-
ment tied to the market price ofelectricity or similar
incentive mechanism not to exceed the term of the
operating license of the plant.

Accounting ImPlications ofPowerChoice
and Agreement-in-Princijle to Terminate or
Restructure IPP Contracts

The Company has concluded that the agreement-in-
principle to terminate or restructure IPP contracts and the
implementation ofPowerChoice, or a similar proposal, is
the probable outcome ofnegotiations that have taken
place over the past 18 months. Under PowerChoice, the

arated non-nuclear generation business would no
er be rate-r'egulated and, accordingly, existing regula-
assets at December 31, 1996 related to the non-

nuclear power generation business, amounting to
approximately $ 103.6 million ($67.4 millionafter tm or
47 cents per share) have been charged against 1996
income as an extraordinary noncash charge.

Of the remaining electric business, under PowerChoice,
the Company expects that its nuclear generation and elec-
tric transmission and distribution business willcontinue to
be'ate-regulated on a costef service basis and, accord-
ingly, itwillcontinue to apply SFAS No. 71 to these lines of
business. The Company curren'tly expects to retain owner-
ship ofits nuclear assets, and willcontinue to investigate
various options that may be available to mitigate the
risk ofownership of these assets. As described under
"Announced Agreement-In-Principle to Terminate or
Restructure 44 IPP Contracts," the conclusion of the

'greement-in-principle,as well as implementation of
PowerChoice, is subject to a number ofcontingencies.

In the event the Company is unable to successfully bring
these events to conclusion, itivould pursue a traditional
rate request. However, notwithstanding such a rate
request, it is likely that application ofSFAS No. 71 would
be discontinued for the remaining electric business. The
resulting after-tax charges against income, based on regu-
latory assets associated with the nuclear generation, and
transmission and distribution businesses as ofDecember

996, would be approximately $503.2 millionor $3.48
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per share. Various requirements under applicable law and
regulations and under corporate instruments, including
those with respect to issuance ofdebt and equity securities,
payment ofcommon and preferred dividends, the contin-
ued availability of the Company's senior debt facilityand
certain types of transfers of~ets could be adversely
impacted by any such write4owns.

The Company expects the PSC willcontinue to apply
the concepts ofcost-of service based ratemaking (includ-
ing the financial consequences of the termination or
restructuring of IPP contracts) to the transmission, distrib-
ution and nuclear generation business and approve the
reduced prices contemplated under PowerChoice. The
Company proposes, and believes it is probable that the
PSC willapprove, deferral and recovery of the termination
or restructuring costs ofIPP contracts over a period not to
exceed ten years. To the extent that recovery of the termi-
nation or restructuring cost is not approved by the PSC,
that amount would be charged to expense, which could
have a material adverse effect on the financial condition
and results ofoperations of the Company. Furthermore,
the Company does not expect the PSC to provide a return
on the regulatory asset associated with IPP termination or
restructuring costs. SFAS No. 71 does not require the
Company to earn a return on regulatory assets in assessing
its applicability. The Company believes that it is probable
that the prices itwillcharge for electric service, including
a non-bypassable transition charge, over the ten-year
period willbe suflicient to recover the regulatory asset for
the termination or restructuring costs ofIPP contracts and
provide recovery ofand a return on the remainder of its
regulated assets, as appropriate. The Company expects
that the reported amounts offuture net income willbe
adversely affected by a lack ofa return on the regulatory
asset and expected lower returns of. the unregulated non-
nuclear generating business.

The Company has been made aware ofa recent request
by the SEC ChiefAccountant to the Public Utilities Com-
mittee of flieAmerican Institute ofCertified Public
Accountants to develop guidance on applying SFAS No.
101. It is the Company's understanding that the guidance
requested may include when to discontinue SFAS No. 71,
as wellas the accounting applicable to recovering strand-
able costs on rates charged by the transmission and distrib-
ution business that originate from generation assets. The
Company cannot predict whether and when such guid-
ance willbe issued, or the attendant consequences on the
Company's financial condition or results ofoperations.,

The Company adopted SFAS No. 121 in 1996. This
Statement requires that long-lived assets and certain
identifiable intangibles held and used by an entity be
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount ofan
asset may not be recoverable. In performing the review for
recoverability, the Company is required to estimate future
undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use of
the asset and its eventual disposition.

With the probable implementation ofPowerChoice,
specifically the separation ofnon-nuclear generation as
an entity that willface market prices, the Company is



required to assess the carrying amounts of its long-lived
assets in accordance with SFAS No. 121. The Company has
determined that there is no impairment of its non-nuclear
generating plant assets. In certain instances, the Company
has considered opportunities to invest in changes in fuel
sources that are technologically available, to improve
future cash flow. In one instance, the Company has consid-
ered the value of relocating a unit to a region where
demand is greater. To the extent an impairment loss could
not othe+vise be avoided, the Company believes itwillbe
able to recover the loss through a non-bypassable transi-
tion charge proposed in PowerChoice. In reaching this
conclusion, the Company must make significant estimates
andjudgments as to the future price ofelectricity, capacity
factors and cost ofoperation ofeach ofits generating units
and, where necessary, the fairmarket value ofeach unit. As
PowerChoice is implemented and generation markets
become open to competition, these estimates and judg-
ments may change.

Traditional Rate Request

In the event PowerChoice could not be implemented in a

timely manner or at all, in February 1996, the Company
filed a request to increase electric rates. This rate increase
request of4.1% for 1996 and 4.2% for 1997 was based on
the Company's cost ofproviding service. These rate
increases are predicated on a requested ROE ofapproxi-
mately 11% on an annual basis and recover the Company's
cost ofproviding electric service. Ata public session on
May 2, 1996, the PSC rejected the Company's request for a
1996 temporary rate increase primarilyon the basis that
the request did not meet the PSC's legal standard for
approving emergency rate increases. The PSC Chairman
stated that an increase in electric rates would have a nega-
tive impact on economic conditions in the regions served

by the Company, which he stated that the Company itself
recognized in its PowerChoice proposal. The PSC Chair-
man also stated that the PowerChoice proposal better
addresses the long-term viabilityof the Company, whereas
a temporary rate increase does not. Accordingly, results for
1996 reflected regulatory lag and resulting reduced ROE.
(See —"Results ofOperations" ).

With announcement of the agreement-in-principle to
terminate or'estructure 44 IPP contracts and assessment
of the probable implementation ofPowerChoice, the Com-

pany temporarily stayed its 1997 rite filingpending fur-
ther proceedings. 1997 earnings willbe significantly below
the Company's allowed ROE, since tarifFprices willremain
unchanged and sales forecasts are below those levels used
in determining such prices. In the event the IPP agree-
ment-in-principle and/or PowerChoicefails, the Company
willpursue traditional rate relief, as necessary.

PSC Competitive Opportunities
Proceeding —Electric

On May 16, 1996 the PSC issued its decision in its COPS
case to restructure New York State's electric industry. Th
decision calls for a competitive wholesale power marke
1997 and the introduction of retail access for all electric
customers in early 1998.

The goals cited in its decision included lowering con-
sumer rates, increasing choice, continuing reliabilityof
service, continuing environmental and public policy pro-
grams, mitigating concerns about market power and con-
tinuing customer protections and the obligation to serve.

To implement its policies, the PSC directed major utilities,
excluding the Company and Long Island Lighting Com-
pany, to file restructuring proposals and rate plans by Octo-
ber 1, 1996, consistent with these goals. Although exempt
from this filingas a result of the PowerChoice restructuring
proposal, the Company made a filingto address several retail
issues. The Company's filingalso urged the PSC to be as

permissive as possible in allowing the natural development
of the competitive marketplace. In addition, itargued that
regulated and unregulated companies should be permitted
to coexist under the same holding company. The PSC has set
a schedule for negotiation or litigation for the other utilities
that extends into the second quarter of1997.

The PSC decision in the COPS proceeding states that
recovery ofutilitystranded costs may be accomplished by a

non-bypassable "wires charge" to be imposed by distribu-
tion companies. The PSC decision states that a careful
balancing ofcustomer and utilityinterests and expecta-
tions is necessary, and that the level ofstranded cost
recovery willultimately depend upon the particular ~

circumstances ofeach utility.
In September 1996, the Energy Association ofNcw

YorkState (Energy Association) and its member companies
filed a lawsuit in the NYS Supreme Court that asked the court
to order a review of the PSC's COPS decision. The Energy
Association includes the Company and seven other investor-
owned utilities as members. Even though the Company
believes that the PSC's objectives in its COPS decision are con-
sistent with the Company's PowerChoice proposal, the Com-

pany wanted to protect its legal rights untilall issues relating to
competition in the NewYorkState electric industry are settled
fairly. On November 26, 1996, the NYS Supreme Court ruled
against the Energy Association and its member companies. On
December 24, 1996 the Energy Association and its member
companies filed a notice ofappeal with the Appellate Division,
Third Department, oftlie NewYorkState Supreme Court. The
Company is unable to predict the outcome ofthis matter.

On February 12, 1997, the PSC took additional steps
toward furthering electric competition by (1) approving a

petition to initiate a potential multi-utility,electric retail
access pilotprogram for commercial farmers and food
processors and (2) allowing utilities to use their flexible
rate programs to compete against the econ'omic develop-
ment power offered by NYPA. The PSC approved the
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petition from Dairylea Cooperative, Inc. (Dairylea) that
proposed a retail access pilot program, since itcuts
across multiple service teiYitories and involves several
rate classifications, among other things.

he potential Dairylca pilotwillinclude the service
itories ofRochester Gas and Electric, New York State

ectric 8= Gas, Central Hudson Gas and Electric Company
and the Company. The potential pilot,program willbe
open to commercial farms and food processors except
those that already have flexiblnte contracts. On Febru-
ary 25, 1997, the PSC issued its Order on this potential
pilot program and stated that thc utilities willhave 45 days
to work together and submit refined terms and conditions
of the program. The PSC expects the program to be imple-
mented within 90 days after such submission. Alternatively,
uulities may file a settlement'agreement or testimony in
the individual ntes and restructuring cases that includes a
retail access proposal similar to the Dairylea proposal. The
Company is unable to predict what effect, ifany, the poten-
tial pilotprognm willhave on its results ofoperations and
financial condition, since thc terms and the conditions of
such program have not been finalized.

FERC Rulemahing on Open Access
and Stranded Cost Recovery

In April 1996, thc FERC issued FERC Order 888.
Order 888 promotes competition by requiring that public
utilities owning, operating, or controlling interstate
transmission facilities file tariffs which offer others the

e transmission services they provide for themselves,
er comparable terms and conditions. The Company
complied with this requirement by filingits open

access transmission tariffwith FERG on July 7, 1996; the
tariffwas accepted by FERG subject to refund, and hear-
ings are scheduled forAugust 1997.

Under FERC Order 888, the NYPP was required to file
reformed power pooling agreements that establish open,
nondiscriminatory membership provisions and modify
any provisions that are unduly discriminatory or preferen-
tial. Thc NYPP Member Systems submitted a comprehen-
sive proposal to establish an ISO, a New York State
Reliability Council (NYSRC) and a New York Power
Exchange (NYPE). The ISO would provide for the reliable
operation of the tnnsmission system in New York State
and provide nondiscriminatory open access to transmis-
sion services under a single ISO tariff. Through the ISO,
the transmission owners, including the Company, would
be compensated for the use of their transmission systems
on a costwf service basis. The NYSRC would establish
the reliability rules and standards by which the ISO oper-
ates the bulk power system. Thc ISO would also administer
the daily electric energy market and the NYPE would
facilitate electric energy market on a day-ahead basis.
While the Company believes the filingmeets the objectives
oFOrder 888, the Company is unable to prcdictwhen

'ERGwillact on the NYPP compliance filingor the ISO', or whether itwillapprove either filingwith or
ut modifications.

In Order 888, thc FERC also stated that itwould provide„,
for the recovery ofprudent and verifiable wholesale
stranded costs where the wholesale customer was able to
obtain alternative power supplies as a result ofOrder 888's
open access mandate. Order 888 left to the states the issue
ofretail stranded costrecovery. Where newly created
municipal electricutilities required transmission service
from the displaced utility, the FERC stated that itwould
entertain requests forstranded cost recovery since such
municipalization is made possible by open access. The
FERC also reserved the right to consider stranded costs
on a case-blase basis ifitappeared that open access was
being used to circumvent stnnded cost review by any
regulatory agency.

Numerous parties, including the Company, filed
requests for rehearing ofOrder 888. In March 1997, the
FERC issued Order 888-A, which generally affirmed Order
888 and granted rehearing on only a handful of issues.
One of those issues was whether the FERG would review
stranded costs in annexation cases as it committed to do in
municipalization cases. In Order 888-A the FERC stated
that itwould review stnnded costs resulting from territor-
ial annexation by an existing municipal electric system,
provided that system relied on transmission from the dis-
placed utility.The FERC denied the Company's request
for rehearing on how stranded costs would be calculated
and other issues. The Company is considering whether to
seek review ofOrder 888-A in federal court.

In late January 1997, the Company provided 26
commu-'ities

in St. Lawrence and Franklin countics with estimates
they requested of the stnnded costs they might be
expected to pay ifthey withdnw from the Company's
system to create governmentwontrollcd utilities. The pre-
liminary estimate of the combined potential stranded cost
liabilityfor the communities ranges from a low of$225
million to a high of$452 million, depending upon the
forecast ofelectricity market prices that is used. These
amounts do not include the costs ofcreating and operat-
ing a municipal utility.

The stranded cost calculations were based on a
method-'logy

prescribed by the FERC. Because no municipality
has moved forivard with condemnation, thc value of thc
Company's facilities has not been deducted from the
stranded cost estimates. The stnndcd costs included in
these estimates are the communities'hare ofobligations
that were incurred on behalf ofall customers to fulfillthe
Company's legal obligations to ensure adequate, reliable
electricity service. Such legitimate and prudent costs are
currently included in electricity rates. Government-
mandated payments to IPPs represent the largest single
component of these costs. The Company is unable to pre-
dict the outcome of this matter.

Governor Patri 's Proposed Legislation

InJune 1996, Governor Pataki introduced two proposals
designed to lower electric rates and to build a short-term
"bridge" to a fullycompetitive electric power market. The
proposed "Electric Ratepayer ReliefAct"would provide
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utilities a tool to address possible stranded costs and
reduce rates through creditwnhanced structured reflnanc-
ing ofany qualifying "intangible asset." Passage of this bill
would facilitate the Company's ability to finance the IPP
agreement-in-principle and minimize its financing costs.

The proposed "Power for Prosperity Bill"would allocate
lowwost power from investor-owned electric utilities and
the NYPA to eligible businesses forjob retention and
development purposes. Any resulting revenue loss to utili-
ties would be offset by a tax credit against the utility's
regressive State GRT.

The New Yor'k State Senate passed both measures dur-
ing the final days of the 1996 regular legislative session and
passed slightly revised versions ofboth bills during the
December 1996 "special" legislative session. The New York
State Assembly has yet to introduce either measure, argu-
ing in favor ofmore comprehensive electric industry
restructuring legislation, such as their "Competition
Plus/Energy 2000 Fund" proposal.

The Company supported the Governor's proposals and
lobbied intensively for both during the regular and "spe-
cial" 1996 legislative sessions. The Electric Ratepayer
ReliefActwould enhance the customer benefits of the IPP
termination and restructuring agreement-in-principle, a
fundamental premise of the Company's PourerChoice pro-
posal, as itproposes "significant rate savings" for all of the
Company's customers. Further, itgives the Legislature the
opportunity to address a problem (rising energy costs) it
helped create, at no cost to New YorkState taxpayers. The
Power for Prosperity Billwould free up immediately an
additional 400 MWs of lowwost economic development
power for businesses to remain competitive or expand
their operations. Also, it,would not harm the Company's
other customers, employees or shareholders because of
the GRT credit provision and would represent the first real
step by New York State to begin the process ofreducing or
repealing the State GRT.

Both measures willbe considered during the 1997 regu-
lar legislative session in the context of the overall electric
industry restructuring debate; however, the Company is

unable to predict whether these two bills willbe enacted
into law Neither bill is a prerequisite for implementation
ofPowerChoice.

Other Federal and State
Regulatory Initiatives

PSC Proposal ofNew IPP Operating and PPA Manage-
ment Procedures. In August'1996, the PSC proposed to
examine the circumstances under which a utility, includ-
ing the Company, may legally curtail purchases from IPPs;
whether utilities should be permitted to collect data that
willassist in monitoring IPPs'ompliance with federal
QF requirements, which are standards that IPPs mustsat-
isfy under PURPA; and ifutilities should be allowed to
demand security from IPPs to ensure the repayment of
advance payments made under their purchased power
contracts.

The PSC noted tliatsome of the current IPP contracts
are far above market prices and are causing utilities to seek

rate increases. In addition, the PSC stated that its proposal
was initiated to protect ratepayers, since itwould ensure
just and reasonable rates in the event ongoing negotia-
tions between utilities and IPPs fail.

In December 1996, the PSC gave the NewYork State ~
utilities, including the Company, the authority to collec
data to assist them in monitoring IPPs'ompliance with
both federal QF standards and state requirements. The
PSC stated that ifQFs are not meeting requirements, the
obligation to pay the fullcontract rate, which is funded by
utilityratepayeis, is generally excused or mitigated. Fur-
thermore, ifthe data collected through a QF monitoring
program indicates a facilityis not meeting federal stan-

dards, the utilitycould petition the FERC to decertify the
QF, which could result in penalties that could include
cancellation of the contract. Asimilar penalty could be
imposed ifit is determined a QF has failed to maintain
compliance with state law. Under the monitoring
program, QFs willbe required to submit data as ofMarch
I each year for the previous calendar year.

The Company cannot predict the outcome of the
remaining IPP issues currently being examined by the
PSC, but is encouraged by the PSC's recent decision on
the procedures for monitoring QF status and its proposal
to implement additional IPP procedures. A number, of
these contracts willbe addressed by the agreement-in-
principle reached between the Company and certain IPPs.

See "Announced Agreement-In-Principle to Terminate or
Restructure 44 IPP Contracts".

Multi-Year Gas Rate Settlement Agreement. In
December 1996, the Company and PSC staff reached a

three year settlement that was conditionally approved
the PSC on December 19, 1996. The PSC ordered condi-
tional approval on the th'ree year settlement agreement
until a final, redrafted agreement, which includes changes
ordered by the PSC, is submitted for final approval. The
settlement results in a $10 millionannual reduction or a

$30 million reduction over the term of the settlement.
This reflects a $ 19 million reduction in the amount of
fixed non-commodity costs to be recoverable in base rates,
offset by a $9 million increase in annual base rates. The
Company estimates that the combination of in-hand sup-

plier refunds and further reductions in upstream pipeline
costs willbe sufficient to fund the $ 19 millionannual
reduction in nonwommodity cost recovery.

Ifthe non~ommodity cost reductions exceed $57
million ($19 millionannually) during the settlement
period, the excess, up to $40 millionwillbe credited to a

Contingency Reserve Account (CRA) to be utilized for
ratepayer benefit. in the rate year ending October 31, 2000
or beyond. To the extent the actual nonwommodity cost
reductions exceed $57 millionby more than $40 million,
the Company may retain any excess subject to a return on
equity sharing provision. In the event the nonwommodity
reductions fall short of the $57 millionestimate, the Com-

pany willbear the risk ofany shortfall. In the event that the
termination or restructuring of IPP contracts results in
margin or peak shaving losses, the margin losses would l
collected currently subject to 80%/20% (ratepayer/sl
holder sharing) and the peak shaving losses willbe
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deferred to the CRA, subject to limits specified in
the settlement.

In return for taking on this risk, the Company has "

achieved a portion of the revised rate structure that
d been proposed to reduce its throughput risk. The,
npany obtained a return on equity cap of13.5% with

/50 sharing between ratcpayers and sl)areholders in
excess of the cap. Jhe Company also has an opportunity to
earn up to $2.25 millionannually ifits gas commodity
costs are lower than a market based target without being,
subject to the ROE cap. Thc Company has an equal $2.25
million risk ifgas commodity costs exceed the target. An
additional major benefit of the revised rate design is that
the margin made on each additional new customer will,,
significantly increase to the extent additional throughput
does not require additional upstream pipeline capacity for
service. This, along with the approval of the Company's
Progress Fund, which allows the Company to use utility
revenues in an amount not to exceed $ 11 million in total
for the purpose ofproviding financing for large customers
to convert or increase their gas use, willprovide new
opportunities forgrowth.

With respect to the Company's site investigation and
restoration costs (see Note 9. Commitmcnts and Contin.-
gencies- "Environmental Contingencies" ), thc settlement
provides for 100% recovery of these costs.

In March 1996, in a generic rate proceeding, the PSG
ordered all New York utilities to refile their tariffs to imple-
ment a service unbundling by May 1996 (March 1996
Order). The Company refiled its tariKon April29, 1996,
which became effectiv on a temporary basis on June 1,

. Under the approved tariff, all of the Company's gas
mers, including residential and commercial

tomers, have the opportunity to buy natural gas from
other sources with the Company providing delivery service
for a separate fee. These changes have not had a material
impact on the Company's margins since tlie margin is
derived from the delivery service and not from the com-
modity sale. The margin for delivery for residential and
commercial aggregation services equals the margin on the
traditional sales service classes.

In addition to the tarifffilingto implement service
unbundling, the, Company and other utilities filed a
petition for rehearing ofcertain of thc determinations
made in the PSC's March 1996 Order. These determina-
tions included the PSC's requirement that customers con-
verting to a transportation customer are responsible for
pipeline capacity held by the utilityon their behalf for
only a three-year period. In addition, thc March 1996
Order states that the utilityis obligated to provide back-up
service to a converting customer or provide service to a
new customer even ifthe utilitydoes not currently have
sufficient pipeline capacity needed to service that
customer. On September 13, 1996 the PSC issued its order
on rehearing. The September 1996 Order did little to
clarify how the costs ofsuch capacity would be recovered
by the utilityafter the three-year period or thc "test" the
PSC would use to determine whether the utilityhas ade-

uately demonstrated its efforts to relieve itselfof"excess"
nded capacity.

NRC Seeks to Confirm Adequacy ofNuclear,
Design Basis Documentation. In October 1996, the
NRC required companies with nuclear plants to provide
the NRC with added confidence and assurance that their
plants are operated and maintained within the design
basis, and any deviations are reconciled in a timely man-
ner. Such information, which was filed within thc required
120 days, willbe used by the NRC to verify that companies
are in compliance with the terms and conditions of their
license(s) and NRC regulations. In addition, itwillallow
the NRC. to determine ifother inspection activities or
enforcement actions should be taken on a particular
company.

In the letter transmitting the requested information to
the NRC, the Company concluded that ithas reasonable
assurance that (i) design basis requirements are being
translated into operating, maintenance, and testing proce-
dures; and (ii) system, structure and component configu-
ration and performance are consistent with thc design
basis. Also, the Company has an effective administrative
tool for the identification, documentation, notification,
evaluation, correction, and reporting ofconditions,
events, activities, and concerns that have thc potential for
adversely affecting the safe and reliable operation ofUnit
1 and Unit 2.

In February 1997, the Company met with the NRCstaK
to discuss alleged violations of regulations at Unit 1 and
Unit 2. No decisions on the alleged violations have been
made to date.

The Company believes that NRC safety enforcement
is becoming more stringent as indicated by the NRG's
request for information and its recent meeting with the
Company and that there may be a direct cost impact on
companies with nuclear plants as a result. The Company
is unable to predict how such a changed operating
environment may affect its results ofoperations or
financial condition.

Owners ofolder General Electric Co. boiling water reac-
tors, including the Company, have experienced cracking
near welds in the plants'ore shrouds. In response to
industry findings, the Company installed modifications in
the Unit 1 core shroud during a 1995 refueling and main-
tenance.outage.

Inspections conducted as part of the March 1997 refuel-
ing and maintenance outage detected cracking in'areas
not directly reinforced by the '1995 repairs, ivhich may
require additional core shroud modifications. Preliminar'y
analysis indicate's the Company may be able to restar't the
reactor from the current refueling and maintenance out-

'gewithout a significant extension of the outage duration.
Additional modifications, ifrequired, would be installed
during a middle outage or as part ofUnit 1's next "

refueling and maintenance outage (February, 1999). If
modiTications are required before thc restart ofUnit 1

from the current refueling and maintenance outage, a 2-3
month extension of the outage would bc anticipated. The
Company's action plan on this issue requires consent from
the NRC.
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fn mi%I'ons of dollars

~99B 1995 1994

Property tax expense ...
Sales lax ...............
Payroll lax ...........,..
Gross Receipts lax .....
Other taxes.............

$249.4
14.1
36.4

184.1
0.5

$264.8 $262.6
13.9 '4.2
37.3 42.5 "

190.2 198.1
5.2 4.3

Tolal tax expense..............
Charged to construction,

subsidiaries and
regulatory recognition .......

Total other taxes...

4&4.5 511.4 521.7

(87) 6.1 (24.8)

$475.8 $517.5 $496.9

Customer Discounts. In recent years, industrial
customers have found alternative suppliers or are generat-
ing their own power. In other cases a weakened economy
or attractive energy prices elsewhere have contributed to
customer decisions to relocate or close.

In addressing the threat offurther loss ofindustrial
load, the PSC established guidelines to govern flexible
electric rates offered by utilities to retain qualified indus-
trial customers. Under these guidelines, the Company
filed for a new service tariffin August 1994 (SG11), under
which all new contract rates are administered based on
demonstrated industrial and commercial competitive
pricing alternatives including, but not limited to, onwite
generation, fuel switching, facilityrelocation and partial
plant production shifting. Contracts are for terms not to
exceed seven years without PSC approval. In addition, the
Company has economic development programs which
provide tariffbased incentives to retain and grow load.

As ofJanuary 1997, the Company has 114 executed con-
tracts under its flexible tariffofferings. These contracts
have been signed to mitigate the lost margin impacts asso-

ciated with customers executing the competitive alterna-
tives mentioned above. In addition, many of these

Other ComPany Efforts to Address
ComPetitive Challenges

Tax Initiatives. The Company is working with utility,
customer and state representatives to explain the negative
impact that all utilitytaxes, including the GRT, are having
on rates and the state of the economy. Governor Pataki
and other state officials have identified reductions in the
GRT as an element in improving the business climate in

'ew

York. At the same time, the Company is contesting
the high real estate taxes it is assessed by many taxing
authorities, particularly those imposed upon
generating facilities.

As noted above, the Company has reduced its work
force over the past four years, resulting in a decrease in the
amount ofpayroll taxes incurred over that period. Mean-
while, the reduction in revenues experienced by the Com-

pany resulting from reduced sales and a phase out of the
GRT surcharge, has caused the amount ofGRT paid by the
Company to be reduced.

The following table sets forth a summary of the compo-
nents ofother taxes (exclusive ofincome taxes) incurred
by the Company in the years 1994 through 1996:

contracts include an increase in production levels and/or
attract new customers to the Company's service territory.

In 1996, the total amount ofcustomer discounts (eco-
nomic development programs and flexible pricing) was

$75.5'million. Of this amount, the Company recovered
approximately $56.7 million in rates, which included a

additional amount of$10.1 million that the FSC allowe
the Company to recover in 1996 as a result ofa petition
that ithad filed. Pending implementation ofPoruerChoice,

the Company budgeted its discounts to increase to approx-
imately $100 million in 1997 as some discounts granted in
1996 are in effect for an entire year and further discounts
are granted. The Company is aggressively using SC-ll to
increase sales to existing customers and to attract new
customers to its service territory. With the reduction in
industrial prices proposed in Pouferchoicr.; the level of
discounts may decline thereafter.

Generating Asset Management Studies. The Company
continues to study, the economics ofcontinued operation
ofits fossil-fueled generating plants, given current fore-
casts ofexcess capacity. Substantial IPP supply sources,
compliance requirements of the Clean AirActand low
wholesale market prices are key considerations in evaluat-

ing the Company's internal generation needs. Due to pro-
jected excess capacity and Clean AirAct requirements, a

total of340 MWs ofaging coal fired capacity is expected to
be retired by the end of 1999 and 850 MWs ofoil fired
capacity was placed in long-term cold standby in 1994. In
one instance, the Company has considered the value of
relocating a unit to a region where demand is greater.
These decisions are reevaluated as facts and circumsta
change. These actions permit the reduction ofoperatii
costs and capital expenditures for retired and standby
plants.

These asset management studies have enabled the Com-

pany to make significant reductions in capital spending,
and with increased output and lower operating costs, to
improve'the cost-efficiency of the units which is important
as the Company continues to examine its competitive situ-
ation and future strategic direction. As discussed in Note
2. Rate and Regulatory Issues and Contingencies —the
Company has determined that there is no impairment of
its non-nuclear generating assets.

Regulatory Agreements/Proposals

1995 Rate Order. (See Note 2. Rate and Regulatory
Issues and Contingencies.)

On April21, 1995, the Company received a rate decision
(1995 rate order) from the PSC which approved an
approximately $47 million increase in electric revenues
and a $4.9 million increase in gas revenues. \

Prior Regulatory Agreements. The Company's results
during the past several years have been strongly influenced
by several agreements with the PSC. Abriefdiscussion of
the key terms ofcertain of these agreements is provided
below.
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The 1991 Financial Recovery Agreement implemented
NERAMand MERIT. (See Note l. Summary ofSignificant
Accounting Policies.)

NERAM required the Company to reconcile actual
ults to the forecasted electric public sales gross margin
d in establishing rates. NERAMwas discontinued

1995.

The MERITprogram is an incentive mechanism. Over-
all goal targets and criteria for the 1993-1995 MERIT
periods were result>oriented and intended to measure
improvement in key performance areas. The total possible
awards are $34 millionand $41 millionfor 1994 and 1995,
respectively. The Company has recognized approximately
$20.8 millionand $16.9 millionofMERIT revenues in
1994 and 1995, respectively. The Company believes that it
has earned approximately $ 18 millionwith respect to the
1995 MERITaward. However, it has only recorded $ 10.8
millionof this amount in 1995, since that amount repre-
sented the objectively determinable portion of the antici-
pated award. Due to the uncertainty surrounding
PowerChoiee, the Company decided not to record addi-
tional revenues related to the remaining 1995 MERIT
award in the amount of$7 million.

Results ofOPerations,

Earnings for 1996 were $72.1 million, or 50 cents per
share, as compared to $208.4 million,or $ 1.44 pcr share,
in 1995, and $ 143.3 million, or $ 1.00 pcr share, in 1994.

ings for 1996 include the discontinued application of
latory accounting principles to the Company's fossil
hydro generation business. The Company reached

this conclusion because the recently announced
agreement-in-principle to terminate or restructure power
contracts with certain IPPs makes probable the implemen-
tation ofPowerChoice in which the Company has proposed
to have its non-nuclear generation sell power at competi-
tive prices in the wholesale market. The discontinuance
results in the write-offof$ 103.6 millionofregulatory assets
associated with the fossil and hydro business which is
included in the income statement as an extraordinary loss
after tax of$67.4 million, or 47 cents per share. Earnings
before the extraordinary loss werc $ 139.5 millionor 97
cents per share. Excluding the extraordinary loss, earnings
for 1996 were lower because ofan increase in bad debt,
expense of$96.4 millionor 43 cents pcr share (sce-
"Financial Position, Liquidityand Capital Resources—
Liquidityand Capital Resources" ). This was partially offset
by a $ 15.0 milliongain on the sale ofa 50% interest in
CNP that contributed 10 cents per share to 1996 earnings.
In addition, 1995 earnings included the recording ofa
one-time, noncash adjustment ofprior years'SM incen-
tive revenues, revenues earned under thc Unit I operating
incentive sharing mechanism and a gain on the sale of
HYDRA-CO that collectively increased 1995 earnings by 17

cents per share. The Company's request for a temporary
rate increase in 1996 was denied by the PSC.

Earnings for 1995 were, hurt by lower sales quantities of
electricity and natural gas, as compared with amounts used
to establish 1995 prices. Sales were primarilyaffected by
the continuing weak economic conditions in upstate New
York, loss ofindustrial customers'oad to NYPAand dis-
counts granted. These factors similarly impacted 1996
results. InJanuary 1995 NERAMwas discontinued.

Earnings for 1994 included $ 101.2 million, or 46 cents
per share, ofelectric margin recorded under NERAM, but
were adversely affected by the charge to earnings of
approximately $ 197 million (89 cents per share) for nearly
all of the cost of the VERP. The VERP was initiated in 1994
to bring the Company's staff levels and work practices into
line with peer utilities and to create a more competitive
cost structure. From January 1, 1993 to December 31,
1994, the Company reduced its employment by approxi-
mately 3,100, or 27%.

The Company's 1996 earned ROE was 2.8% (5.4%
before extraordinary loss), compared to 8.4% in 1995 and
5.8% (10.7% without the VERP charge) in 1994. The Com-
pany's return on common equity authorized in the rate
setting process is 11.0% for the electric business and 11.4%
for the gas business. Besides the extraordinary loss, factors
contributing to earnings below authorized levels in 1996
included, among other things, significantly higher bad
debt expense and sales below those forecasted in deter-
mining rates.

The followingdiscussion and analysis highlights items
that signiTicantly affected operations during the three-year
period ended December 31, 1996. This discussion and
analysis may not be indicative offuture operations or earn-
ings, particularly in view of the probable termination or
restructuring of IPP contracts and implementation of
PowerChoice. Italso should be read in conjunction with the
"Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements" and other
financial and statistical information appearing elsewhere
in this report.

Electric revenues decreased by $26.6 million, or 0.8% in
1996, and decreased by $ 193.4 million,'or5.5%, in 1995.

As shown in the following table, electric revenues
decreased in 1996, primarily due to a decrease in miscella-
neous electric revenues. Miscellaneous electric revenues
werc lower in 1996 primarily because 1995 electric rev-
enues included the recording of$71.5 millionofunbilled,
noncash revenues in accordance with the 19)5 rate order,
$ 13.0 millionofrevenues earned under MERITand a one-
time, nonmwh adjustment ofprior year's DSM incentive
revenues and a reduction in the DSM rebate cost program.
However, higher electric sales due to colder weather, an
increase in sales to other electric systems, an incr'ease in
FAC revenues and higher electric rates (effective April26,
1995) partly offset those factors that contributed to lower
electric revenues. FAC revenues increased $28.3 million,
which primarily reflects the Company's increased payments
to the IPPs recovered through the FAC.
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Electric operating revenues decreased $ 195.4 million,or 5.5%, in 1995 primarily due to the elimination ofNERAMafter
1994, and the decrease in sales to other electric systems and in sales to ultimate consumers. In addition, FAC revenues
decreased $86.4 million, in part due to a decrease in fuel and purchased power costs that are recoverable through the FAC
as compared to 1994. Despite a decrease in fuel costs, the Company absorbed a loss ofapproximately $ 11.8 million in 1995
through the FAC sharing mechanism, since its actual costs in 1995 werc higher than the amounts forecasted in rates. Th
amount forecasted in rates in 1995 reflected a lower fuel cost than 1994. In 1994, the Companyxctained a maximum be
fltof$ 15 million,since its actual costs werc lower than the amounts forecasted in rates. Thc decrease in FAC revenues als
reflects a higher amount of transmission revenues ($21.6 million) realized in 1995 that were passed on to customers.
These decreases were partially offset by higher electric rates that took clfect April26, 1995, and by the recording of$71.5
millionunbilled, noncash revenues in 1995 in accordance with the 1995 rate order. The increase in DSiM revenues relates
to a one-time, noncash adjustment ofprior years'SM incentives, partially offset by a reduction in the cost ofDSM
rebates.

Electric revenues

Amortization of unbilled revenues.
Increase in base rates.
Fuel adjustment clause revenues .

Changes in volume and mix of sales to ultimate consumers ..
Sales to other electric systems.
MERIT revenue.
DSM revenue .

NERAM revenues .

1996

S(77.1)
65.3
28.3

(28.1)
24.5

(13.0)
(26.5)

S(26.6)

Increase (decrease) from prior year
(in rnil/ions of dollars)

1995

S 71.5
68.2

(86.4)
(70.0)
(71.3)

(5.6)
1.4

(101.2)

S(193.4)

Total

S (5.6)
133.5
(58.1)
(98.1)
(46.8)
(18.6)
(25.1)

(101.2)

S(220.0)

Changes in FAC revenues are generally margin-neutral (subjcct to an incentive mechanism discussed in Note 1. Sum-
mary ofSignificantAccounting Policies), while sales to other utilitics, because ofregulatory sharing mechanisms and rela-
tively Iow prices, generally result in low margin contributions to the Company. Thus, fluctuations in these revenue
components do not generally have a significant impact on net operating income. Electric revenues reflect the billingofa
separate factor for DSid programs, which provide for the recovery ofprogram related rebate costs.

Electric kilowatt-hour sales were 89.1 billion >n 1996, 37.7 billion in 1995 and 41.6 billion in 1994. (Sce "Electric and
Gas Statistics —Electric Statistics" ). The 1996 increase of1.4 billion I(wh, or 8.8% as compared to 1995, reflects a 26.2%
increase in sales to other electric systems and a 1.2%,,!ncrcase in sales to ultimate customers due to the colder weather.
Sales to other electric systems was higher duc to increased demand for electricity in the northeast. The '1995 decrease of
8.9 billionKwh, or 9.4% as compared to 1994, reflect a 42.1% decrease in sales, to other clcctric systems and a 2.8%
decrease in sales to ultimate consumers. The decline reflects reduced demand due to the continued stagnant economy,
loss ofseveral large industrial customers due primarily to relocations and closings, as well as a 1994 PSC Order that
allowed Sithe Independent Power Partners, Inc. to sefl a portion ofits electricity to Alcan Rolled Products, loss ofsales to
NYPA, and more competitive pricing caused by excess supply. Excluding the effects ofthe weather, the Company antici-
pates 1997 sales to ultimate customers to decline slightly, before picking up in 1998.

Details of the changes in electric revenues and Kwh sales by customer group are highlighted in the table below:

Class of service

1996
r o/o Of
Electric,„

Revenues, Revenues
1996

Sales Revenues

%o Increase (decrease) from prior years

1995
Sales

Residential...........
Commercial..........
Industrial
Industrial —Special....
Municipal service..., ..

37.8%
37.4

-'5.9

1.8
1.6

3.1%

0.2
3.9
5.8

0.5%
(0.4)
1.2
6.7
7.4

(0.9)%
(2.4)
(8.8)
14.3
(1 1)

(2.5)%
(1 1)
(4.3)
(1 6)
0.9

Total to ultimate consumers .... „94.5
Other electric systems......... 3.4
Miscellaneous............, .'. 2.1

1.4
27.5
(57.8),

1.2
26.2

(17.7)

(2 7)
(43.6)
(23.6)

(2 3)
(42.1)

(2.1)

Total. 100 0% (0.8)% 38% (5 5)% (9 4)%
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ELECTRIC SALES gem)
ULTIMATE SALES

CUSTOMERS FOR RESALE SALES

GAS SALES (MLUONSOFCetAttetMS)
DELIVERIES SPOT

1992

93
33,759

94
34,158

1995
33.379

1996

3.818

',441

5,431

.......36,611

.......37,724

........41,599

........37,684

........39,127

79.2

1995
78.5

1996
84.9

144.8

134.7

83.2 67.8

1 994,4, I'It, r, El'
85.8 85.9

13.2

1.6

1.7

10A

.;...146.2

......164.2

.....173.1

224.8

230.0

As indicated in the table below, internal generation increased in 1996, principally in nuclear and hydro. In 1996,.Unit 2
was out ofservice for a 85 day planned refueling and maintenance outage while in 1995, both units were taken out ofser-
vice for approximately two months each for planned refueling and maintenance outages. The amount of. electricity deliv-
ered to the Company by the IPPs decreased by approximately 226 GwHrs or 1.6%, but total IPP costs increased by
approximately $108.6 millionor 11.1%,'s discussed below. (For a discussion ofan event that is expected to change the
cost and amount ofenergy delivered by IPPs, see "Announced Agreement-in-Principle to Terminate or Restructure 44 IPP
Contracts" ).

1994

% Change from prior year

1996 to 1995 1995 to 1994

(In millions of dollars) GwHre. Cost GwHrs. Cost GwHrs. Cost GwHrs. Cost GwHrs. Cost
Fuel for electric generation:
Coal .

Oil.
Natural gas...............
Nuclear..................
Hydro ...................

7,095 $ 100.6
462 21.1
319 9.2

8]243 47.7
3]679

6,783 $ 107.3
1,245 40.9

700 16.1
8,327 49.5
3,485

6,841 $ 97.9 3 7% 2.8%
537 21.3'14.0) (0.9)
996 20.2 (68.0) (54.5)

7,272 43.3 13.4 10.2
2,971 23.8

0.9% (8.8)%
(56.9) (47.9)
42.3 25.5

(12.7) (12.5)
(14.7)

ctrlclty purchased:
19,798 178.6 18,617 182.7 20,540 213.8 6.3 (2.2) (9.4) (14.5)

acily ........
Energy and taxes..

Total IPP purchases..
Other .............

212.8
13,797 875.7

13,797 1,088.5

9)569 130.6

14,023

14,023

9,463

181.2 — 84.6 — 17.4 — 114.2
798.7 14,794 875.5 (1.6) 9.6 (5.2) (8.8)
979.9 14,794 960.1' (1.6) 11.1 (5.2) 2.1

126.5 10,382 140.3 1.1 3.2 (8.9) (9.8)
23,366 1,219.1 23,486 1,106.4 25,176 1,100.4 (0.5) 10.2 (6.7) 0.5

Total generated
and purchased........

Fuel adjustment clause ..
Losses/Company use ...

43,164 1,397.7
(33.3)

4,037

42,103 1,289.1 45,716 1,314.2 2.5 8.4 (7.9) (1.9)
14.8 — 12.7 — (325.0) — 16.5

4,419 4,117 — (8.6) — 7.3
39]1 27 $ 1 ]364 4 37 684 $ 1 p303.9 41,599 $1,326.9 3.8% 4.6% (9 4)% (1 .7)%

The above table presents the total costs for purchased electricity, while reflecting only fuel costs for Company genem-
tion. Other costs ofgeneration, such as taxes, other operating expenses and depreciation are included within other
income statement line items.

The Company's management of its IPP power supply generally divides the projects into three groups; hydroelectric,
"must run" cogeneration and schedulable cogeneration projects. Due to high precipitation and spring run-offlevels in
1996, hydroelectric IPP projects produced and delivered an increase of635 GwHrs or 56.1% under PPAs resulting in
increased payments to those IPPs of$57.5 million. In addition, a major new hydroelectric IPP came on line in November
1995, contributing to the increase in hydroelectric deliveries.

Asubstantial portion of the Company's portfolio ofIPP projects operate on a "must run" basis. This means that they
tend to run to the maximum production levels regardless of the need or economic value of the electricity produced.
Despite delivering 585 GwHrs less or 5.9%, due to higher weighted average price, payments to "must run" IPPs increased
by $ 15.2 million.With respect to "must run" IPP cogeneration projects, a number ofelements combined to reduce the
aggregate deliveries from "must run" IPPs. These elements included limited term agreements negotiated by the Company
and a catastrophic failure ofone of the IPP plants.

The Company has renegotiated PPAs with a number of IPP cogeneration projects in order to obtain the right to sched-
>e electricity deliveries of the project. The terms of these PQAs allow the Company to schedule energy deliveries from
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the facilities and then pay for the energy delivered. The Company is also required to make fixed payments so long as the
IPP plants are available for service. (See Note 9. Commitments and Contingencies —"Long-term Contracts for the Pur-
chase ofElectric Power" ).

Quantities from schedulable cogeneration IPPs decreased 276 GwHrs or 9.3%. Payments to schedulable IPPs increased
$55.9 million, primarilydue to increased fixed payments ofapproximately $51.6 million.The increase in fixed payments

'ausedby a new schedulable IPP whose plant came on line in May 1995 and due to escalation factors included in the PPi
In addition, payments to schedulable IPFs reflect the increase in the cost ofnatural gas.

Gas revenues increased by $99.9 million, or 17.2%, in 1996, and decreased by $41.4 million, or 6.6%, in 1995. As shown
by the table below, gas revenues increased in 1996 primarily due to increased sales to ultimate customers due to colder
weather, increased spot market sales, higher gas adjustment clause recoveries, an increase in revenues from thc tnnsporta-
tion ofcustomcrwwned gas and an increase in base rates of$8.1 million in accordance with the 1995 rate order.

In 1995, the revenue decrease was primarilyattributable to decreased sales to ultimate customers, which reflects
reduced demand due to the weak economy and warmer weather, and lower gas adjustment clause recoveries. This ..
decrease was partially offset, by an increase in revenues from the tnnsportation ofcustomerwwncd gas ofapproximately
$9.9 millionwhich was primarily caused by the Sithe gas-fired generating project coming on-line in the Company's service
territory and an increase in base rates of$4.7 million in accordance with the 1995 rate order. N

Rates for transported gas (excluding aggregation services) yield lower margins than gas sold directly by the Company.
Therefore, increases in the volume ofgas tnnsportation services have not had a proportionate impact on earnings, panic-
ularly in instances where customers that took direct service from the Company move to a transportation-only class. In addi-
tion, changes in purchased gas adjustment clause revenues are genenlly margin-neutnl.

Increase (decrease) from prior year
(fn millions oldollars)

Gas revenues

Increase in base rates.....
Transportation of customer-owned gas.............,.....
Purchased gas adjustment clause revenues ..............
Spotmarketsales.....;....... „...................
Changes in volume and mix of sales to ultimate consumers ..

1996

$ 3.1
2.1

30.8
34.0
29.9

$99.9

1995

$ 4.7
9.9

(10.7)
(1.3)

(44.0)

$ (41.4)

'otal '

7.8
12.0
20.1
32.7

(14.1)

$58.5

Gas sales, excluding transportation ofcustomer-owned gas and spot market sales, were 84.9 millionDth in 1996, an
8.2% increase from 1995, and a (0.9) % decrease from 1994. (See "Electric and Gas Statistics —Gas Statistics" ). The
increase in 1996 was in all ultimate consumer classes due to the colder weather. In addition, spot market sales (sales for
resale), which are generally from'the higher priced gas available to the Company and therefore yield margins that are
substantially lower than traditional sales to ultimate customers, increased 8.7 millionD th. This was partially offset by a
decrease of transportation volumes of9.9 millionDth or 6.9% to customers purchasing gas directly from producers. The
Company has experienced an increase in customers ofapproximately 20,000 since 1994, primarily in the residential class,
an increase of8.9%.

Changes in gas revenues and Dth sales by customer group are detailed in the table below:

Class of service

1996
%of
Gas

Revenues Revenues
1996

Sales Revenues

% Increase (decrease) from prior year

1995
„Sales

Residential...
Commerciaf ..
Industrial ....
Total to ultimate consumers.
Other gas systems.......'.
Transportation of

customer-owned gas....
Spot market sales...,.....
Miscellaneous.....,.....
Total.......

61.2%
23.8

2.0

87.0

7.4
5.4
0.2

10Q Q%

13.3%
13.0
15.6

13.3
(81.9)

4.3
1,099.1

(82.2)

17.2%

9.4%
6A
4.1

8.3
(81.4)

(6.9)
507.0

2.3%

(7 5)%
(9.7)

(21.0)

(8.5)
(34.3)

25.9
(29.2)
(16.'7)

(6.6)%

(8.2)%
(7.6)

(14.1)

(8.3)
'(34.0)

68.3
9.6

29.9%

The total cost ofgas purchased increased 34.0% in 1996 and decreased 12.5% in '1995 and 5.2% in 1994. The cost fluc- "

tuations generally correspond to sales volume changes, as spot market sales activity increased, as well as changes in gas
prices. The Company sold 10.5, 1.7 and 1.6 millionDth on tlie spot market in 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively. The tot
cost ofgas increased $95.8 million in 1996. This was the result ofa 9.8 million increase in Dth purchased and withdrai
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from storage for ultimate consumer sales ($29.6 million),
a $25.6 million increase in Dth purchased for spot market
sales and a 12.9% increase in the average costper Dth
purchased ($38.7 million).The purchased gas cost

crease associated with purchases forultimate consumers
1995 resulted from a 4.3 milliondecrease in Dth pur-
ased and withdrawn from storage for ultimate consumer

sales ($15.1 million) and a 10.8% decrease in the average
cost per Dth purchased ($32.8 million).This was partially
offset by an increase of$10.1 million in purchased gas
costs and certain other items recognized and recovered
through the GAC. Gas purchased for spot market sales
increased $25.6 million in 1996 and decreased $1.4 mil-
lion and $24.4 million in 1995 and 1994, respectively. The
Company's net cost per Dth sold, as charged to expense
and excluding spot market purchases, increased to $3.62
in 1996 from $3.17 in 1995 and was $3.44 in 1994.

Through the electric and purchased gas adjustment
clauses, costs offuel, purchased power and gas purchased,
above or below the levels allowed in approved rate sched-
ules, are billed or credited to customers. The Company's
electric FAC provides for a partial pass-through offuel
and purchased power cost fluctuations from those forecast
in rate proceedings, with the Company absorbing a por-
tion of increases or retaining a portion ofdecreases to a
maximum of$15 millionper rate year. The Company
retained the maximum benefit of$ 15 million in 1994, but
absorbed losses ofapproximately $ 11.8 millionand $ 1.4
million in 1995 and 1996, respectively.

Other operation and maintenance expense increased
996 by $ 110.3 million, or 13.5%, as compared to a
rease of$139.5 millionor 14.6% in 1995. The 1996

.rease was primarily as a result ofan increase in bad debt
expense of$96.4 million, including a $32.1 millionnet
increase in the Company's allowance for doubtful
accounts to recognize the increased risk ofcollection
inherent in significantly higher levels ofpast-due customer
bills (See "Financial Position, Liquidityand Capital
Resources —Liquidityand Capital Resources" ) and year-to-
year differences in the accounting for regulatory deferrals.
This was partially offset by a decrease in Unit 1 operation
and maintenance costs which were higher in 1995's a
result ofplanned refueling and maintenance outages.

Despite the costs related to the 1995 scheduled nuclear
refueling outages ofUnits 1 and 2 ofapproximately $36
million, other operation expense decreased in 1995 pri-
marily as a result of the Company's cost reduction pro-
gram. In addition to lower labor costs, the Company also
reduced 1995 non-labor costs,'such as research and
development expenditures ($21 million),general oflice
expenses ($8 million),and DSM rebate costs
($19 million).

Other items, net increased by $30.3 million in 1996 and
decreased by $ 13.0 million in 1995. The 1996 increase was
primarilydue to higher interest income ($ 10.9 million) as
a result ofan increase in temporary cash investments and
the gain on the sale ofa 50% interest in CNP ($15.0 mil-

). In addition, other items, net was higher since there
customer service penalties and certain other items

written offbecause they were disallowed in rates in 1995.
The 1995 decrease was primarilydue to the recognition of
customer service penalties, certain other items disallowed
in rates and lower subsidiary earnings, offset in part by the
pre-tax gain ($21.6 million) recognized on the sale of
HYDRA-CO.

Net Federal and foreign income taxes decreased by
$56.9 million in 1996 primarily due to a decrease in pre-
tax income and increased by $47.9 million in 1995. The
1995 increase was due to an increase iri pre-tax income,
which included the increase related to the sale of
HYDRA-CO. Other taxes decreased by $41.6 million in
1996 and increased by $20.6 million in 1995. The 1996
decrease was primarily as a result of lower real estate
taxes ($15.4 million), lower GRTs ($6.1 million) primar-
ilydue to a reduction in the GRT surcharge during 1996,
lower New York State excess dividend tax accrual due to a
suspension of the common stock dividend ($4.6 milli'on)
and year-to-year differences in the accounting for regula-
tory deferrals ($ 15.2 million) associated primarilywith a
settlement of tax issues with respect to the Company's
Dunkirk facility. The 1995 increase was primarily as a
result ofan increase in the amortization ofamounts
deferred in prior years ($19.7 million) related to real
estate taxes. This increase was partially offset by a reduc-
tion ofapproximately $7.9 million in GRTs as a result of
lower revenues in 1995 as compared to 1994, and a
reduction in the GRT surcharge during 1995, as well as a
reduction in payroll taxes ($5.2 million) due to a
decrease in the number ofemployees.

Net interest charges remained fairlyconstant for
the years 1994 through 1996. However, dividends on
preferred stock decreased by $ 1.3 million in 1996 and
increased by $5.9 million in 1995. Dividends on preferred
stock decreased in 1996 primarilydue to a decrease in the
cost ofvariable rate issues and increased $5.9 million in
1995 primarily as a result ofan increase in the cost ofvari-
able rate issues. The weighted average long-term debt
interest rate and preferred dividend rate paid, reflecting
the actual cost ofvariable rate issues, changed to 7.71%
and 7.09%, respectively, in 1996 from 7.77% and 7.19%,
respectively, in 1995, and from 7.79% and 6.84%, respec-
tively, in 1994.

Effects ofChanging Prices

The Company is especially sensitive to inflation because
of the amount ofcapital it typically needs and because its
prices are regulated using a rate base methodology that
reflects the historical cost ofutilityplant.

The Company's consolidated financial statements are.
based on historical events and transactions when the pur-
chasing power of the dollar was substantially different than
now. The effects of inflation on most utilities, including
the Company, are most significant in the areas ofdeprecia-
tion and utilityplant. The Company could not replace its
non-nuclear utilityplant and equipment for the historical
cost value at which they are recorded on the Company's
books. In addition, the Company would not replace these
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with identical assets due to technological advances and
compeutive and regulatory changes that have occurred. In
light of these considerations, the depreciation charges in
operating expenses do not reflect the cost ofproviding
service ifnew genenting facilities were installed. The
Company willseek additional revenue or reallocate
resources, ifpossible, to cover the costs ofmaintaining
service as assets 'are replaced or retired.

Einancial Position, Liquidity
and Capital Resources I

I

Financial Position. The Company's capital structure at
December Sl, 1996 was 53.1% long-term debt, 7.9% pre-
ferred stock and 39.0% common equity, as compared to
54.5%, 8.0% and 37.5% respectively, at December Sl,
1995. The culmination of the termination or restructuring
of IPP contracts willsignificantly increase the levenge of
the Company to nearly 65% at the time ofclosing. The
planned rapid repayment ofnew debt willdeleverage the
Company over time. Book value of the common stock was

$ 17.91 per share at December Sl, 1996, as compared to
$17.42 per share at December Sl, 1995. With the issuance
ofequity at below book value to the IPPs as part of the
agreement-in-principle, book value per share willbe
diluted by an amount which willdepend upon the market
value of the Company's common stock at the time of
issuance to the IPP developers. Also, earnings per share
willbe diluted by the effect of the issuance to the IPP
developers of46 millionshares of the Company's common
stock. Market analysts have observed tliat the Company's
low market to book ratio, 55.1% at December 31, 1996,
results from a weak New Yor'k State economy and regula-
tory attitudes, and from uncertainty about the pace of
regulatory change, which could increase competition and
reduce prices, rendering the Company particularly vulner-

. able. In addition, market analysts have expressed concern
about the uncertainty'and potential negative impact of the
PowerChoice proposal on the Company, as well as the
possibility ofbankruptcy. The Company believes the imple-
mentation ofPowerChoice is in the best interests ofshare-
holders, bondholders and customers, because a substantial
portion of the IPP over-market problem willhave been
eliminated and replaced by fixed-debt obligations and it
willenable the Company to deliver power through 2000 at
slightly lower prices to its customers, with larger decreases
in prices to large commercial and industrial customers to
retain and at tnct business to its service territory.

The 1996 ratio ofearnings to fixed charges was 1.57
times. The ratios ofearnings to fixed charges for 1995 and
1994 were 2.29 times and 1.91 times, respectively. Security
rating firms have imputed certain items into the Com-
pany's interest coverage calculations and capital structure,
the most significant ofwhich is the inclusion ofa'"-lever-
age" fa'ctor for IPP contracts. The rating firms believe the
financial structure ofthe IPPs (which typically have very
high debt-equity ratios) and the character of their PPA
increase the financial risk to utilities. The Company's

reported interest coverage and debt-to-equity ratios have
been discounted by varying amounts for purposes ofestab-
lishing creditratings. Because ofexisting commitments for
IPP purchases, the imputation has had a materially nega-
tive

impaction
the Company's financial ratings. Assumin

the IPP, agreement-in-principle is implemented, the
imputed leveraged debt would be replaced by issued deb .

Common Stock Dividend. The board ofdirectors omitted
the common stock dividend forall of1996 and the first
quarter of 1997. This action was taken to help stabilize the
Company's financial condition and provide flexibilityas the
Company addresses growing pressure from mandated
power purchases and weaker sales and is the primary reason
for the increase in the cash balance. In making future divi-
dend decisions, the board willevaluate, along with standard
business considerations, the financial condition and con-
tractual obligations of the Company, the progress on con-
cluding negotiations and implementing the termination or
restructuring ofIPP contracts and PowerChoice, or the fail-
ure to implement such actions, the degree ofcompetitive
pressure on its prices, the level ofavailable cash flowand
retained earnings and other strategic considerations.
The Company expects to dedicate a substantial portion of
its positive msh flow to pay down senior subordinated debt
to be issued in connection with the implementation ofthe
agreement-in-principle. Furthermore, the Company
believes that its reported return on equity >villbe substan-
tiallyreduced, particularly during the next few years as non-
cash amortization ofthe regulatory asset occasioned by the
IPP agreement-in-principle is occuring and the interest
costs on the IPP debt. is the greatest. See "Accounting,Im
cations ofPowerChoice and Agreement-in-Principle to Tei
minate or Restructure IPP Contracts."

Construction and Other Capital Requirements. The
Company's total capital requirements consist ofamounts
for the Company's construction program {see Note 9.
Commitments and Contingencies-"Construction Pro-
gram"), compliance with the Clean AirActand other envi-
ronmental requirements (as discussed below and in Note
9. "Environmental Contingencies" ), nuclear decommis-
sioning funding requirements (See Note 3. Nuclear Oper-
ations —"Nuclear Plant Decommissioning" and "NRC
Draft Policy Statement" ), working capital needs, maturing
debt issues and sinking fund provisions on preferred stock,
as well as requirements to complete the termination or
restructuring of IPP contracts and accomplish the restruc-
turing contemplated by the PowerChoice proposal. Annual
expenditures for the years 1994 to 1996 for construction
and nuclear fuel, including related AFC and overheads
capitalized, were $485.4 million,$545.8 millionand
$352.1 million, respectively, and are expected to be
approximately $506 million for 1997 and to range fro'm

'275to $545 millionfor each of the subsequent four years.
These estimates include construction expenditures
for non-nuclear generation costs at $22 to $51 million
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PROJECTED CONSTRUCTION ADDmONS tMN0%0F DQLNKj
CONSTRUCTION AFC 6 NUCLEAR FUEL

.$306
$293 $ 13

.$343
$298 $45

$269 $17

.$328

2001 ~~ -"-.'i~
. $276

$265 $ 10

fl

In addition to the assumed cost of the IPP agreement-in-
principle requirements, mandatory debt and preferred
stock retirements and other requirements are expected to
add approximately another $57 million to the 1997 esti-
mate ofcapital requirements. The estimate ofconstruc-
tion additions included in capital requirements for the
period 1997 to 2001 willcontinue to be reviewed by man-
agement with the objective offurther reducing these
amounts where possible. See discussion in —"Liquidityand
Capital Resources" section below, which describes how
management intends to meet its financing needs for this
five-year period.

The above requirements do not include amounts
required to complete the termination or restructuring of
IPP contracts and accomplish the restructuring contem-
plated by PowerClroice. Under the agreement-in-principle
the Company willpay in cash or debt securities of the

pany $3.6 billion.The Company expects to sell in the
lic market subordinated debentures to fund all or a

.tion of this requirement. The Company willalso be
required to replace or amend its existing $804 million
senior debt, facility, discussed below'.

The provisions of the Clean AirActare expected to have
an impact on the Company's fossil generation plants dur-
ing the period through 2001 and beyond. The Company
has complied with Phase I of the Clean Air'Act,which
includes reductions ofNOx and SO2. Phase I became
effective on January 1, 1995 and willcontinue through
1999. The Company spent approximately $0.1 millionand
$5 million in 1996 and 1995, respectively, on projects at
the fossil generation plants associated with Phase I compli-
ance. The Company has included $6 million in its 1997
through 1999 construction forecast for Phase'll compli-
ance which willbecome effective January'I, 2000. The
Company anticipates that additional expenditures of
approximately $74 millionmay be incurred for Phase III
beyond 2000. These estimates are dependent upon final-
ization of rulemakings that implement the Clean AirAct,
the results ofwhich could increase'or lower expenditures.
The asset management studies, described above, consider
spending estimates for Clean AirActcompliance.

Liquidityand Capital Resources. On May 22, 1996, S8".P
lowered its ratings on the Company's senior secured debt
to BB- from 88; senior unsecured debt to 8 from 8+; its

erred,stock to 8- from 8; and commercial paper to not

rated from 8. The present ratings remain below invest-
ment grade and remain on "CreditWatch" with negative
implications. S8cP stated that the downgrade resulted from
the inabilityof thc financiallyweak Company and the IPPs
to make substantive progress in their renegotiation of IPP
contracts. In addition, S8:P stated that the lack ofprogress
after several months ofnegotiations between the Company
and the IPPs increases the uncertainty that a settlement
can be achieved.

On March 10, 1997, S8:P stated that its present ratings
of thc Company remain on CreditWatch, however, thc
implications have been revised to positive. S8cP stated
that the CreditWatch revision was made following the
Company's announcement that ithas reached an agree-
ment-in-principle to terminate or restructure 44 of the
Company's most significant IPP contracts. (Sec
"Announced Agreement-in-Principle to Terminate or
Restructure 44 IPP Contracts" ). S8:P stated that itdid not
expect the Company's senior secured debt ratings to
achieve an investment-grade rating for several years. How-
ever, S8cP noted that there is a stronger possibility that the
Company willachieve investment-grade ratings ifNew
YorkState passes the securitization legislation. S8."P further
noted that the revised implications reflects the
significantly reduced chance ofbankruptcy that might
have resulted from unsuccessful negotiations with IPPs,
and the prospect of improved cash flowcoverages.

On April25, 1996, Moody's lowered its ratings on the
Company's senior secured debt, to Ba5 from Bal; senior
unsecured debt to 82 from Ba2; and its preferred stock
to b3 from baS. Moody's "NotPrime" rating for the Com-
pany's commercial paper remains unchanged, The pre-
sent ratings remain below investment grade. Moody's
stated that itdowngraded the long-term credit ratings of
the Company, based on the limited progress made in
achieving thc goals identified in the Company's Pown
Choice proposal, among other financial concerns, which
may ultimately lead to a voluntary bankruptcy filing. In
addition„Moody's stated that due to the level ofuncer-
tainty and potential,volatility of the situation, its rating
outlook on thc Company remained negative.

On March 10, 1997, Moody's revised its outlook of the
Company to reflect the stabilizing effect of the announced
agreement-in-principle to terminate or restructure 44 of
the Company'5 most significant IPP contracts. Moody's
stated that there is still a substantial amount ofnegotiating
to be done, but the specter ofa voluntary bankruptcy fil-
ing has been lessened. In addition, Moody's stated that it
views thc announcement as a positive step to stabilize the
Company's cash flowwith, favorable implications to the
Company's first mortgage bonds and secured pollution
control bonds.
,, On August 2, 1996, 1'itch placed the Company's first,
mortgage bonds and secured pollution control bonds
(rated 88) and preferred stock (rated 8+) on FitchAlert
status with evolving implications, following the Company's
announced proposal to terminate or restructure 44 IPP
contracts in exchange for a combination ofcash and
securities from a newly restructured Company. (See
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"Announced Agreement-in-Principle to Terminate or
Restructure 44 IPP Contracts" ). Previously, the credit
trend was declining.'However, FitchAlert status means that
a change in ratings is likelyand thc evolving status may
be either raised or lowered depending on the outcome of
the IPP agreement-in-principle. The present ratings are
below investment grade.

On March 10, 1997, Fitch revised its ratings to Fitch-
Alertpositive. This action reflects the Company's
announced agreement-in-principle to terminate or
restructure 44 above-market power contracts with 19 IPPs.
Fitch stated that a change in ratings is likelyand the
improving status indicates that ratings may be raised or
aflirmed depending on the outcome ofevents within the
next 6 to,l2 months. Fitch stated that the successful
negotiation of these contracts pavcs the way for the
approval ofa rate plan by thc PSG, which could stabilize
the Company's financial condition and allow it to imple-
ment a competitive retail access plan while eliminating a

major risk of insolvency.
Asummary of the Company's securities ratings at

December Sl, 1996, was:

Standard & Poor's
Corporation,..........
Moody's Investors
Service. ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ . ~ ~

Fitch Investors
Service................

Secured Preferred Commercial Unsecured
Debt Stock Paper Debt

BB- B- Not Rated 8

Ba3 b3 Not Prime 82

BB 8+ rrot appscabte iror apyrcable

Although no assurance can be provided, the Company
believes that thc termination or restructuring of thc IPP
contracts and implementation ofPowerChoieewill result in
credit statistics that willsupport improved credit ratings
for senior secured debt (First Mortgage Bonds), although
not likely investment grade at the outset. There is risk
throughout thc electric industry that credit ratings could
decline ifthe issue ofstranded cost recovery is not satisfac-
torilysolved. In the event PowerChoice is not adopted, and
comparable solutions are not available, the Company will
undertake any other actions necessary to act in the best
interests ofstockholders and other constituencies.

Ordinarily, construction related short-term borrowings
are refunded with long-term securities on a periodic basis.
This approach generally results in the Company showing a
worldng capital deficit. Working capital deficits may also
be a result of the seasonal nature of the Company's opera-
tions as well as timing difference between the collection
ofcustomer receivables and the payment offuel and pur-
chased power costs. The Company is experiencing a signif-
icant deterioration in its collections as compared to prior
years'xperience and is taking steps to improve collection,
as discussed below. The Company believes ithas sufficient
borrowing capacity to fund such deficits as necessary in the
near term. However, the Company's borrowing capacity to
fund such deficits may be affected by the factors discussed
below relating to the Company's external financial plans.

As previously disclosed by the Company, there was a
significant increase in past4uc accounts receivable since

1995. Anumber offactors have contributed to the
increase, including rising prices (particularly to residential
customers). Rising prices have been driven by increased
payments to IPPs and high taxes and have been passed o
in customers'ills. The stagnant economy in the Com-
pany's service territory since the early 1990's has adverst.
affected collection ofpastAue accounts. Also, laws, regula-
tions and regulatory policies impose more stringent collec-
tion limitations on the Company than those imposed on
business in general; for example, the Company cannot
terminate service during the winter heating season. The
Company's collection efforts werc also affected by
employee turnover with the relocation to the new Collec-
tion Center in Buflalo, New York and the VERP in 1994.
The Company is developing and implementing a variety of
strategies to improve its collection experience and reduce
its bad debt expense. While a number ofstrategies can and
willbe implemented by the Company unilaterally, oiher
strategies willrequire the support of thc PSC regarding
interpretation or alteration of the PSC's rules and regula-
tions, and still others may require legislative action. The
Company has initiated discussions with the staff of the PSC
to explore changes in practices that require the PSC's

support, and is formulating strategies to address legislative
impediments.

Thc information gathered in developing these stratcgics
enabled management to update its risk assessment of the
accounts receivable portfolio. Based on this assessment,
management determined that the level ofrisk associated
primarilywith the older accounts had increased and the
historical loss experience no longer applied. According
thc Company determined that a significant portion of I

pastMue accounts receivable (principally of residential
customers) might be uncollectible, and has writtenwffa
substantial number of these accounts as well as increased
its allowance for doubtful accounts by $32.1 million (14
cents per share) to $52.1 millionas ofDecember SI, 1996.
In 1996 and 1995, the Company had charged $127.6 mil-
lion and $81.3 million, respectively to bad debt expense.
The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on assump-
tions and judgments as to the effectiveness ofcollection
efforts. However, future results with respect to collecting
the past4ue receivables may prove to be different from
those anticipated. The Company expects that future bad
debt expense willbc lower than that experienced in 1996,
but remain higher than in prior years. Such a result is
necessarily dependent upon the followingfactors, includ-
ing, among other things, the effectiveness of the stratcgics
discussed above, the support of regulators and legislators
to allow utilities to move towards commercial collection
practices and improvement in the condition of the econ-
omy in the Company's service territory. The Company has
been pursuing PowerChoice to address high prices that are
the result of traditional price regulation, but the introduc-
tion ofcompetition requires that policies and practices
that were central to traditional regulation, including those
involving collections, be changed so as not to jeopardize
the benefits ofcompetition.

External financing plans are subject to periodic revi.'s

underlying assumptions are changed to reflect devel
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ments, marketconditions and, most importantly, conclu-
sion of the, termination or restructuring of IFP contracts
and implementation of the Company's PowerChoice pro-
posal. The ultimate level offinancing during the period

97 through 2000 willbe affected by, among other things:
timing and outcome of the IPP termination and

tructure agreement-in-principle and the implementa-
tion ofPowerChoiee proposal (or a similar proposal), levels
ofcommon dividend payments, ifany, and preferred divi-
dend payments; the Company's competitive position and
the extent to which competition penctrates the Company's
markets; uncertain energy demand due to the weather
and economic conditions; and the extent to which the
Company reduces nonessential programs and manages its
cash flowduring this period. The Company could also be
affected-by the outcome of the NRC's consideration ofnew
rule's for adequate. financial assurance ofnuclear decom-
missioning obligations. (See Note 3. Nuclear'perations-
"NRC Draft Policy Statement" ). In the longer term, in the
absence ofPowerChoice or some reasonably equivalent
solution, financing willdepend on the amount, ifany, of
rate relief that may be granted: Without adequate relief, or
any substantial relieffrom its existing coststructure as
described herein, the Company's financial condition will
continue to deterionte.

During March 1996, the Company completed an $804
millionsenior debt facilitywith a bank group for the pur-
poses ofconsolidating and refinancing certain of the
Company's existing working capital lines ofcredit and
letter ofcredit facilities and providing additional reserves

ank credit. This senior debt facilitywillenhance the
ipany's financial flexibilityduring the period 1997
ugh June 1999. The senior debt facilityconsists ofa

$255 million term loan facility, a $ 125 millionrevolving
credit facilityand $424 million for letters ofcredit. The
letter ofcredit facilityprovides credit support for the
adjustable rate pollution control revenue bonds issued
through the NYSERDA. The interest rate applicable to
the senior debt facilityis variable based on certain nte
options available under the agreement and currently
approximates 7.4% (but capped at 15%). As ofDecember
31, 1996, the amount outstanding under the senior debt
facilitywas $542 million, consisting of$ 105 millionunder
the term loan facility,a $424 million letter ofcredit and a
$ 13 million letter ofcredit under the revolving credit facil-

ity, leaving thc Company with $262,million ofborrowing
capability under the facility.The facilityexpires on Junc
30, 1999 (subject to earlier termination upon the imple-
mentation of the Company's PowerChoice proposal or any
other significant restructuring plan).

This facilityis collatenlized by firstmortgage bonds which
were issued on the basis ofadditional property under the
earnings test required under thc mortgage trust indenture.
As ofDecember 31, 1996, the Company could issue an
additional $ 1,356 millionaggregate principal amount of
first mortgage bonds under the Company's mortgage trust
indenture. This amount is based upon retired bonds with-
out regard to an interestcoveragc test. As a resultof the
recording of the extraordinary item in'December 1996,
the Company is presently precluded from issuing first
mortgage bonds based on additional property and the
earnings test;

The Company also has $200 millionofPreference
Stock authorized for sale. Current market conditions pre-
clude the Company from issuing preferred or preference
stock due to the downgrading of the Company's security
ntings. The Company's charter also limits the amount of
unsecured indebtedness that may be incurred by the
Company to 10% ofconsolidated capitalization plus $50
million.AtDecember 31, 1996, this charter restriction is
approximately $702 millionand the Company's unsecured
debt outstanding is $20 million.

Net cash provided by operating activities increased slightly
in 1996 due to an increase in working capital items, despite
a decrease in net income in the amount of$ 137.6 million.

Net cash used in investing activities increased $54.6
million in 1996 since 1995 included the net cash gener-
ated from the sale ofHYDRA-CO ($161.1 million).This
increase was partially offset by the net cash gcncnted
from the sale ofCNP (approximately $ 15 million) and a
decrease in other cash investments in the amount of
$ 115.3 million.

Net cash used in financing activities decreased $ 167.0
million, since the Company paidwffan'd converted its
short-term debt to long-term debt in 1995, and did not rely
on any short-term debt in 1996. In addition, the Company
eliminated its common stock dividend in 1996.

N I A G A R A M 0 H A W K P 0 W E R G 0 R P 0 R A T I' N

I-28



RePort ofManagement

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries were prepared by and are the responsi-
bilityofmanagement. Financial information contained
elsewhere in this Annual Rcport is consistent with that in
the financial statements.

To meet its responsibilities with respect to financial informa-
tion, management maintains and enforces a system ofinternal
accounting controls, which is designed to provide reasonable
assurance, on a cost effective basis, as to„the integrity, objectiv-
ityand reliabilityof the financial records and protection of
assets. This system includes communication through written
policies and procedures, an organizational structure that pro-
vides forappropriate division ofresponsibility and the training
ofpersonnel. This system is also tested by a comprehensive
internal audit program. In addition, the Company has a Cor-
porate Policy Register and a Code ofBusiness Conduct
(Code) that supply employees with a framework describing
and defining the Company's overall approach to business and
requires all employees to maintain the highest level ofethical
standards as well as requiring all management employees to
forinallyaffirm their compliance with the Code.

The financial statements have bccn au'dited by Price Water-
house LLP, the Company's independent accountants, in accor-
dance with generally accepted auditing standards. In planning
and performing its audit, Price Waterhouse considered the
Company's internal control structure in order to determine
auditing procedures for the purpose ofexpressing an opinion
on the financial statements, and not to provide assurance on
the internal control structure. The independent,

accountants'udit

does not limitinany way management's responsibility
for the fair presentation of the financial statements and all
other inforination, whether audited or unaudited, in this "

Annual Report. The AuditCommittee ofthe Board ofDirec-
tors, consisting ofsix outside directors who are'not employees,
meets regularly ivithmanagement, internal auditors and Price
Waterhouse to review and discuss internal accounting con-
trols, audit, examinations and financial reporting matters.
Price Waterhouse and the Company's internal auditors have
free access to meet individuallywith the AuditCommittcc at
any time, without management being present.

RePort ofIndependent Accountants

To the Stockholders and
Board ofDirectors of
Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balan
sheets and the related consolidated statements of income
and retained earnings and of cash flows present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position ofNiagara
Mohawk Power Corporation and its subsidiaries at Decem-
ber 31, 1996 and 1995, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 1996, in conformity with gen-
erally acccptcd accounting principles. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's man-
agement; our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits. We con-
ducted our audits of these statements in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards which require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assur-
ance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a

test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclo-
sures in thc financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by manage-
ment, and evaluating the overall financial statement pre-
sentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for the opinion expressed above.

As discussed in Note 2, the Company believes that it
continues to meet the requirements for application of
Statement ofFinancial Accounting Standards No. 71,
Accounting for the Effects ofCertain Types ofRegulati
(SFAS No. 71) for its nuclear generation, electric transm
sion and distribution and gas businesses. In the event that
the Company is unable to complete the termination or
restructuring ofunregulated generator contracts and
implement PowerChoice, this conclusion could change
in 1997 and beyond, resulting in material adverse effects
on the Company's financial condition and results of
operations.

As discussed in Note 2, the Company discontinued
application ofSFAS No. 71 for its non-nuclear generation
business in 1996.

WilliamE. Davis
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer
Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation Syracuse, New York March 13, 1997
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Consolidated Statements ofIncome and Retained Earnings

In thousands ofdollars

For the year ended December 31,

I

tric.
s

Operating expenses:
Fuel for electric generation .
Electricity purchased ..
Gas purchased .
Other operation and maintenance expenses
Employee reduction program
Depreciation and amortization (Note 1) .

Federal and foreign income taxes (Note 7)
Other taxes

Operating Income

Other Income and deductions:
Allowance for other funds used during construction (Note 1) ..
Federal and foreign income taxes (Note 7) .
Other items (net) .

Income before Interest charges.

Interest charges:
Interest on long. term debt.
Other interest.
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction....

me before extraordinary item .
Extraordinary item for the discontinuance of regulatory accounting

principles, net of Income taxes of $36,273 (Note 2)

Net income...
Dividends on preferred stock.

Balance available for common stock,
Dividends on common stock.

Retained earnings at beginning of year

Retained earnings at end of year

1996

S 3,308,979
681>674

3,990,653

181,486
1,182,892

370,040
928,224

329>827
105,583
475>846

3,573,898

416,755

3,665
3>089

32>278

39>032

455,787

272,706
9,017

(3>690)

278,033

177>754

(67>364)

110,390
38,281

72>109

72,109
585,3?3

$ 657,482

1995

$3,335,548
581,790

3,917,338

165,929
1,137,937

276,232
817,897

317,831
156,008
517,478

3,389,312

528,026

1,063
(3,385)
2,006

(316)

527,710

267,019
20,642
(7,987)

279,674

248,036

248,036
39,596

208,440
161,650

46,790
538,583

S 585,373

1994

$3,528,987
623,191

4,152,178

'19,849
.1,107,133

315,714
957,377
196,625
308,351
117,834
496,922

3,719,805

432,373

2,159
6,365

15,045

23,569

455,942

264,891
20,987
(6,920)

278,958

176>984

176,984
33,673

143,311
156,060

(12,749)
551,332

S 538,583

Average number of shares of common stock
outstanding (in thousands) .

Balance available per average share of common stock
before extraordinary Item.

Extraordinary item.

Balance available per average share of common stock...
Dividends paid per share.

( ) Denotes deduction

144>350

S 0.97

$ (0.47)

S 0.50
S

144,329

S 1.44

S

S 1.44
$ 1.12

143,261

S 1.00

S

S 1.00
S 1.09

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
At December 31,

ASSETS

1996

In thousands or dollars

f995

Utilityplant (Note 1):
Electric plant.
Nuclear fuel.
Gas plant
Common plant
Construction work in progress .

Total utilityplant.
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization.

Net utilityplant .

8,611)419
573,041

1,082,298
292,591
279,992

10,839,341
3,881,726

6,957,615

$ 8,543,429
517,681

1,017,062
281,525
289,604

10,649,301
3,641,448

7,007,853

Other property and Investments. 257,145 218,417

Current assets:
Cash, including temporary cash investments of $223,829 and $114,415, respectively...
Accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtful accounts of $52,100 and $20,000,
respectively) (Notes 1 and 9)
Materials and supplies, at average cost:

Coal and oil for production of electricity.
Gas storage
Other.

Prepaid taxes
Other.

325,398

3?3,305

20,788
43,431

120,914
I1,976
25,329

921,141

153,475

494,503

27,509
26,431

141,820
17,239
22 773

883,750

Regulatory assets (Note 2):
Regulatory tax asset
Deferred finance charges .

Deferred environmental restoration costs (Note 9) .

Unamortized debt expense.
Postretirement benefits other than pensions
Other

Other assets

390,994
239,880
225,000

65,993
60,482

206 352

1,188,701

77,428

$9,402,030

470,198
239,880
225,000

92,548
68,933

2 4,25

1,300,812

67,037

$9,477,869

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

N I A G A R A M 0 H A W Ik P 0 N E R C 0 R P 0 R A T I 0 N

I-26



ConsoLidated BaLance Sheets
At December 31, 1996

In thousands o1 dollars

1995

CAPITALIZATIONAND LIABILITIES

italizatlon (Note 6):
mon stockholders'quity:

Common stock, issued 144,365,214 and 144,332,123 shares, respectively ..
Capital stock premium and expense.

~
'

Retained earnings.....
6 144,365

1,783,725
'57)482

2,585,572

6 144,332
" 1,784,247

585,373

2,513,952

Non-redeemable preferred stock .
Mandatorily redeemable preferred stock
Long-term debt.

Total capitalization........, .

~
' 440,000

86,730
3,477,879

6,'590,181

440,000
96,850

3,582,414

6,633,216

Current liabilities:
Long-term debt due within one year (Note 6).
Sinking fund requirements on redeemable preferred stock (Note 6) .
Accounts payable.
Payable on outstanding bank checks.
Customers'eposits......
Accrued taxes.............................,...,...........
Accrued interest
Accrued vacation pay.
Other .

l, r

Regulatory liabilities (Note 2):
Deferred finance charges .

Other.

her liabilities:
mulated deferred income taxes (Notes 1 and 7),
loyee pension and other benefits (Note 8).

erred pension settlement gain.
Unbilled revenues (Note 1) .
Other.

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 2 and 9):
Liabilityfor environmental restoration.

48,084,
8>870

271,830
32,008
15,505
4,216

63,252
36,436

'2,455

532,656

239,880

239,880

1,331,9'l3
238,688

19,269
49,881

174,562

1,814,313

225,000

$9,402,030

65,064
',150

268,603
36,371
14,376
14,770
64,448
35,214
57,748

565,744

239,880
732

240,612

1,388,799
245,047

32,756
28,410

118,285

1,813,297

225,000

$9,477,869

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Consolidated Statements ofCash Flows
Increase (Decrease) in Cash

For the year ended December 31, 1996

In thousands of dollars

1995 1994

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income .

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Extraordinary item for the discontinuance of
regulatory accounting principles, net of income taxes.........

Depreciation and amortization .

Amortization of nuclear fuel .

Provision for deferred income taxes.
Electric margin recoverable .

Employee reduction program
Gain on sale of subsidiary .

Unbiiled revenues .

Sate of accounts receivable ..
(Increase) decrease in net accounts receivable.
Decrease in materials and supplies .

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses ..
Decrease in accrued interest and taxes.
Changes in other assets and liabilities.

Net cash provided by operating activities...

$110,390
d

67,364
329,827

38,077
(6,870)

(15,025)
21,471

121,198
2,265

,8,224
(11,750)
35,231

700,402

$248,036

317,831
34,295

114,917
58,588

(11,257)
(71,258)
50,000

6,748
13,663

(47,048)
(35,440)
20,930

700,005

$176,984

308,351
37,887

7,866
(45,428)
196,625

(59,145)
6,290

(5,991)
(19,914)

(6,304)

597,221

Cash flows from Investing activities:
Construction additions
Nuclear fuel.
Less: Allowance for other funds used during construction ..
Acquisition of utility plant .

Decrease in materials and supplies related to construction........
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued

expenses related to construction
(Increase) decrease in other investments.
Proceeds from sale of subsidiary (net of cash sold)
Other

Net cash used in Investing activities .

(296,689)
(55,360)

3,665

(348,384)
, 8>362

'2,056
,541

'4,600
'8,786),

(331,611)

(332,443)
(13,361)

1,063

(344,741)
3,346

(7,112)
(115,818)',
161,087
26,234

(277,004)

(439,289)
(46,134)

2,159

(483,264)
5,143

(1,498)
(23,375

(17,979)

(520,973)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from sale of common stock
Proceeds from long-term debt
Issuance of preferred stock......
Redemption of preferred stock
Reductions of long. term debt
Net change in short-term debt
Dividends paid .

Other.

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase (decrease) In cash .

Cash at beginning of year.

Cash at end of year

105>000

(10,400)
(244>341)

(38>281)
(8,846)

(196,868)

171,923
153,475

$325,398

283
'46,000

(10,950)
(73,415)

(416,750)
(201,246)

(7,778)

(363,856)

59,145
94,330

$153,475

29,514
424,705
150,000
(33,450)

(526,584)
48,734

(189,733)
(9,455)

(106,269)

(30,021)
124,351

$ 94,330

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Cash paid during the year for:
interest
Income taxes.

$286,497
$ 95>632

'290,352
$ 47,378

$300,242
$ 136,876

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

OTE Z. Summary ofSignigcant
ccounting Policies

The Company is subject to regulation by the PSC and
FERC with respect to its rates for service under a method-
ology which establishes prices based on the Company's
cost. The Company's accounting policies conform to
GAAP, as applied to regulated public utilities, and are in
accordance with thc accounting requirements and
ratemaking practices of the regulatory authorities (see
Note 2). In order to be in conformity with GAAP, manage-
ment is required to use estimates in the preparation of the
Company's financial statements.

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial
statements include the Company and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries. Intercompany balances and transactions have
been eliminated.

UtilityPlant: The cost ofadditions to utilityplant and
replacements ofretirement units ofproperty are capital-
ized. Cost includes direct material, labor, overhead and
AFC. Replacement ofminor items ofutilityplant and thc
cost ofcurrent repairs and maintenance is charged to
expense. Whenever utilityplant is retired, its original cost,
together with the cost of removal, less salvage, is charged

ccumulatcd depreciation.

owance for Funds Used During Construction: The
Company capitalizcs AFC in amounts equivalent to the
cost offunds devoted to plant under construction. AFC
rates are determined in accordance with FERC and PSC
regulations. The AFC rate in effect at December 31, 1996
was 9.28%. AFC is segregated into its two components,
borrowed funds and other funds, and is reflected in thc
"Interest charges" and thc "Other income and deductions"
sections, respectively, of the Consolidated Statements
ofIncome.

Depreciation, Amortization and Nuclear Generating
Plant Decommissioning Costs: For accounting and regula-
tory purposes, depreciation is computed on the straight-
line basis using the license lives for nuclear and hydro
classes ofdepreciable property and the average service
lives forall other classes. Thc percentage relationship
between the total provision for depreciation and average
depreciable property was approximately 5% for the years
1994 through 1996. The Company performs depreciation
studies to determine service lives ofclasses ofproperty and
adjusts the depreciation rates when necessary..

Estimated decommissioning costs (costs to remove
a nuclear plant from service in the future) for the Com-
pany's Unit 1 and its share ofUnit 2 are being accrued
over the service lives of the units, recovered in rates

ough an annual allowance and currently charged to
tions through depreciation. The Company expects

to commence decommissioning ofboth units shortly after
cessation ofoperations at Unit2 (currently planned for
2026), using a method which removes or decontaminates
Unit components promptly at that time. See Note 3-
"Nuclear Plant Decommissioning."

The FASH issued an exposure draft in February 1996
entitled "Accounting for Certain LiabilitiesRelated to
Closure or Removal ofLong-Lived Assets." The scope of
the original projectwas broadened and would include the
Company's fossil and hydro plants, as well as nuclear,.
plants. Ifapproved as drafted, a liabilitywillhave to be
recognized for these assets whenever a legal or construc-
tive obligation exists to perform dismantlement or
removal activities. The recognition of the liabilitywould
result in an increase to the cost of the related asset and
would bc reported based upon discounted future cash
flows. Additionally, the exposure draft would allow the
Company to establish a regulatory asset for thc difference
between costs ofclosure and removal obligations recog-
nized and the costs allowable for rate-making purposes,
subject to the provisions ofSFASNo. 71. As noted above,
the Company currently recognizes the liabilityfor nuclear
decommissioning over the service life of the plant as an
increase to accumulated depreciation based on amounts
allowed in rates. The Company does not reflect the closure
and removal obligation associated with its fossil and hydro
plants in the financial statements. As such, the annual
provisions for depreciation could increase. Under tradi-
tional cost based regulation such accounting changes
would not have an adverse effect on the results ofopera-
tions of the Company. However, based on the discontinua-
tion ofSFAS No. 71 for the fossil and hydro generating
assets associated with this obligation and the issuance of
SFAS No. 121 (discussed in Note 2), the Company cannot
currently predict the impact this exposure draft may have
on the Company's future results ofoperations, particularly
the effect itmay have on the fossil and hydro plants. How-
ever, adoption of thc proposed standard is not expected to,
impact the cash flowfrom these assets. The FASH had
originally indicated itexpected to issue a final standard to
be effectiv for the firstquarter of 1998. However, since
the expanded scope has been subject to great debate, by
the FASH and others, ithas been indicated by the FASH
the nextstep for this project may be to issue either a final
statement or a revised exposure draft. Therefore, the
Company cannot predict when itwillbe required to
implement the requirements of this exposure draft.

Amortization of the cost ofnuclear fuel is determined
on the basis of the quantity ofheat produced for the gen-
eration ofelectric energy. The cost ofdisposal ofnuclear
fuel, which presently is $ .001 per Kwh ofnet generation
available for sale, is based upon a contract with the DOE.
These costs arc charged to operating expense and recov-
ered from customers through base rates or through the
fuel adjustment clause.

Revenues: Revenues are based on cycle billings
rendered to certain customers monthly and others bi-
monthly for energy consumed and not billed at the end of
the fiscal year. AtDecember Sl, 1996 and 1995, approxi-
mately $ 1L1 millionand $5.2 million, respectively, of

N I AGARAMOHAWICP 0 W E R C 0 R P 0 R A T I 0 N

I-29



unbilled electric revenues remained unrecognized in
'esultsofoperations, are included in "Other liabilities"

and may be used to reduce future revenue requirements.
In 1995, the Company used $71.5 millionofelectric
unbilled revenues to reduce the 1995 revenue require-
ment. AtDecember Sl, 1996 and 1995, $38.8 millionand
$23.2 million, respectively, ofunbillcd gas revenues remain
unrecognized in results ofoperations and may similarly be
used to reduce future gas revenue requirements. The
unbilled revenues included in accounts receivable at
December Sl, 1996 and 1995, were $218.5 millionand
$202.7 million, respectively.

The Company's tariffs include electric and gas adjust-
ment clauses under which energy and purchased gas costs,
respectively, above or below thc levels allowed in approved
rate schedules, are billed or credited to customers. The
Company, as authorized by the PSC, charges operations for
energy and purchased gas cost, increases in the period of
recovery. The PSC has periodically authorized the Com-
pany to make changes in the level ofallowed energy and
purchased gas costs included in approved rate schedules.
As a result ofsuch periodic changes, a portion ofenergy
costs deferred at the time ofchange would not be recov-
ered or may be overrecovered under the normal operation
of the electric and gas adjustment, clauses. However, the
Company has to date been permitted to defer and billor
credit such portions to customers, through the electric and
gas adjustment clauses, over a specifie period oftime
from the effective date ofeach change.

The Company's electric FAC provides for partial pass-
through offuel and purchased power cost fluctuations
from amounts forecast, with the Company absorbing a
portion of increases or retaining a portion ofdecreases up
to a maximum of$ 15 millionper rate year. Thereafter,
100% of the fluctuation is passed on to ratepayers. The
Company also shares with ratepayers fluctuations from
amounts forecast for net resale margin and transmission
benefits, with the Company retaining/absorbing 40% and
passing 60% through to ratepayers. The a'mounts retained
or absorbed in 1994'through 1996 were not material.

However, in December 1996, the Company and the PSC
- staff reached a three year settlement agreement that was
conditionally approved by the PSC. Such an agreement
eliminated the gas adjustment clause and established a gas
commodity costadjustment clause (CCAC). The Com-
pany's gas CCAC provides for the collection ofcertain
increases or decreases from the base commodity cost of
gas. To determine the amount to be recovered from or
passed on to customers, a performance target was estab-
lished against which to measure gas purchases, known as
the commodity cost index. The performance target was set
at 97% of the typical market price. Ifactual gas purchases
fall between 96% —98% of the typical market price, then
ratepaycrs willreceive all benefits or bear the burdens of

'ostswithin this range. Ifactual gas purchases fall below
96% or are above 98% of the typical market price, then
ratepayers and shareholders willshare on an equal basis
any differences between actual and targeted performance,
subject to the limitation that the maximum annual risk or"
benefit to the Company is $2.25 million.Allsavings and
excess costs beyond that amount willflow to ratepayers.

For a discussion of the ratemaking associated with non-
commodity gas costs, see Management's Discussion and
Analysis ofFinancial Condition and Results ofOperations
—Other Federal and State Regulatory Initiatives - Multi-
Year Gas Rate Set tlemen't Agreement."

The Company's PowerChoice proposal, which the Co
pany flie in October 1995 as part of its multi-year electri
rate proceeding, proposed to eliminate all surcharges,
including the FAC and remaining NERAMand
MERITsurcharges.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts: The allowance for
doubtful accounts receivable on the consolidated balance
sheets amounted to $52.1 millionand $20.0 millionat
December 51, 1996 and 1995, respectively. The net
increase in the allowance for doubtful accounts reflects the
implementation of the risk assessment methodology that
puts more emphasis on past due balances. Previously, the
Company's allowance for doubtful accounts followed
regulatory practice and consequently focused on final
billed accounts only (typically accounts that are no
longer active) .

Federal Income Taxes: As directed by the PSC, the Com-
pany defers any amounts payable pursuant to the alterna-
tive minimum tax rules. Deferred investment tax credits
are amortized to "Other income and deductions" over the
useful life of the underlying property.

Statement of Cash Flows: The Company considers all
highly liquid investments, purchased with a remaining
maturity of three months or less, to be cash equivalents.

Reciassifications: Certain amounts from prioryears hav
been reclassified on the accompanying Consolidated Finan-
cial Statements to conform with the 1996 presentation.

NOTE.2. Rate and Regulatory
Issues and Contingencies

The Company's financial statements conform to GAAP,
as applied to regulated public utilities and reflect the
application ofSFAS No. 71, with the exception of the
Company's non-nuclear generation business. Substantively,
SFAS No. 71 permits a public utilityregulated on a cost-of-
service basis to defer certain costs when authorized to do
so by the regulator which would otherwise be charged to
expense. These deferred costs are known'as regulatory
assets, which in the case of the Company are
approximately $949 million, net ofapproximately $240
millionofregulatory liabilities at December 91, 1996.
These regulatory assets are probable of recovery. The por-
tion of the $949 millionwhich has been allocated to the
nuclear generation and electric transmission and distribu-
tion business is approximately $774 million,which are nct
ofapproximately $240 million of regulatory liabilities.
Regulatory assets allocated to the rate-regulated gas distril
ution business are $ 175 million. Generally, regulatory
assets and liabilities were allocated to the portion of tht
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business that incurred the underlying transaction that
resulted in the recognition of the regulatory asset or liabil-
ity. The allocation methods used between electric and
gas are consistent with those used in prior regulatory

oceedings.
I'he Company has concluded that the termination or

structuring of IPP contracts and implementation of.
PowerChoice, or a similar proposal, is the probable out-
come ofnegotiations that have taken place over the past
18 months. Under PowerChoice, the separated non-nuclear
generation business willno longer be rate-regulated on a
costwf service basis and, accordingly, existing regulatory
assets related to the non-nuclear power generation busi-
ness, amounting to approximately $ 103.6 million ($67.4
millionafter tax or 47 cents per share) at December 31,
1996, have been charged against income as an extraordi-
nary non-cash charge.

Of the remaining electric business, under PowerChoice,
the Company expects that its nuclear generation and elec-
triC transmission and distribution business continue to be
rate-regulated on a costwf service basis and, accordingly,
the Company willcontinue to apply SFAS Wo. 71 to these
businesses.

PowerChoice and the termination or restructuring costs
ofIPP contracts willresult in rates that reflect reduced or
stable costs that the Company believes meet the Gover-
nor's stated economic objectives as to energy prices in New
York State as well as the PSC's objectives (see Management's
Discussion and Analysis ofFinancial Condition and Results
ofOperations —"PSC Competitive Opportunities Proceed-
ing —Electric"). Therefore, the Company expects the PSC

continue to apply the concept ofcost-of service based
s to the nuclear generation and transmission and

tribution business. The Company expects that these
costwf service based rates can be charged to and collected
from customers without unanticipated reduction in
demand. The Company proposes, and believes it is proba-
ble that the PSC willapprove, deferral and recovery of the
termination or restructuring costs of IPP contracts over a

"'eriodnot to exceed ten years. To the extent that recovery
of the termination or restructuring cost is not approved by
the PSC, that amount would be charged to expense, which
could have a material adverse effect on the financial condi-
tion and results ofoperations of the Company. Further-
more, the Company does not expect the PSC to provide a
return on the regulatory asset associated with IPP termina-
tion or restructuring costs. SFAS No. 71 does not require
the Company to earn a return on regulatory assets in
assessing its applicability. The Company believes that the
prices itwillcharge for electric service, including a non-
bypassable transition charge, over the ten-year period will
be sufficient to recover the regulatory asset for the termi-
nation or restructuring costs ofIPP contracts and provide
recovery ofand a return on the remainder ofits regulated
assets, as appropriate. The Company expects that the
reported amounts offuture net income willbe adversely
affected by a lack ofa return on the regulatory asset and
expected louver returns of the unregulated non-nuclear
enerating business.

e Company has been made aware ofa recent request
e SEC ChiefAccountant to the Public Utilities

Committee of the American Institute ofCertified Public
Accountants to develop guidance on applying SFAS No.
101. Itis the Company's understanding that the guidance
may include when to discontinue SFAS No. 71, as well as
the accounting applicable to recovering strandable costs
on the transmission and distribution business that origi-
nate from generation assets. The Company cannot predict
whether and when such guidanc'e willbe issued or the
attendant consequences on the Company's financial con-
dition or results ofoperations.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 121 in 1996. This State-
ment requires that long-lived assets and certain identifi-
able intangibles held and used by an entity be reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount ofan asset may not be
recoverable. In performing the review for recoverability,
the Company is required to estimate future undiscounted
cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and
its eventual disposition.

With the probable implementation ofPowerChoice,
specifically the separation ofnon-nuclear generation as an
entity that willface market prices, the Company is required
to assess the carrying amounts ofits long-lived assets in
accordance with SFAS No. 121. The Company has deter-
mined that there is no impairment, of its non-nuclear
generating assets. In certain instances, the Company has
considered opportunities to invest in changes in fuel
sources that are technologically available, to improve cash
flow. In one instance, the Company has considered the
value of relocating a unit to a region where demand is
greater. To the extent an impairmentloss cannotbe other-
wise avoided, the Company believes itwillbe able to
recover the loss through a non-bypassable transition fee
proposed in PowerChoice. In reaching conclusions as to .
impairment ofnon-nuclear generating assets, the Com-
pany must, make significant estimates andjudgments as to
the future price ofelectricity, capacity factors and cost of
operation ofeach ofits generating units and, where neces-
sary, the fair market value ofeach unit. As PowerChoico is
implemented and generation markets become open to
competition, these estimates and judgments may change.
An update of the SFAS No. 121 assessment must be pre-
pared when conditions occur which in the opinion of
management may have impaired the value of these assets.

As described in Management's Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results ofOperations—
"Announced Agreement-in-Principle to Terminate or
Restructure 44 IPP Contracts," the conclusion of the
termination or restructuring of IPP contracts, as well as
implementation ofPowerChoice, is subject to a number of
contingencies. In the event the Company is unable to
successfully bring these events to conclusion, itwould
pursue a traditional rate request. However, notwithstand-
ing such a rate request, it is likely that application ofSFAS
No. 71 would be discontinued. The resulting after-tax
charges against income, based on regulatory assets associ-
ated with the nuclear generation and transmission and
distribution businesses as ofDecember 31, 1996, would be
approximately $503.2 millionor $3.48 per share. Various
requirements under applicable law and regulations and
under corporate instruments, including those with respect
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to issuance ofdebt and cqtiitysecurities, payment of
common and preferred dividends, the continued
availability of the Company's senior debt facilityand
certain types of transfers ofassets could be adversely
impacted by any such write-downs.,

The Company has recorded the following regulatory
assets on its Consolidated Balance Sheets reflecting the
rate actionstof its regulators:

Regulatory tax asset represents the expected future
recover y from ratepayers of the. tax consequences of tem-

porary differences bctwcen the recorded book bases and
the tax bases ofassets and liabilities. This amount is pri-
marily timing differences related to depreciation. These
amounts are amortized and recovered as the related tem-

porary difference reverse. InJanuary 1993, the PSC issued
a Statement ofInterim Policy on Accounting and Ratemak.-

ing Procedures that required adoption ofSFAS No. 109 on
a revenue-neutral basis.

Deferred finance charges represent the deferral of the
discontinued portion ofAFG related to CWIP at Unit2

which was included in rate base. In 1985, pursuant to PSG

authorization, thc Company discontinued accruing AFC
on CWIP forwhich a cash return was being allowed. This
amount, which was accuinulated in deferred debit and
credit accounts up to the commercial operation date of
Unit2, awaits future disposition by the PSC. A portion of
the deferred credit, could bc utilized to reduce future rev-

enue requirements over a period shorter than the life of
Unit2, with a like amount ofdefer red debit amortized and
recovered in rates over the remaining life oFUnit 2.

'eferredenvironmental restoration costs represent
'heCompany's share of the estimated minimum costs to

investigate and perform certain remediation activities at
both Company-owned sites and nonwwncd sites with
which itmay be associated.'he Company has recorded a

regulatory asset rcprcscnting the remediation obligations
to be recovered from ratcpayers. See Note 9- "Environ-
mental Contingencies."

Unamortized debt expense represents the costs to issue
and redeem certain long-term debt securities which were
retired prior to maturity. These amounts are amortized as

interest expense ratably over the lives of the related issues

in accordance iuith PSC directives.

Postretirement benefits other than pensions represent
the excess ofsuch costs recognized in accordance with
SFAS No. 10G over thc amount received in rates. In accor-
dance with the PSC policy statement, postretiremcnt bcnc-
fitcosts other than pensions are being phased-in to rates
over a five-year period and amounts deferred willbe
amortized and recovered over a period not to exceed
20 years.

Substantially all of the Company's regulatory assets

described above are being amortized to expense and
recovered in rates over periods approved in the Company's
1995 or 1996 electric and gas rate cases, respectively.

NOTE 3. Nuclear OPerations

The Company is the owner and operator of the 613 MW
Unit 1 and the operator and a 41% caner of the 1,14
MWUnit 2. The remaining ownership interests are Lon
Island Lighting Company (LILCO)-18%, NewYork Stat
Electric and Gas Corporation (NYSEG) —18%, Rochester
Gas and Electric Corporation (RG8cE) -14%, and Central
Hudson Gas and Electric Corporation (Central Hudson)—
9%. Unit 1 was placed in commercial operation in 1969

and Unit2 in 1988.

Unit 1 Status: In 1995, Unit1 was taken out ofservice for
a 56 day planned refueling and maintenance outage.
Using the nct design electric rating as a basis, Unit 1's

capacity factor for 1996 was approximately 8G.8%. Using
NRC guidelines, which reflec net maximum dependable
capacity during the most restrictive seasonal conditions,
Unit1's capacity factor was approximately 94.2%.

On March 3, 1997, Unit 1 was taken out ofservice for a

35 day planned refueling and maintenance outage. Own-
ers ofolder Gcncral Electric Co. boilingwater reactors,
including the Company, have experienced cracking near
welds in the plants'ore shrouds. In response to industry
findings, thc Company installed modifications in thc Unit
1 core shroud during a 1995 refueling and'maintenance
outage.

Inspections conducted as part of the March 1997 refuel-
ing and maintenance outage detected cracking in area.
not directly reinforced by the, 1995 repairs, which may
require additional core shroud modifications. Prclimin;
analysis indicates thc Company may be able to restart the
reactor from the'current refueling and maintenance out-
age without a significant extension of the outage duration.
Additional modifications, ifrequired, would be installed
during a mid-cycle outage or as part ofUnit 1's next refuel-
ing and maintenance outage (February, 1999). Ifmodifica-
tions are required before the restart ofUnit 1 from the
current refueling and maintenance outage, a 2-3 month
extension of the outage would be anticipated. The Com-
pany's action plan on this issue requires consent from the
NRC.

Unit 2 Status: In 1995, Unit 2 was taken out ofservice for
a 56 day planned refueling and maintenance outage. On
September 28, 1996, Unit 2 was taken out ofservice for a

planned refueling and maintenance outage and returned
to service on November 2, 1996. Its next refueling and
maintenance outage is scheduled for Spring 1998. Using
the net design clcctric rating as a basis, Unit2's capacity
factor for 1996 was approximately 86.6%. Using NRC
guidelines as dcscribcd above, Unit 2's capacity factor
was approximately 89.6%.

Nuclear Plant Decommissioning: The Company's site
specific cost estimates for decommissioning Unit 1 and its
ownership interest in Unit2 at December 31, 1996 arc
follows:
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Unit 1

Site Study (year)................. 1995
End of Plant Life (year)............ 2009

adioactive Dismantlement
to Begin (year)................ 2026

thod of Decommissioning........ Delayed
Dismantlement

Unit 2

1995
2026

2028

Immediate
Dismantlement

Cost of Decommissioning (in Jan 1997 dollars) In millions of dollars
Radioactive Components ......... $474 $194
Non-radioactive Components...... 117 46
Fuel Dry Storage/Continuing Care .. 101 41

$692 $281

The Company estimates that by the time decommission-
ing is completed, the above costs willultimately amount
to $ 1.8 billionand $ .9 billion for Unit1 and Unit 2,
respectively, using approximately 3.5% as an annual
inflation factor.

In addition to the costs mentioned above, the Company
expects to incur post-shutdown costs for plant rampdown,
insurance and property taxes. In 1997 dollars, these costs
are expected to amount to $ 110 millionand $61 million
for Unit 1 and the Company's share ofUnit2,'respectively.
The amounts willescalate to $ 192 millionand $ 190
millionfor Unit 1 and the Company's share ofUnit 2,
respectively.

NRC regulations require owners ofnuclear power plants
to place funds into an external trust to provide for the cost
ofdecommissioning radioactive portions ofnuclear facili-

and establish minimum amounts that must be avail-
in such a trust at the time ofdecommissioning. The

nual allowance for Unit 1 and the Company's share of
Unit 2 for the years ended December 31, 1996, 1995 and
1994 was approximately $23.7 million,$23.7 millionand
$ 18.7 million, respectively. The amounts for 1996 and
1995 were based upon the 1993 NRC minimum decoin-
missioning cost requirements of$422 millionand $ 191
million (in 1997 dollars) for Unit 1 and the Company's
share ofUnit 2, respectively. The amounts for 1994 were
based upon site studies performed in 1989. In the 1995
nte order, the Company was authorized, until the PSC
orders otherwise, to continue to fund to the NRC mini-
mum requirements. In the 1997 rate filing, the Coinpany
has requested, for both units, rate recovery for all radioac-
tive and non-radioactive components (including post-
shutdown costs) based upon the amounts estimated in the
1995 site specific studies described above. There is no
assurance that the decommissioning allowance recovered
in rates willultimately aggregate a sufficien amount to
decommission the units. The Company believes that if
decommissioning costs are higher than currently
estimated, the costs would ultimately be included in the
rate process under traditional ratemaking or PowerChoice.

Decommissioning costs recovered in rates are reflected
in "Accumulated depreciation and amortization" on the
balance sheet and amount to $217.7 millionand $ 183.4
millionat December 31, 1996 and 1995, respectively for

Units. Additionallyat December 31, 1996, the fair

value offunds accumulated in the Company's external
trusts were $136.5 millionfor Unit 1 and $38.7 millionfor
its share ofUnit2. The trusts are included in "Other prop-
erty and investments." Earnings on the external trust
aggregated $28.8 million through December 31, 1996 and,
because the earnings are available to fund decommission-
ing, have also been included in "Accumulated deprecia-
tion and amortization." Amounts recovered for non-
radioactive dismantlementare accumulated in an internal
reserve fund which has an accumulated balance of$42.5
millionat December 31, 1996.

The FASH issued an exposure draft in February 1996 on
accounting for closure and removal of long-lived assets.
See Note 1 —"Depreciation, Amortization and Nuclear
Generating Plant Decommissioning Costs."

NRC Draft Policy Statement: In September 1996, the
NRC issued a draft policy statement on the Restructuring
and Economic Deregulauon of the Electric UtilityIndus-
try (DraftPolicy Statement). The Draft Policy Statement
addresses NRC's concerns about the adequacy ofdecom-
missioning funds and about the potential impact on oper-
ational safety. Current NRC regulations allow a utilityto
set aside decommissioning funds annually over the esti-
mated life ofa plant.

The policy statement declares the NRC will:
~ Continue to conduct reviews oF financial qualifications,

decommissioning funding and antitrust requirements
ofnuclear power plants;

~ Establish and maintain working relationships with state
and federal rate-r'egulqtors;

~ Evaluate the relative responsibilities ofpower plant
c~wners and co-licensees; and

~ Re-evaluate the adequacy of

currerit

regulation in light
ofeconomic and other changes resulting from rate
deregulation.
In addition, the Draft Policy Statement stresses that no

license may be transferred without prior written approvals
from the NRC. Prior written approvals are also required
for mergers,'ormation ofholding companies or the sale
offacilities, including a partial sale.

The Company participated in comments filed by the
UtilityDecommissioning Group in December 1996 in
response to the Draft Policy Statement. As noted therein,
the Company agrees with the NRC's views that the existing
regulatory framework provides reasonable assunnce of
the financial qualifications ofboth electric utilityand non-
electric utilityapplicants and licensees. IIowever, the Com-
pany does not.agree with the suggestion in the Draft Policy
Statement that a licensee who fails to meet the current
definition of"electric utility,"which mightoccur as a resiilt
of rate deregulation, must satisfy the more stringent
decommissioning funding assurance requirements applic-
able to nonelectric utilities. These requirements prohibit
a nonelectric utilitylicensee from funding decommission-
ing on a "pay-bayou-go" basis using an external trust. In
this regard, the Company encouraged the NRC to con-
sider whether the definition of"electric utility"continues
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to be the appropriate test ofwhether a licensee should be
exempt from up-front decommissioning or instead, a test
that takes into consideration all relevant factors of
the licensee.

In addition, the Company stated its concern that
the Draft Policy Statement suggested that power reactor

, licensees are "jointowners," which implies that the NRC
may seek to impose jointand Several liabilityon co-
owners for decommissioning funding obligations. The
Company stressed that c~wners ofnuclear power plants
are notjoint owners, and as such are notjointlyand
severally liable. The Company is unable to predict the
outcome of this matter.

Nuclear LiabilityInsurance: The AtomicEnergy Act
of 1954, as amended, requires the purchase ofnuclear
liabilityinsurance from the Nuclear Insurance Pools in
amounts as determined by the NRC. At the present time,
the Company maintains the required $200 millionof
nuclear liabilityinsurance.

In 1993, the statutory limitfor the protection of the
public under the Price-Anderson Amendments Actof 1988
were further increased. With respect to a nuclear incident
at a licensed reactor, the statutory limit,which is in excess
of the $200 millionofnuclear liabilityinsurance, is cur-
rently $8.3 billionwithout the 5% surcharge discussed
below This limitwould be funded by assess-ments ofup to
$75.5 million for each of the 110 presently licensed
nuclear reactors in the United States, payable at a rate not
to exceed $ 10 millionper reactor per year. Such assess-
ments are subject to periodic inflation indexing and to a
5% surcharge iffunds prove insuQicient to pay daims.
With the 5% surcharge included, the statutory limitis
$8.7 billion..

The Company's interest in Units 1 and 2 could expose
it to a maximum potential loss, for each accident, of
$ 111.8 million (with 5% assessment) through assessments
of$14.1 million per year in the event of a serious nuclear
accident at its own or another licensed U.S. commercial
nuclear reactor. The amendments also provide, among
other things, that insurance and indemnity willcover pre-
cautionary evacuations, whether or 'not a nuclear incident
actually occurs.

Nuclear Property Insurance: The Nine Mile Point
Nuclear Site has $500 million primary nuclear property
insurance with the Nuclear Insurance Pools (ANI/MRP).
In addition, tliere is $2,250 million in excess of the $500
million primary nuclear insurance with Nuclear El'ectric
In'surance Limited (NEIL). The total nuclear property '

insurance is $2.75 billion. NEIL also provides insurance
coverage against the extra expense incurred in purchas-
ing replacement power during prolonged accidental out-
ages. The insurance provides coverage for ou tages for 156
weeks, after a 21-week waiting period. NEIL insurance is

subject to retrospective premium adjustment under which
the Company could be assessed up to approximately
$ 12.7 million per loss.

LowLevel Radioactive Waste: The Company currently
uses the Barnwell, South Carolina waste disposal facility
low level radioactive waste, however, access to Barnwell i
denied by the State ofSouth Carolina to out ofregion low
level waste generators, including New York State fromJuly
1, 1994 toJuly 1, 1995. The Company also has implement-
ed a low level radioactive waste management program so
that Unit 1 and Unit2 are prepared to properly handle
interim onwite storage oflow level radioactive waste forat

'easta 10 year period.
Under the Federal LowLevel Waste Policy Amendment

Actof 1985, New York State was required, byJanuary 1,
1993 to have arranged for the disposal ofall low level
radioactive waste within the state or in the alternative,
contracted for the disposal at a facili'tyoutside the state.
New York State has made no funding available currently, to
support siting for a disposal facility.

Nuclear Fuel Disposal Cost: InJanuary 1983, the
Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982 (the Nuclear Waste Act)
established a cost of$ .001 per Kwh ofnet generation for
current disposal ofnuclear fuel and provides for a determi-
nation of the Company's liabilityto the DOE for the dis-
posal ofnuclear fuel irradiated prior to 1983. The Nuclear
Waste Act also provides three payment options for liquidat-
ing such liabilityand the Company has elected to delay
payment, with interest, until the year in which the Com-
pany initiallyplans to ship irradiated fuel to an approve
DOE disposal facility. Progress in developing the DOE
facilityhas been slow and it is anticipated that the DOE
facilitywillnot be ready to accept deliveries until at least
2010. However, inJuly 1996, the United States Circuit
Court ofAppeals for the DistrictofColumbia ruled that
the DOE must begin accepting used fuel from the nuclear
industry by 1998 even though a permanent storage site will
not, be ready by then. The DOE did not appeal this deci-
sion. The DOE's anticipatory breach of this contract will
likely involve further legal proceedings. The Company is
unable to determine the outcome of this matter.

The Company does not anticipate that the DOE will
accept all ofits spent fuel immediately upon opening of
'the facility,but rather expects a transfer period that will
extend to the year 2044. The Company has several alterna;
tives under consideration to provide additional storage
facilities, as necessary. Each alternative willlikelyrequire
NRG approval, may require other regulatory approvals and
would likely require incurring additional costs, which
the Company lias included in its decommissioning
estimates for both Unit 1 and its share ofUnit 2. The Com-
pany does not believe tliat'the possible unavailability of the
DOE disposal facilityuntil 2010 willinhibitoperation of
either Unit.
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NOTE 4 .Jointly -Owned
Generating Facilities

NOTE 5. Bank Credit
Arrangements

Roseton Steam
Station

Units No. 1 & 2 (a)... 25

Oswego Steam
Station

Unit No.6 (b)....... 76

Nine Mile Point
Nuclear Station

Unit No.2 (c)....... 41

$ 96,458 $ 51,449 $ 540

$ 270,136 $ 116,648 $ 299

$1,508,898 $297,922 $ 8,825

(a) The remaining ownership interests are Central Hudson, the operator
of the plant (35%), arid Consolidated Edison Company of New York,
Inc. (40%). Output of Roseton Units No. 1 and 2, which have a capa-
bilityof 1,200,000 Kw.„ is shared in the same proportions as the
cotenants'espective ownership interests.

(b) The Company is the operator. The remaining ownership interest is
RG&E (24%). Output of Oswego Unit No. 6, which has a capability
of 850,000 Kw., is shared in the same proportions as the

cotenants'espective

ownership interests.

The following table reflects the Company's share of
intly-owned generating facilities at December Sl, 1996.

The Company is required to provide its respective share
offinancing for any additions to the facilities. Power
output and related expenses are shared based on propor-
tionate ownership. The Company's share ofexpenses asso-
ciated with these facilities is included in the appropriate
operating expenses in the Consolidated Statements
ofIncome.

In thousands oi dollars

Construction
Percentage Utility Accumulated Work in
Ownership Plant Depreciation, Progress

During March 1996, the Company completed an $804
millionsenior debt facilitywith a bank group for the pur-
poses ofconsolidating and refinancing certain of the Com-
pany's existing working capital lines ofcredit and letter of
credit facilities and providing additional reserves ofbank
credit. This senior debt facilitywillenhance the
Company's financial flexibilityduring the period 1996
through June 1999. The senior debt facilityconsists ofa
$255 million term loan facility, a $ 125 million revolving
credit facilityand $424 millionfor letters ofcredit. The
letter ofcredit facilityprovides credit support for the
adjustable rate pollution control revenue bonds issued
through the NYSERDA discussed in Note 6. As ofDecem-
ber 31, 1996, the amount outstanding under the senior
debt facilitywas $542 million,consisting of$ 105 million
under the term loan facility, a $424 million letter ofcredit
and a $ 13 million letter ofcredit under the revolving
credit facility, leaving the Company with $262 millionof
borrowing capability under the facility. The facilityexpires
on June 30, 1999 (subject to earlier termination upon the
implementation of the Company's PowerChoice proposal
or any other significant restructuring plan). The interest
rate applicable to the facilityis variable based on certain
rate options available under the agreement and currently
approximates 7.38% (but capped at 15%).

The Company did not have any short-term debt out-
standing at December 31, 1996 and December Sl, 1995.
For the year'ended December 31, 1995, the daily average
outstanding short-term debt was $ 179.5 million, the
monthly weighted average interest rate was 6.43% and the
maximum amount ofshort-term debt outstanding was
$459.7 million. Comparable amounts for 1996 were
not material.

(c) The Company is the operator. The remaining ownership interests are
ULCO (18%), NYSEG (18%), RG&E (14%), and Central Hudson (9%).
Output of Unit 2, which has a capability of 1,143,000 Kw,, is shared
in the same proportions as the cotenants'espective ownershIp
interests. On December 30, 1996, LILCO and Brooklyn Union Gas
agreed to a merger that would create a new utility. It would take
effect in 12 to 18 months if endorsed by the stockholders of both
companies and by state and federal regulatory agencies. The new
company would retain its 18% ownership interest in Unit 2.
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NOTE 6. CaPitalization

Capital Stock,

The Company is authorized to issue 185,000,000 shares ofcommon stock, $ 1 par value; 3,400,000 shares ofpreferred
stock, $100 par value; 19,600,000 shares ofpreferred stock, $25 par value; and 8,000,000 shares ofpreference stock, $25 par
value. The table below summarizes changes in the capital stock issued and outstanding and the related capital accounts for
1994, 1995 and 1996:

Preferred Stock

Common Stock
$1 par value

Shares Amount*

December 31, 1993: 142,427,057 $142,427
Issued 1,884,409 1,884
Redemptions
Foreign currency

translation adjustment

$ 100 par value

Non-
Shares Redeemable* Redeemable*

2,394,000 $210,000 . $29,400 (a)

(18,000) — (1,800)

$25 par value Capital Stock
Premium and

Non- Expense
Shares Redeemable'edeemable* (Net)*

8,040,005 $ 80,000 $121,000 (a) $1,762,706
6,000,000 150,000 27,630

(1,266,000) — (31,650) (4,619)

(6,213)

December 31, 1994:
Issued
Redemptions
Foreign currency

translation adjustment

144,311,466 $ 144,311 - 2,376,000 $210,000 $27,600 (a) 12,774,005 $230,000 $ 89,350 (a) $1,779,504

20,657„,- 21 283

(18t000) — (1,800) (366,000) — (9,150) 1,319

3,141

December 31, 1995:
Issued
Redemptions
Foreign currency

translation adjustment

144,332,123 $144,332
33,091 33

2,358,000 $210,000 $25,800 (a) 12,408,005 $230,000 $ 80,200 (a) $1,784,247
214

(18,000) — (1,800) (344,000) — (8,600) (28)

(708)

ecember 31, 1996: '44,365,214 .S144,365 2,340,000 $210,000 - S24,000 (a) 12,064,005 $230,000 S 71,600 (a) $1,783,72

* In thousands ol dollars

(a) Includes sinking fund requirements due within one year,

The cumulative amount of foreign currency translation adjustment at December 31, 1996 was $(10,880).

Non-Redeemable Preferred Stock (Optionally Redeemable)

The Company has certain issues ofpreferred stock which provide for optional redemption at December 31, as follows:

Series Shares 1996
ln thousands ol dollars

1995
Redemption price per share

(Before adding accumulated dividends)

Preferred $100 par value:
3.40%
3.60%
3 90%
4.10%
4.85%
5.25%
6.10%
7.72%

200,000
'50,000

240,000
210,000
250,000
200,000
250,000
400,000

S 20,000
35,000
24,000
21,000 "

251000
20,000

'5,000
40,000 "

$ 20,000
35,000
24,000
21,000
25,000
20,000
25,000
40,000

$103.50
104.85
106.00
102.00
102.00
102.00
101.00
102.36

Preferred $25 par value:
9 50%

Adjustable Rate—
Series A
Series C

(a) Not redeemable until 1999,

6,000,000

1,200,000
2,000,000

'150)000

30,000
50)000

$44o,ooo

150,000

30,000
50,000

$440,000

25.00 (a)

25.00
25.00
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Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred Stock
AtDecember 31, the Company has certain issues ofpreferred stock;as detailed below, which provide formandatory and

optional redemption. These series require mandatory sinking funds forannual redemption and provide optional sinking
funds through which the Company may redeem, at par, a like amount ofadditional shares (limited to 120,000 shares of

7.45% series). The option to redeem additional amounts is not cumulative. The Company's five year mandatory sink-
fund redemption requirements for preferred stock, in thousands, for 1997 through 2001 are as follows: $8,870;

0,120; $7,620; $7,620; and $7,620, respectively. The aggregate preference ofpreferred shares upon involuntary liquida-
tion of the Company is the aggregate par value ofsuch shares, plus an amount equal to the dividends accumulated and
unpaid on such shares to the date ofpayment whether or not earned or declared.

Shares In thousands of dollars
Redemption price per share

(Before adding accumulated dividends)

Series

Preferred $100 par value:
7 45%

Preferred $25 par value:
7.85%
8.375%
9 75%
Adjustable Rate—
Series B

1996

240,000
"

914,005
200,000

1,750,000

1995

258,000

914,005
300,000
144,000

1,850,000

1996

'24,000
22)850

, 5,000

43,750

1995

$ 25,800

22,850
7,500
3,600

46,250

1996

S'l01.93

(a)
25.11
25.00

25.00

Eventual minimum

$ 100.00

25.00
25.00
25.00

25.00

Less sinking fund requirements
95,600 -.

8,870

S 86,730

106,000
9,150

$96,850

(a) Nol redeemable until 1997,

LOtlg-Term Debt Long-term debt at December 31, consisted of the following:

In thousands ofdolla/s In thousands ofdollars

Series Due 1996 1995 Series 1996 1995
First mortgage

5 /e'!
6 i/4%
6 i/%
9 i/3%
6 7/3%
9 i/4%
5 '/s't.
6 7/3%
7 3/e%

8%
6 s/3%
9 3/4%
73/ /

*6 s/ o/,

9 i/3%
8 3/4%
8 i/z%
7 7/e%

'8 7/3%
~7.2%

bonds:
1996
1997
1998
2000
2001
2001
2002
2003
2003
2004
2005
2005
2006
2013
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2029

S
40,000
60,000

150,000
210,000
100,000
230,000

85,000
220,000
300,000

'110,000
150,000

, 275,000
45,600

1501000
1501000
165,000:
210,000

75,000
115,705

S 45,000
40,000
60,000

150,000
210,000
100,000
230,000

85,000
220,000
300,000
'1 10,000
150,000

275,000'5,600

150,000
150,000
165,000
210,000

75,000
115,705

Promissory notes:
Adjustable Rate Series due

July 1, 2015
December 1, 2023
December 1, 2025
December 1, 2026
March 1, 2027
July 1, 2027

Term Loan Agreement
Unsecured notes payable:
Medium Term Notes,

Various rates, due 1996-2004
Revolving Credit Agreement
Other
Unamortized premium (discount)
TOTAL LONG-TERM DEBT
Less long-term debt due within one year

"Tax-exempt pollution control related issues

100,000
69)800
75,000
50,000
25>760
93,200

'05,000

100,000
69,800
75,000
50,000
25,760
93,200

20,000

156,606
(10,708)

3,525,963
48,084

30,000
170,000
159,198
(11,785)

3,647,478
65,064

$3,477,879 $3,582,414

Total First Mortgage Bonds ~224) 30> 2,886,305

Several series ofFirst Mortgage Bonds and Notes were issued to secure a like amount of tax-exempt revenue bonds
- issued by NYSERDA. Approximately $414 millionofsuch securities bear interest at a daily adjustable interest rate (with a

Company option to convert to other rates, including a fixed interest rate which would require the Company to issue First
Mortgage Bonds to secure the debt) which avenged 3.46% for 1996 and 3.82% for 1995 and are supported by bank direct
pay letters ofcredit. Pursuant to agreements between NYSERDAand the Company, proceeds from such issues were used
for the purpose offinancing the construction ofcertain pollution control facilities at the Company's generating facilities
or to refund outstanding tax~xempt bonds and notes (see Note 5).

Other long-term debt in 1996 consists ofobligations under capital leases ofapproximately $33.1 million, a liabilityto the
DOE for nuclear fuel disposal ofapproximately $ 108.6 millionand a liabilityfor IPP contract terininations ofapproxi-

ely $ 14.9 million.The aggregate maturities of long-term debt for the five years subsequent to December 31, 1996,
ding capital leases, in millions, are approximately $45, $64, $ 108, $ 158 and $310, respectively.
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ROTE 7. Federal and Foreign Income Taxes

See Note 9- "Tax Assessments."
Components ofUnited States and foreign income before income taxes:,

1996

In thousands oI dollars

1995 1994

United States.
Foreign
Consoiidaling eliminations

Income before extraordinary item and income taxes ..

$269)128
.) 281522

(17)402)

,
$280)248

$400,087
17,609

(10,267)

$407,429

$291,501
15,475

(18,523)

$288,453

Following is a summary of the components ofFederal and foreign income tax and a reconciliation between the amount

of Federal income tax expense reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income and the computed amount at the

statutory tax rate:

In thousands ot dollars

Components of Federal and foreign income taxes:
Current tax expense: Federal.

Foreign.

Deferred tax expense: „Federal.
Foreign.

1996'103,254

3>708

106>962

(21071)
692

1995

$ 67,563
3,900

71,463

82,323
2,222

1994

$117,314
4,423

121,737

(6,931)
3,028

(1)379) 84,545 (3,903)

Income taxes included in Operating Expenses.
Current Federal and foreign income tax credits included in

Other Income and Deductions.
Deferred Federal and foreign income tax expense

included in Other Income and Deductions

Total.

105,583

(7)243)

4,154

$102,494

156,008

(197)

3,582

$159,393

117,834

(11,507)

5,142

$111,469

Reconciliation between Federal and foreign income taxes and the tax computed

Computed tax

at prevallin
98,087

g U.S. statutory rate on income before income taxe

$ 142,601 $100,959

Increase (reduction) attributabie to flow-through of certain tax adjustments:

Depreciation.
Cost of removal.
Deferred investment lax credit amortization
Other

Federal and foreign income taxes,

28,103
(8>849)
(8)018)
(6,829)

4,407

$102,494

31,033
(9,247)
(8,589)
3,595

16,792

$159,393

33,328
(8,908)
(8,018)
(5,892)

10,510

$111,469

AtDecember Sl, the deferred tax liabilities (assets) were comprised of the following:

In thousands oI dollars

Alternative minimum tax .

Unbiiled revenue
Other ..

, Total deferred tax assets.

Depreciation related...
Investment tax credit related.
Other.

Total deferred tax liabilities

Accumulated deferred income taxes.

1996

S (64,313)
(83,577)

(237,850)

(385)740)

1,433,907
84,294

199,452

1,717,653

$1,331,913

*Does not include the deferred tm benefit of$56,273 associated with the

regulatory accounting principles.

1995

$ (82,869)
(77,675)

(248,275)

(408,819)

1,456,949
91,458

249,211

1,797,618

$ 11388,799

extraordinary item for the discontinuance o
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NOTE 8. Pension and Other Retirement Plans

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries have noncontributory, defined-benefit pension plans covering substantially
heir employees. Benefits are based on the employee's years ofservice and compensation level. The Company's general
cy is to fund the pension costs accrued with consideration given to the maximum amount that can be deducted for

ederal income tax purposes.
During 1994, the Company offered an early retirement program and a voluntary separation program (together the

VERP) to reduce the Company's staffing levels and streamline operations. The VERP, which included both represented
and non-represented employees, was accepted by approximately 1,400 employees. The program cost the Company
approximately $208 millionofwhich $11.4 million, related to the gas business, was deferred with recovery anticipated to
occur over a five year period, beginning in 1995.

Net pension cost for 1996, 1995 and 1994 included the followingcomponents:

Service cost —benefits earned during the period.
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation........
Actual return on plan assets...........,.......
Net amortization and deferral.

Net pension cost.
VERP costs.
Regulatory asset.

Total pension cost (1).

1996

$ 25>000
71,700

(134>100)
55>700

18>300

$ 18,300

In thousands of dollars

1995

$ 22,500-
73,000

(215,600)
140,300

20,200

$ 20,200

1994

$ 30,400
62,700

7,700
(63,600)

37,200
114,000

(6,200)

$145,000

(1) $3.8 million for 1996, $4.1 million for 1995 and $5.9 million for 1994 was related to construction labor and, accordingly,
was charged to construction projects.

The following table sets forth the plan's funded status and amounts recognized in the Company's Consolidated Balance
Sheets:

ecember 31,
Actuarial present value of accumulated benefit obligations:

Vested benefits
Non-vested benefits................................

Accumulated benefit obligations.
Additional amounts related to projected pay increases.

Projected benefits obligation for service rendered to date.
Plan assets at fair value, consisting primarily of listed stocks,

bonds, other fixed income obligations and insurance contracts ..
Plan assets in excess of projected benefit obligations.
Unrecognized net obligation at January 1, 1987 being recognized over

approximately 19 years .

Unrecognized net gain from actual return on plan assets different
from that assumed

Unrecognized net gain from past experience different from that
assumed and effects of changes in assumptions amortized over 10 years ..

Prior service cost not yet recognized in net periodic pension cost...........
Pension liability included in the consolidated balance sheets

1996

$ 803,202
83>107

886,309
141,472

1,027,781

(1,159,822)

(132,041)

(22>005)

219>680

66,129
(49,651)

$ 82,112

In thousands of dollars

1995

$ 777,584
64,383

841,967
135,115

977,082

(1,074,333)

(97,251)

(21,500)

198,035

46,982
(41,291)

$ 84,975

Principle Actuarial Assumptions (%):
Discount Rate.
Rate of increase in future compensation levels (pius merit increases) .
Long-term rate of return on plan assets

7.50
2.50
9.25

7.50
2.50
9.25
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In addition to providing pension benefits, the Company and its subsidiaries provide certain health. care and life insur-
ance benefits for active and retired employees and dependents. Under current policies, substantially all of the Company's
employees may be eligible for continuation ofsome of these benefits upon normal or early retirement.

The Company accounts for the cost of these benefits in accordance with PSC policy requirements which generally com-

ply with SFAS No. 106. The Company has established various trusts to fund its future postretirement benefit obligation.
1996, 1995 and 1994, the Company made contributions to such trusts ofapproximately $28.5 million,$53.1 millionan

$24 million, respectively. Contributions made in 1996 and 1994 represented the ainount received in rates, while the
amount contributed in 1995 represented the amount received in rates, certain capital portions of the postretirement
benefit obligation and amounts received from cotenants.

Net postretirement benefit cost for 1996, 1995 and 1994 included the followingcomponents:

1996
In thousands ol dollars

1995 1994

Service cost —benefits attributed to service during the period
Interest cost on accumulated benefit obligation.
Actual return on plan assets.
Amortization of the transition obligation over 20 years.
Net amortization.

Net postretirement benefit cost.
VERP costs.
Regulatory asset.

$12,900
37,500

(12,900)
13,500

6,000

57>000

$12,600
45,400

(11,200)
18,800
14,600

80,200

$ 15,000
40,200

(900)
20,200

8,900

83,400
80,200
(4,300)

Total postretirement benefit cost $ 57>000 $80,200 $159,300

The following table sets forth the plan's funded status and amounts recognized in the Company's Consolidated Balance
Sheets:

In thousands ol dollars

At December 31,

Actuarial present value of accumulated benefit obligations:
Retired and surviving spouses.
Active eligible .,
Active ineligible .

Accumulated benefit obligation
Plan assets at fair value, consisting primarily of listed stocks, bonds and other fixed obligations

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation in excess of plan assets.
Unrecognized net loss from past experience different from that assumed and effects of changes in
assumptions .

Prior service cost not yet recognized in postretirement benefit cost .

Unrecognized transition obligation to be amortized over 20 years .

Accrued postretirement benefit liability included in the consolidated balance sheet...

1996

$370,259
31,030
69 441

470,730
(143,071)

327>659

(36,048)
39>205

(174,240)

$ 156>576

1995

$397,547
24,374

2143 7

636,288
(101,721)

534,567

(55,899)

(318,596)

$160,072

Principle actuarial assumptions (%):
Discount rate.
Long-term rate of return on plan assets.
Health care cost trend rate:

Pre-65.
Post-65

7.50
8.00

8.00
6.50

7.50
9.25

8.25
5.25

During 1996, the Company changed the eligibilityrequirements for plan benefits for employees who willretire after
May 1, 1996. Generally, plan benefits are now accrued for eligible participants beginning after age 45. Previous to this
change, the Company accrued these benefits over the employees'ervice life. The effect of this change resulted in a

decrease in the accumulated benefit obligation for active ineligible employees, as shown in the table above.

AtDecember 31, 1996, the assumed health cost trend rates gradually decline to 5.0% in 2000. Ifthe health care cost
trend rate was increased by one percent, the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation as ofDecember 31, 1996
would increase by approximately 8.6% and the aggregate of the service and interest cost component ofnet periodic
postretirement benefit cost for the year would increase by approximately 10.3%.

The Company recognizes the obligation to provide postemployment benefits ifthe obligation is attributable to employ-
ees'ast services, rights to those benefits are vested, payment is probable and the amount of the benefits can be reason-

ably estimated. AtDecember 31, 1996 and 1995, the Company's postemployment benefit obligation is approximately $ 13

millionand $ 12.5 million, respectively, including the portion of the obligation related to the VERP.
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NOTE 9. Commitments
and Contingencies

ee Note 2 and Note 5.

Long-term Contracts for the Purchase ofElectric
Power: Atjanuary I, 1997, the Company had long-term.
contracts to purchase electric power from thc following
generating facilities owned by NYPA:

Facilily

Niagara
hydroefectric project...

SL Lawrence
hydroelectric project...

Blenheim-Gilboa
pumped storage
generating station ....

Fltzpefrfck
nuclear lant ........

Expiration Purchased Estimated
Date of Capacity Annual

Contract in Kw. Capacity Cost

2007 936,000 $26,176,000

2007 104,000 1,300,000

2002 270,000 7,500,000

2014 110,000 1 4,785,000

1,420,000 $39,761,000

1997
1998
1999
2000
2001

$223,880
247,740
252,130
242,030
244,620

$40,510
41,420
42,450
44,080
45,650

S 873,030
906,590
943,720
974,080

1,042,380

$ 1,137,420
1,195,750
1,238,300
1,260,190
1,332,650

(a) 110,000 Kw through May 1997; 26,000 Kw thereafter

The purchase capacities shown above are based on the
contracts currently in effec. The estimated annual capac-
ity costs are subject to price escalation and are exclusive of

licable energy charges. The total cost'of purchases
k er these contracts was approximately, in millions,

.3, $92.5 and $85.1 for the years 1996, 1995 and
1994, respectively.

Under the requirements of the Federal Public Utility
Regulatory Policies Act of1978, the Company is required
to purchase power generated by IPPs, as defined therein.
The Company has 157 IPP contracts, ofwhich 148 are on
line, amounting to approximately 2,710 MWofcapacity at
December 31, 1996. Of this amount 2,406 MW is consid-
ered firm. The following table shows the payments for
fixed and other capacity costs, and energy and related
tmes the Company estimates itwillbe obligated to make
under these contracts without giving effect, to the IPP
agreement-in-principle. The payments are subject to the
tested capacity and availability of the facilities, scheduling
and price escalation.

In thousands ofdollars
Schedulabte Fixed Costs Energy

Year Capacity Other and Taxes Total

The capacity and other fixed costs relate to contracts
with 11 facilities where the Company is required to make
capacity and other fixed payments, including payments
when a facility is not operating but available for service.
These 11 facilities account forapproximately 774 MWof
capacity, with contract lengths ranging from 20 to 35 years.
The terms of these existing contracts allow the Company
to schedule energy deliveries from the facilities and then
pay for the energy delivered. The Company estimates the
fixed payments under these contracts willaggregate to
approximately $8 billiondollars over their terms, using
escalated contract rates. Contracts relating to the remain-
ing facilities in service at December 31, 1996, require the
Company to pay only when energy is delivered, except
when the Company decides that it,would be better to pay
a particular project a reduced energy payment to liave
the project reduce its high priced energy deliveries as
described below. The Company currently recovers schedu-
lable capacity through base rates and energy payments,
taxes and other schedulable fixed costs through thc FAG.
The Company paid approximately $ 1,088 million,$980
millionand $960 million in 1996, 1995 and 1994 for

'3,800,000MWh, 14,000,000 MWh and 14,800,000 MWh,
respectively, ofelectric powe'r under all IPP contracts.

On March 10, 1997, the Company and 19 developers of
IPP projectsjointly announced an agrcemcnt-in-principle
to terminate or restructure 44 power purchase contracts.
Tliese contracts represent more than 90% of the Com-,
pany's above-market power costs under all existing IPP
contracts. The agreement contemplates that the Company
would terminate or restructure the 44 power contracts in
exchange for approximately $3.6 billion in cash and/or
marketable debt securities, and 46 millionshares of the
Company's common stock, representing approximately
25% of the anticipated fullydiluted outstanding common
shares. The new debt willbe subordinate to existing first
mortgage bonds. The value of the common equity will'vary
depending on the market value of the shares at closing. In
addition, the Company and several IPPs would enter into
new agreements that would further compensate the IPPs
and hedge prices for specific amounts ofpower. (As noted
in Management's Discussion and Analysis ofFinancial
Condition and Results ofOperations —"Announced
Agreement-in-Principle to Terminate or Restructure 44
IPP Contracts," implementation of these arrangements are
subject to a number ofcontingencies.)

Separate from the agreement-in-principle, the Company
has negotiated three long term and sixteen limited term
contract amendments whereby the Company can reduce
thc energy deliveries from the facilities. These reduced
energy agrccmenis resulted in a reduction of IPP dcliver-
ics ofapproximately 984,000 Mwh during 1996. The
Company expects to continue efforts of these types
into the future, to control its power supply and related
costs, but at this time cannot predict the outcome of
such efforts.
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Sale of Customer Receivables: The parent Company
has established a single-purpose whollywwned financing
subsidiary, NMReceivables Corp., whose business consists
of the purchase and resale ofan undivided interest in a
designated pool ofcustomer receivables, including
accrued unbilled revenues. For receivables sold, the Com-

pany has retained collection and administrative responsi-
bilities as agent for the purchaser. As collections reduce
previously sold undivided interests, new receivables are
customarily sold. NMReceivables Corp. has its own sepa-
rate creditors which, upon liquidation ofNM Receivables
Corp., willbe entitled to be satisfied out of its assets prior
to any value becoming available to its equity holders. The
sale of receivables are in fee simple for a reasonably equiva-
lent value and are not secured loans. Some receivables
have been contributed in the form ofa capital contribu-
tion to NM Receivables Corp. in fee simple for reasonably
equivalent value, and all receivables transferred to NM
Receivables Corp. are assets owned by NMReceivables
Corp. in fee simple and are not available to pay the parent
Company's creditors.

AtDecember 31, 1996 and 1995, $250 millionofreceiv-
ables had been sold by NM Receivables Corp. to a third
party. The undivided interest in the designated pool of
receivables was sold with limited recourse. The agreement
provides for a formula based loss reserve pursuant to
which additional customer receivables are assigned to the
purchaser to protect against bad debts. AtDecember 31,
1996, the amount ofadditional receivables assigned to the
purchaser, as a loss reserve, was approximately $85.8 mil-
lion. Although this represents the formula-based amount
ofcredit exposure at December 31, 1996 under the agree-
ment, historical losses have been substantially less.

To the extent actual loss experience of the pool receiv-
ables exceeds the loss reserve, the purchaser absorbs the
excess. Concentrations ofcredit risk to the purchaser with
respect to accounts receivable are limited due to the Com-
pany's large, diverse customer base within its service terri-
tory. The Company generally does not require collateral,
i.e., customer deposits.

Tax assessments: The. Internal Revenue Service (IRS)
has conducted an examination of the Company's Federal
income tax returns for the years 1987 and 1988 and has
submitted a Revenue Agents'eport to the Company. The
IRS has proposed various adjustments to the Company's
Federal income tax liabilityfor these years which could
increase the Company's Federal income tax liabilityby
approximately $80 million, before assessment ofpenalties
and interest. Included in these proposed adjustments are
several significant issues involvingUnit 2. Tlie Company is

vigorously defending its position on each of the issues, and
submitted a protest to the IRS in 1993. Pursuant to the
Unit 2 settlement entered into with the PSC in 1990, to the
extent the IRS is able to sustain adjustments, the Company
willbe required to absorb a portion ofany assessment. The
Company believes any such disallowance willnot have a
material impact on its financial position or results ofoper-
ations under traditional cost-of service based ratemaking.
The Company is currently attempting to finalize a settle-
ment of these issues with the Appeals Division of the IRS.

In addition, the IRS has conducted an examination of
the Company's federal income tax returns for the years
1989 and 1990 and issued a Revenue Agents'eport.
The IRS has raised the issue concerning the deductibility
ofpayments made to IPPs in accordance with certain
contracts that include a provision for a tracking accoun
A tracking account represents amounts that these man-
dated contracts required the Company to pay IPPs in
excess of the Company's avoided costs, including a
carrying charge. The IRS proposes to disallow a current
deduction for amounts paid in excess of the avoided costs
of the Company. Although the Company believes that any
such disallowances for the years 1989 and 1990 willnot
have a material impact on its financial position or results
ofoperations, itbelieves that a disallowance for these
above-market payments for the years subsequent to 1990
could have a material adverse affect on its cash flows. To
the extent that contracts involving tracking accounts are
terminated or restructured under the agreement-in-
principle with IPPs as described in Note 2, then it is possi-
ble that the effects ofany proposed disallowance would be
mitigated. The Company is vigorously defending its posi-
tion on this issue. The IRS has commenced its examination
of the Company's Federal income tax returns for the years
1991 through 1993.

Litigation: In March 1993, Inter-Power ofNew York, Inc.
(Inter-Power), filed a complaint against the Company and
certain ofits officers and employees in the NYS Supreme
Court. Inter-Power alleged, among other matters, fraud,
negligent misrepresentation and brcach ofcontract in
connection with the Company's alleged termination of
PPAin January'1993. The plaintiffsought,enforcement
the original contract or compensatory and punitive dam-.
ages in an aggregate amount that would not exceed $ 1

billion, excluding prejudgment interest.
In early 1994, the NYS Supreme Court dismissed two

of the plaintifFs claims; this dismissal was upheld by
the Appellate Division, Third Department of the NYS
Supreme Court. Subsequently, the NYS Supreme Court
granted the Company's motion for summaryjudgment on
the remaining causes ofaction in Inter-Power's complaint.
In August 1994, Inter-Power appealed this decision and on
July 27, 1995, the Appellate Division, Third Department
affirmed the granting ofsummaryjudgment as to all
counts, except for one dealing with an alleged breach of
the PPA relating to the Company's having declared the
agreement null and void on the grounds thatInter-Power
had failed to provide itwith information regarding its fuel
supply in a timely fashion. This one breach ofcontract
claim was remanded to the NYS Supreme Court for further
consideration. Discovery on this one breach ofcontract
claim is currently in progress.

The Company is unable to predict the ultimate disposi-
tion of this lawsuit. However, the Company believes ithas
meritorious defenses and intends to defend this lawsuit
vigorously, but can neither provide anyjudgment regard-
ing the likelyoutcome nor provide any estimate or range
ofpossible loss. Accordingly, no provision for liability,if
any, that may result from this lawsuit has been made in
Company's financial statements.
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'nvironmental Contingencies: The public utilityindus-
try typically utilizes and/or generates in its operations
a broad range ofpotentially hazardous wastes and
by-products. The Company believes it is handling identi-

d wastes and by-products in a manner consistent with
eral, state and local requirements and has imple-
nted an environmental audit program to identify any

*, potential areas ofconcern and assure compliance with
such requirements. The Company is also currently con-

'ucting a program to investigate and restore, as necessary
to meet current environmental standards, certain proper-
ties associated with its former gas manufacturing process
and other properties ivhich the Company has learned may
be contaminated with industrial waste, as well as irivestigat-
ing identified industrial waste sites as to which itmay be
determined that the Company contributed. The Company
has also been advised that various Federal, state or local
agencies believe certain properties require investigation
and has prioritized the sites based on available information
in order to enhance the management ofinvestigation and
remediation', ifnecessary.

The Company is currently aware of85 sites with which it
has been or may be associated, including 42 which are
Company-owned. With respect to non-owned sites, the
Company may be required to contribute some proportion-

.ate share ofremedial costs.
Investigations at each of the Company-owned sites are

designed to (1) determine ifenvironmental contamina-
" tion problems exist, (2) ifnecessary, determine the appro-

priate remedial actions required for site restoration and
(3) where appropriate, identify other parties who should

some or all of the cost ofremediation. Legal action
st such other parties willbe initiated where appropri-

. Aftersite investigations are completed, the Company
expects to determine site-specific r'emedial actions and to
estimate the attendant costs for restoration. However, since
technologies are still developing the ultimate cost of reme-'ial actions may change substantially.

Estimates of the cost ofremediation and post-remedial
monitoring are based upon a variety offactors, including
identified or potential contaminants, location, size and use
of the site, proximity to sensitive resources, status of regu-
latory investigation and knowledge ofactivities at similarly
situated sites, and the EPA figure for average cost to reme-
diate a site. Actual Company expenditures are dependent
upon the total cost ofinvestigation and remediation and
the ultimate determination of the Company's share of
responsibility for such costs, as well as the financial viability
ofother identified responsible parties since clean-up oblig-
ations are joint and several. The Company has denied any
responsibility in certain of tliese PRP sites and is contesting
liabilityaccordingly.

As a consequence ofsite characterizations and assess-
ments completed to date and negotiations with PRP's, the
Company has a'ccrued a liabilityin the amount of$225
million,which is reflected in'the Company's Consolidated
Balance Sheets at both December 31, 1996 and 1995. This
represents the low end of the range of its share of the

eestimated cost for investigation and remediation. The

potential high end of the range is presently estimated at
approximately $850 million, including approximately
$340 million in the unlikely event the Company is required
to assume 100% responsibility at nonwwned sites. In addi-
tion, the Company has recorded a regulatory asset repre-
senting the remediation obligations to be recovered from
ratepayers. The Company expects under PowerChoiee.
that the regulatory asset willbe recovered in rates charged
to customers.

Where appropriate, the Company has provided notices
ofinsurance claims to carriers with respect to the investiga-
tion and remediation costs for manufactured gas plant,
industrial waste sites and sites for ivhich the Company has
been identified as a PRP. The Company has settled some of
these claims and continues to pursue others, but is unable'o

predict what the ratemaking disposition oF the proceeds
willbe.

Construction Program: The Company is committed
to'n

ongoing construction program to assure delivery of its
electric and gas services. The Company presently estimates
that the construction program for the years 1997 through
-2001 >vill require approximately $ 1.4 billion, excluding
AFC and nuclear fuel. For the years 1997 through 2001,
the estimates, in millions, are $293, $298, $269, $264 and
$265, respectively, which includes $24, $30, $25, $23 and
$21, respectively, related to non-nuclear generation. These
amounts are reviewed by management as circumstances
dictate.

Under the Company's PowerChoiee proposal, the
Company proposes to separate the Company's non-,
nuclear power generation businesssrom the remainder
of the business.

NOTE l0. Disclosures about Eair
Value ofEinancial Instruments

The followingmethods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair value ofeach class offinancial
instruments:

Cash and short-term investments: The carrying amount
approximates fairvalue because of the short maturity of
the financial instruments.

Long-<erm debt and mandatorHy redeemable preferred
stock: The fair value offixed rate long-term debt and
redeemable preferred stock is estimated using quoted
market prices ivhere available or discounting remaining
cash flows at the Company's incremental borrowing rate.
The carrying value ofNYSERDA bonds and other long-
term debt are considered to approximate fairvalue.

The financial instruments held or issued by the Com-
pany are for purposes other than trading. The estimated
fairvalues of the Company's financial instruments are
as follows:
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In thousands ol dollars

1995

At December 31,

Cash and short-term investments
Mandatorily redeemable preferred stock ..
Long-term debt: First Mortgage bonds.

Medium.term notes
Promissory notes.
Other

Carrying
Amount

S 325>398
95,600

'2,841,305
20,000

413,760
228>461

Fair
'alue

S 325,398
86>51 6

, 2>690,707
21 >84

413,760
228>461

Carrying
Amount

$ 153,475
106,000

F466,305
30,000

413,760
292,436

Fair
Value

$ 153,4
92,6

2,815,20
31,826

413,760
292,436

The Company's investments in debt and equity securities consist of trust funds for the purpose offunding the nuclear
decommissioning ofUnit 1 and its share ofUnit2 (See Note 3-"Nuclear Plant Decommissioning" ), short term invest-
ments held by Opinac Energy Corporation (a subsidiary) and a trust fund for certain pension benefits. The Company has

classified all investments in debt and equity securities as available for sale and has recorded all such invesunents at their
fair market value at December 31, 1996. The proceeds from the sale ofinvestments were $99.4 million,$70.8 millionand

$ 104.6 million in 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively. Net realized and unrealized gains and losses related to the nuclear
decommissioning trust are reflected in "Accumulated depreciation and amortization" on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets, which is consistent with the method used by the Company to account for the decommissioning costs recovered in
rates. The unrealized gains and losses related to the investments held by Opinac Energy Corporation and the pension
trust are included, net of tax, in "Common stockholders'quity" on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, while the realized
gains and losses are included in "Other items (net)" on the Consolidated Income Statements. The recorded fair values
and cost basis of the Company's investments in debt and equity securities is as follows:

At December 31, '1996
In thousands of dollars

1995

Security
Type

Gross
,

Cost Unrealized Fair Value
Gain (Loss)

'ross
Cost Unrealized Fair Value

Gain (Loss)

U.S. Government Obligations .

Commercial Paper .

Tax Exempt Obligations......
Corporate Obligations .......
Other

S 24>782
90>495
75,590
62,723

2 586

S 1,530 $ (33) $ 26,279
739 — . 91,234

3,20S (147) 78,652
8,524 '422), 70,825

256

$ 16,271
47,105
66,155
45,279

0

$ 3,009 $
1,019
3,830 (72)
5,399 (344)

945

$ 19,280
48,124
69,9
50
10,9

$256>176 $14 002 $ (602) ', $269>576 $184 832 $ 14 202 $ (416) $ 198 618

Using the specific identification method to determine cost, the gross realized gains and gross realized losses were:

Year Ended December 31

Realized gains
Realized losses .....

1996

$2,121
806

In thousands of dollars

1995

$2,523
328

1994

$ 1 ~ 123
1,637

'he

contractual maturities of the Company's investments in debt securities is as follows:

At December 31, 1996:

In thousands of dollars

Fair Value Cost

Less than 1 year
1 year to 5 years
5 years to 10 years .

Due alter 10 years ...

$93,485
10,494
38,543
97,378

$92,523
10,201
36,969
92,787
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NOTE 11. Information Regarding the Electric,and Gas Businesses

The Company is engaged principally in the business ofproduction, purchase, transmission, distribution and sale of
tricityand the purchase, distribution, sale and transportation ofgas in New York State. The Company provides electric
ce to the public in an area ofNew York State having a total population ofabout 3,500,000, including among others,

ie cities ofBuffalo, Syracuse, Albany, Utica, Schenectady, Niagara Falls, Watertown and Troy."The Company distributes or
transports natural gas in areas ofcentral, northern and eastern New York having a total population ofabout 1,700,000
nearly all within the Company's electric service area. Certain information regarding the Company's electric and natural gas
segments is set forth in the following table. General corporate expenses, property common to both segments and deprecia-
tion ofsuch common property have been allocated to the segments in accordance with the practice established for regula-
tory purposes. Identifiable assets include net utilityplant, materials and supplies, deferred finance charges, deferred
recoverable energy costs and certain other regulatory and other assets. Corporate assets consist ofother property and
investments, cash, accounts receivable, prepayments, unamortized debt expense and certain other regulatory and other
assets. AtDecember 31, 1996, total plant assets consisted ofapproximately 24% Nuclear, 20% Fossil/Hydro, 42% Transmis-
sion and Distribution, 11% Gas and 3% Common.

Operating revenues:
Electric
Gas.

Total

Operating income before taxes:
Electric ................
Gas.

Total

1996

S 3>308,979
681,674

S 3,990,653

S 438>590
83,?48

S 522,338

In thousands ofdolls
1995

$ 3,335,548
581,790

$ 3,917,338

$ 587,282
96,752

$ 684,034

1994

$3,528,987
623,191

$4,152,178

$ 469,371
'0,836

$ 550,207

Pretax operating income, including AFC:
Electric ........................
Gas

Total,
Income taxes, Included In operating expenses:

Electric .............................
Gas

Total

Other (income) and deductions ..
Interest charges .

Income before extraordinary item

S, 445,651
84,042

529,693

82,663
22>920

105,583

(35,367)
,281>723

S 177,754

$ 595,970
97,114

693,084

129,556
26,452

156,008

1,379
287,661

$ 248,036

$ 478,087
81,199

'591286

92,469
25,365

117,834

(21,410)
285,878

$ 176,984

Depreciation and amortization:
Electric .

Gas

Total

S 302,825
2?,002

$ 329>827 )

$ 292,995
24,836

$ 317,831

$ 281,301
27,050

S 308,351

Construction expenditures (including nuclear fuel):
Electric .
Gas

Total

$ 277,505
74,544

S 352,049

$ 285,722
60,082

$ 345,804

$ 376,159
113,965

S 490,124

identifiable assets:
Electric .....
Gas

Total .

Corporate assets.

Total assets .

d $196,65 f E P peses.

S 7,346,765
'f,203,184

8,549,949
. 852>081

S 9,402,030

S 7,592,287
1,123,045

8,715,332
762,537

S 9,477,869

$7,759,549
1,093,812

8,853,361
796,455

$9,649,816
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NOTE 12. Quarterly Einaneial Data '(Unaudited)

Operating revenues, operating income, net income and earnings per common share by quarters from 1996, 1995 and

1994, respectively, are shown in the following table. The Company, in its opinion, has included all adjustments necessa

for a fair presentation of the results oF operations for the quarters. Due to the seasonal nature of the uulitybustness, the
annual amounts are not generated evenly by quarter during the year. The Company's quarterly resul(s oF operations
reflect the seasonal nature of its business, with peak electric loads in summer and winter periods. Gas sales peak in
the winter.

In thousands ofdollars

Quarter
Ended

Operating
revenues

Operating
income
(loss)

Net
income
Joss)

Earnings (loss)
per

common share

>pemtte~AQ9
1995
1994

etttemtter QQ~Q6
1995
1994

966,478 113,510
1,018,110 (10,536)

887,231 114,126
918,810 108,937

27,874
(77,422)

SiLL2,QI6)
46,941
48,383

(.24)
.13

(.61)

US)
.26
.27

wntLQQAQ
1995
1994

938,816 121,985 54,485
979,700 130,624 67,559

S 30
.31
.42

JL0~6
1995
1994

U~63 063
1,124,813
1,235,558

@58+0 L r'—8ggp
178,405 118,738
203,348 138,464

'.75
.92

In the fourth quarter of 1996 the Company recorded an extraordinary item for the discontinuance ofregulatory
accounting principles of$ 103.6 million (47 cents per common sharc).

In the third quarter of 1996 the Company increased the allowance for doubtful accounts by $68.5 million (31 cents per
common share).

In the fourth quarter of 1994 the Company recorded $196.6 million (89 cents per common share) for the electric
expense allocation of the VERP. In the fourth quarters of1994 and 1995, the Company recorded, $ 12.3 million (P cent.

per common share) and $16.9 million (8 cents per common share), respectively, for MERITearned in accordance with
the 1991 Agreement.

l
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Market Price ofCommon Stock and Refated Stockholder Matters

The Company's common stock and certain ofits pre-
red series are listed on the New York Stock Exchange
SE). The common stock is also traded on the Boston,

mcinnati, Midwest, Pacific and Philadelphia stock
exchanges. Common stock options are traded on the
American Stock Exchange. The ticker symbol is "NMK".

Preferred dividends were paid on March SI,June 30,
September 30 and December Sl. The Company estimates
that none of the 1996 preferred stock dividends willconsti-
tute a return ofcapital and therefore all ofsuch dividends
are subject to Federal tax as ordinary income.

The table below shows quoted market prices (NYSE) for
the Company's common stock:

1996
Price Range

High Low

1st Quarter
2nd Quarter
3rd Quarter
4th Quarter

1995

1st Quarter
2nd Quarter
3rd Quarter
4lh Quarter

$ 10%
8'/s
8'/s

10

$ 15s/s

15/s
14s/s

13s/s

56M
6N
6s/4

7s/s

$ 13s/s

13s/s

11|/.
9/

The Company paid dividends of28 cents per common
iare in each of the four quarters of 1995. The board of

ctors omitted the common stock dividend for all of
6 and the firstquarter of 1997. This action was taken

o help stabilize the Company's financial condition and
provide flexibilityas the Company addresses growing
pressure from mandated power purchases and weaker
sales and is the primary reason for the increase in the
cash balance. See Management's Discussion and Analysis
ofFinancial Condition and Results ofOperations —"Finan-
cial Position, Liquidityand Capital Resources —Common
Stock Dividend" below. In making future dividend deci-
sions, the board willevaluate, along with standard business
considerations, the financial condition and contractual
obligations of the Company, the progress on concluding
negotiations and implementing the termination or
restructuring of IPP contracts and PowerChoice, or the
failure to implement such actions, the degree ofcompeti-

Size of Holding
(Shares) Total Stockholders = Total Shares Held

1 to 99
100 to 999

1,000 or more

33,201
37,787

4,144

75I132

889,029
9,313,655

134,187,935

144,390,619

tive pressure on its prices, the level ofavailable cash flow
and retained earnings and other strategic considerations.

Other Stockholder Matters. The holders ofcommon
stock are entitled to one vote per share and may not cumu-
late their votes for the election ofDirectors. Whenever
dividends on preferred stock are in default in an amount
equivalent to four fullquarterly dividends and thereafter
until all dividends thereon are paid or declared and 'set
aside for payment, the holders ofsuch preferred stock can
elect a majority of the board ofdirectors. Whenever divi-

'endson any preference stock are in default in an amount
equivalent to six fullquarterly dividends and thereafter
until all dividends thereon are paid or declared and set
aside for payment, the holders ofsuch stock can elect two
members to the board ofdirectors. No dividends on pre-
ferred stock are now in arrears and no preference stock is
now outstanding. Upon any dissolution, liquidation or
winding up of the Company's business, the holders of
common stock are entitled to receive a pro rate share ofall
of the Company's assets remaining and available for distri-
bution after the fullamounts to which holders of
preferred and preference stock are entitled liave been
satisfied.

The indenture securing the Company's mortgage debt
provides that retained earnings shall be reserved and held
unavailable for the payment ofdividends on common
stock to the extent that expenditures for maintenance and
repairs plus provisions for depreciation do not exceed
2.25% ofdepreciable property as defined therein. Such
provisions have never resulted in a restriction 'of the Com-
pany's retained earnings.

As ofMarch 18, 1997, there were approximately 75,100
holders ofrecord ofcommon stock of the Company and

'bout5,400 holders ofrecord ofpreferred stock. The
chart below summarizes common stockholder ownership
by size ofholding:

EARNED RATE OF RETURN ON COMMON EQUITY TOTAL ELECTRICAND GAS OPERATING REVENUES (MttNNSCFOalAf@
GAS ELECTRIC

1992

1993

1994

.10.1%

......10.2%

58%

.8.4%

2.8%

1992
$554 $3,148

1993
$601 $3.332

1994
$623 $3.523

1995

1996

..$3,702

..$3,933

.......$ 4,152

...$ 3,917

..$3,991

N I A G A R A M 0 H A W Ik P 0 W E R C 0 R P 0 R A 7 I 0 N

I-47



Selected Consolzdated Einancial Data
The following table sets forth selected financial information of the Company for each ofthe five years during the period

ended December 31, 1996, which has been derived from the audited financial statements of the Company, and should be

read in connection therewith. As discussed in "Management's Discussion and Analysis ofFinancial Condition and Results

ofOperations" and "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements," the followingselected financial data may not be indic
tive of the Company's future financial condition or results ofoperations.

1996" 1995 1994 1993 1992

Operations: (000's)
Operating revenues.
Net income .

$3,990,653
110,390

$3,917,338
248,036

$4,152,178 $3,933,431
176,984 271,831

$3 701 527
256,432

Common stock data:
Book value per share at year end.
Market price at year end.
Ratio of market price to book value at year end...
Dividend yield at year end.
Earnings per average common share ..........
Rate of return on common equity.
Dividends paid per common share.
Dividend payout ratio

Capitalization: (000's)
Common equity.
Non-redeemable preferred stock.
Mandatorily redeemable preferred stock...
Long-term debt

Total.
Long. term debt maturing within one year

$ 17.91
9 '/4

55 1%

S .50
2.8%S—

$2,585,572
440,000

86,730
3,477,879

6,590,181
48,084

$17.42
9 I/2

54 5%
1 1.8%

$ 1.44
8.4%

$ 1.12
77.8%

$2,513,952
440,000

96,850
3,582,414

6,633,216
65,064

$17.06
14'/4

83.5%
7.9

$ 1.00
58%

$ 1.09
109 0%

$2,462,398
440,000
106,000

3,297,874

6,306,272
77,971

$17.25
20'/

117.4%
4.9

$ 1.71
10.2%

$ .95
55 6%

$2,456,465
290,000
123,200

3,258,612

6,128,277
216,185

$16.33
19'/I

1,17.1%
4.2%

$ 1.61
10 1%

$ .76
47.2%

$2,240,441
290,000
170,400

3,491,059

6,191,900
57,722

Total. $6,638,265 $6,698,280 $6,384,243 $6,344,462 $6,249,622

Capitalization ratios:
(including iong. term debt maturing within one year)

Common stock equity
Preferred stock
Long-term debt

39.0%
7.9

53.1

37.5%
8.0

54.5

38 6%
8.5

52.9 ~

38.7%
6.5

54.8

35.8%
7.4

56.8

Financial ratios:
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges without AFC............
Ratio of AFC to balance available for common stock........
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges and preferred
stock dividends .
Other ratios -% of operating revenues:

Fuel, purchased power and purchased gas .............
Other operation expenses and maintenance.............
Depreciation and amortization
Total taxes, incl. real property, income and revenue taxes ..
Operating income
Balance available for common stock...................

1.57
1.55
10.2%

1.31

43.5%
23.3

8.3
13.6
10.4

1.8

2.29
2.26
43%

1.90

40 3%
20.9

8.1
17.3
13.5
5.3

1.91
1.89
6.3%

2.31
2.26

6.8%

1.63 2.00

39.6% 36.1%
23.1 ' 26.9

7,4 7.0
14.7 16.2
10.4 13.3
3.5 6.1

2.24
2.17

97%

1.90

34.1%
26.3

7.4
17.3
14.2
5.9

Miscellaneous: (000's)
Gross additions to utilityplant.
Total utilityplant
Accumulated depreciation and amortization...
Total assets.....

S 352,049
10,839,341

3,881,726
9,402,030

S 345,804
10,649,301
3,641,448
9,477,869

S 490,124
10,485,339
3,449,696
9,649,816

S 519,612
10,108,529
, 3,231,237

9,471,327

$ 502,244
9,642,262
2,975,977
8,590,535

'mounts include extraordinary item, see Note 2. Rate and Regulatory Issues and Contingencies.

$228

1993
$237

1994
$203

$ 188

$615

$740

.$ 1,058

$958

..$ 818

..$928

MAINTENANCEAND OTIIER OPERATION EXPENSE (Mlt(X)NSCF MtAI6)
MAINTENANCE OTHER OPERATION

1992 .$974
$640

1993

1994
$609

1995
$677

$578 $12

$19

$16

$ 13

..$659

..$ 625

.$690

..$

TOTALTAXESINCLUDINGINCOMETAXES IMLLCNSOFOOLLARS)

OPERATION EXPENSE CONSTRUCTION EXPENDITURES

1992 ..$ 659
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Electric and Gas Statistics

ECTRIC CAPABILITY
Thousands ofkilowatts

GAS STATISTICS
1996 1995 1994

mber 31,

Owned:
Coal.
Oil
Dual Fuel —OiVGas ..
Nuclear ............
Hydro.

I 1S96

1,333 16.3
636 ?.8
700 8.5

1,082 13.2
617 7.5

4,368 533

'l995 1994

1,316 1,285
636 646
700 700

1,082 1>048
665, 700

4,399 4,379

Gas safes plmusands olDth):
Residential
Commercial.... ~...........
Industrial.
Other gas systems..........

Total sales...................
Spot market .........,...........
Tansportation of customer~ gas ..

56>728
25>353

2,770
30

84,881
10>459

134,671

78,481
1,723

144,613

85,615
1,572

85,910

51,842 56,491
23,818 25,783

2,660 3,097
161 244

Purchased:
New York Power Authority—Hydro .... ~.... » .. ~ . ~ > .—Nuclear.................
IPPs.

Total capability '.............,

1>310 16.0
110 1.3

2,406 29.4

3,826 46.7

8>194 100.0

Electric peak toad.............. 6,021

1,325 1,300
110 74

2,390 2,273
',8253,647

8,224 8,026

6,211 6,458

Gas revenues Phousands ofdollars):
Residential
Commercial...............,... „..
Industrial ..
Other gas systems.......,........
Spot market ....................,
Transpmtation of customer<wned gas ..
Miscellaneous...., ........ „...

$ 417,348
162,22I
13>325

138
37>124
50,381

1>083

Total gas delivered.....,....., 230,011 224,817

$368,391
143,643

11,530
762

3,096
48,290

6,078

173,097

$398,257
159,157

14,602
1 ~

159',370

38,346
,7,300

I'LECTRICSTATISTICS

1996 1995 1994

'Available capabitity can be jncreased during heavy load perfods by purchases from
neighboring interconnected systems, Hydro station capability Is based on average
December stream. flowconditions.

Gas customers (Average):
Residential
Commercial....................
Industrial „...... „.......,....
Other.
Transportation..................

477>786
41,266

206
6

713

471,948
40,945

225
1

652

463,933
40,256

256
1

661

$681,674 $581,790 $623,191

Electric sales (AfillionsofKwh):
Residential ...................>.
Commercial........„.............
Industrial

ustrial —Special .l.... ~...... ~ .
'alservice ................

Iectric systems ............
diary

Electric revenues
Phousands ofdollars):
Residential ..........,..........
Commercial........,.........., ~

Industrial
Industrial - Special.......... ~....
Muniopal sonrico ................
Other electric systems,...........
Miscellaneous.......,.......,...
Subsidiary

10>109
11,564
7,148
4,326

246
5,431

303

39,1 27

$1,252,165
1>237>385

524,858
58,444
53,795

113>391
53>698
15,243

10,055
11,613
7,061
4,053

229
4,305

368

37,684

$1,214,848
1,237,502

523,996
56,250
50,860
88,936

143,625

19,531'0,316

11,739
7,382
4,118

227
7,441

376

41 ~

$ 1,226,490
1,268,083

574,251
49,217
51,401

157,826
179,529
22,190

Residential (Average):
Annual dekatherm uso por customer ..
Cost to customer per Dth...........
Annual revenue per customer ...., ..
Maximum day gas sendout (Dth) .......

519,977

118.7
$7.36

$873.50
1>152>996

513,771 505,107

109.8 121.8
$7.11 $7.05

S780.58 $858 A4
I@11/52 995/01

$3,308>979 $3,335,548 $3,528,987

Electric customers (Average):
Residential .....,....."....,.....
Commercial,.................. ~ .
Industrial .

Industrial —Spedal...............
Other.
Subsidiary..................., .

1>405>083
145,149

2,045
99

1>302
13>557

1,399,725
144,731

2,122
83

1>488
13,508

1,393,273
143,017

2,069
82

2,312
13,344

1>567,235 1,561,657 1,554,097

Residential (Average):
Annual Kwh use per customer......
Cost! o customer per Kwh .........
Annual revenue per customer...., ..

7>195
12 39C

$891.17

7,184
12.08C

$867.92

7,404
11.89C

$880.29
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Glossary ofTenms

Clean AirAct

CNP

COPS

CWIP

DOE

DSM

Dth

EPA

FAC

FASB

FERC

Fitcll

GAC

GAAP

GRT

GwHrs

HYDRA-CO

IPP

ISO

Kw

Kwh

MERIT

Moody's

hiW

Mwh

NERAM

NYS Supreme
Court

Dguifhu
Allowance for Funds Used During
Construction

Clean AirActAmendments of 1990

Canadian Niagara Power Company, Limited

Competitive Opportunities Proceeding

Construction Work in Progress

U.S. Department ofEnergy

Demandkide Management

De katherms

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Fuel Adjustment Clause

Financial Accounting Standards Board

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

Fitch Investors Services, Inc.

Gas Adjustment Clause

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

Gross Receipts Tax

Gigawat t-hours

HYDRA-COEnterprises, Inc.
(former subsidiary)

Inde pendent Power Producer

Independent System Operator

Kilowatt

Kilowatt-hour

Mcasurcd Equity Return Incentive Term

Moody's Investors Service

Mc~c~w<tt

Megawatt-hour

Niagara Mohawk Electric Revenue
Adjustmcnt Mechanism

Supreme Court of the State ofNew York,
Albany County

1Q2B

Nox
NRC

NYPA

NYPP

NYSERDA

PPA

PRP

PSC

PURPA

QF .

ROE

SFAS
No. 71

SFAS
No. 101

SFAS
No. 106

SFAS
No. 109

SFAS
No. 121

SO2

S8:P

Unit 1

Unit 2

VERP

84inififtu
Nitrogen Oxide

U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission

New York Power Authority
New York Power Pool

New York State Energy Research
and Development Authority
Power Purchase Agreements

Potentially Responsible Party

New YorkState Public Service Commission

Public UtilityRegulatory Policies Actof 1978

Qualifying Facility

Return on Common Stock Equity

Statement ofFinancial Accounting Standards
No. 71 "Accounting for the Effects ofCertain
Types ofRegulation"

Statement ofFinancial Accounting Standards
No. 101 "Regulated Enterprises-Accounting
for the Discontinuance ofApplication of
FASB Statement No. 71"

Statement ofFinancial Accounting Standards
No. 106 "Employers'ccounting for
Postrctirement Benefits Other Than
Pensions"„

Statement ofFinancial Accounting Standa
No. 109 "Accounting for Income Taxes"

Statement ofFinancial Accounting Standards
No. 121 "Accounting for thc Impairment of
Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets

to be Disposed of"

Sulfur Dioxide

Standard 8s Poor's

Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station Unit No. 1

Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station Unit No. 2

Voluntary Employee Reduction Program'

I A G
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7 NIASARA
4 MOHAWK

300 ERIE BOULEVARDWEST, RRACUSE, NEWYORK 13202

NOTICE OF ANNUALMEETING
NIAGARAMOHAWKPOWER CORPORATION

Please take notice that the Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Niagara Mohawk Power
Corporation will be held at The Onondaga County Convention Center, 800 South State Street,
Syracuse, New York 13202-3017 on Tuesday, May 6, 1997, at 10:30 a.m. for the followingpurposes:

(1) To elect four directors to serve in Class III for a term expiring at the 2000 Annual
Meeting;

(2) To consider and act upon a shareholder proposal relating to an endorsement by the
Company of the CERES Principles;

(3) To consider and act upon a shareholder proposal relating to executive compensation;
and

(4) To transact such other business as may be properly brought before the meeting or any
adjournment thereof.

Shareholders entitled to vote at the meeting are the holders of Common Stock of record at the
close ofbusiness on March 18, 1997.

By Order of the Board ofDirectors

Kapua A. Rice

Secretary

Dated: April7, 1997
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Proxy Statement

e enclosed proxy is solicited by the Board ofDi-
(the "Board of Directors" or the "Board") of
Mohawk Power Corporation (the, "Corpora-

aon") for. use at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders
to be held on May 6, 1997, and at any adjournment
thereof. This proxy statement and the form of proxy,
together with the 1996 Annual Report, are first being
mailed to shareholders on or about April7, 1997.

VotingRights and
Vote Re uired

1

The close ofbusiness on, March 18, 1997, has been
fixed as the record date for determining the holders of
Common Stock entitled to vote at the meeting. Only
shareholders ofCommon Stock whose names appeared
ofrecord on the books ofthe Corporation on the record
date willbe entitled to notice ofand to vote at the meet-
ing and at any adjournment thereof. On the record date
there were 144,390,619 sha'res of Common Stock out-
standing and entitled to vote. Each share of Common
Sto is entitled to one vote.

reholders are urged to sign the accompanying
fo fproxy and return it promptly in the envelope
provided for that purpose. The proxy does not affect
the right to vote in person at the meeting and, ifvoted;
maybe revoked at any time prior to the vote being taken

at the meeting. Proxies willbe voted in accordance with
the shareholders'irections. Ifno directions are given,
proxies willbe voted for the election of the nominees
for directors set forth in this Proxy Statement. In the
event any nominee withdraws or is for any reason un-
able to serve, a contingency not presently anticipated,
proxies will be voted for any nominee that may be
designated by the Board of Directors as a substitute
nominee.

A"majority of the shares entitled to vote at the meet-
ing shall coristitute a quorum. A plurality of the votes
castat the meeting is required'for the election ofdirec-
tors. Except where otherwise provided by law, an
affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast at the
meeting is required for approval of any other matter.
Abstentions and broker non-votes will not be consid-
ered as votes cast with respect to a particular matter,
but willbe counted in the number ofshares present in
person or represented by proxy for purposes oF deter-
mining wheth'er a quorum is present.

W

Voting is confidential, in accordance with the provi-
sions ofSections 8 and 9 ofArticle IIof the By-Laws of
the Corporation. Tabulation'of proxies and thevotes cast
at the meeting is conducted by an independent agent
and certified by independent inspectors ofelection. Any
information which would identify the vote ofany share-
holder is held permanently confidential and willnot be
disclosed to the Corporation, except in limited circum-
stances set forth in such Sections of the By-Laws.

Pro osal l iIVomination and Election ofDirectors

At the meeting, four directors willbe elected to Class
IIIof the Board ofDirectors,for three-year terms expir-
ing at the 2000 Annual Meeting or until their respec
tive successors are duly elected and qualified. All
nominees are members of the present Board ofDirec-
tors. Directors willbe elected by a plurality of the votes
east at the meeting.

In ac'cordance with the Corporation's Certificate of
Incorporation, the Board of Directors is divided into
three classes, composed ofas nearly equal a number of
directors as is possible, with staggered terms of office
so that one class ofthe directors must be elected at each
annual meeting.

Board ofDirectors currently consists offifteen
di rs. Mr.John G. Wick, who has served as direc-

tor for 21, years, willretire from the Board ofDirectors
at the 1997 Annual Meeting due to the mandatory re-
tirement age. In addition, Mr. H. Eugene Lockhart,
who has served on'the Board since June 1996, was re-
cently selected'for and has accepted the position of
President, Bank of America and accordingly, 'has
tendered his resignation, effective May 6; 1997. As a
result, the Corporation will have thirteen directors as
of the 1997 Annual Meeting. The Board ofDirectors is
deeply appreciative of the contribution's made by
Mr. Wick and Mr. Lockhart.

As applicable to each nominee and continuing di-
rector, the name, age as of March 1, 1997, principal
occupation, business experience for the last five years
or more, other directorships and the year in which first
elected a director, are set forth below.



Business Background of
Nominees and Directs

NOMINEESFOR CLASS IIIDIRECTORS—
TERMS EXPIRING IN2000

LAWRENCEBURKHAIU)T,III
~ Nuclear Consultant
~ Director since 1988
~ Chairperson ofNuclear Oversight Committee ofthe Board

Mr. Burkhardt, Age 64, independent consultant to
the nuclear industry since 1990. Prior to his retirement
in 1990, Mr. Burkhardt was employed by the Cor por ation
and served as Executive Vice President of Nuclear Op-
erations. Director of Management Analysis'ompany.

DOUGLAS M. COSTLE,
~ Distinguished Senior Fellow and Chairman ofthe Board

of the InstituteforSustai nable Communities
~ Director since 1991
~ Member ofExecutive, Corporate Public Policy

&'nvironmentalAffairs and Nuclear Oversight
Committees of the Board

Mr. Costle, Age 57, Distinguished Senior Fellow and
Chairman of the Board of the Institute for Sustainable
Communities, a non-profit organization located in
Montpelier, VT. Mr. Costle served as Dean of the
Vermont Law School in South Royalton, Vermont from
1987-1992. Former Administrator of the U.S. Environ-
mental .Protection Agency. Independent Trustee of
John Hancock Mutual Funds.

DONALDB. RIEFLER
~ 1'inancial Market Consultant
~ Director since 1978
~ 'Member ofExecutive, Audit, Finance (Chairperson), and

Nuclear Oversight Committees ofthe Board

Mr. Riefler, Age 69, financial market consultant and
advisor to J. P. Morgan, Florida FSB, Palm Beach, FL, a
private banking concern aEiliated withJ. P. Morgan. 8c

Co., Inc. Prior to his retirement in 1991, Mr. Riefler was
Chairman of the Market Risk Committee forJ. P. Mor-
gan 8c Co. Incorporated and Morgan Guaranty Trust
Company of New York. Director of Bank of Tokyo
Mitsubishi Trust Company.

STEPHEN B. SCHWARTZ
~ Retired Senior Vice President, International Business

Machines Corporation
~ Director since 1992
~ Member ofExecutive, Compensation &'uccessio

(Chairperson) and Finance Committees of the Boa

Mr. Schwartz, Age 62, retired as Senior Vice
Presi-'ent,

'of International Business Machines Corporation
in 1992. 'Mr. Schwartz joined IBM in 1957 and was
elected Senior Vice President in 1990. Director of
MFRI; Inc.

CONTINUINGCLASS IIDlRECTORS—,
TERlMS EXPlRING IN1999

WILLIAME ALLYN
~ President and ChiefExecutive OfficerofWelch Allyn, Inc.
~ Director since 1988
~ Member ofAudit, Compensation &'uccession, and

Nuclear Oversight Committees ofthe Board

Mr. Allyn, Age 61, President and Chief Executive
OIficer of Welch Allyn, Inc., Skaneateles Falls, NY, a
manufacturer of medical equipment. Mr. Allynjoined
Welch Allyn,Inc. in 1962 and, was elected to his present
position in 1980. Director of ONBANCorp., Inc.;
Oneida Limited; and Perfex Corporation.

WILLIAME. DAVIS
' Chairman ofthe Board and ChiefExecutive Officer,

Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation
~ Director since 1992
~ Chairperson ofExecutive Committee ofthe Board

Mr. Davis, Age 54, was elected Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive Offlcer of the Corporation
in 1993. Mr. Davis joined the Corporation in 1990 and
was elected Senior Vice President in April 1992, serv-

ing in that capacity until elected Vice-Chairman of the
Board ofthe Corporation in November 1992. Director
of Opinac Energy Corporation ("Opinac"), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation, and of its
subsidiaries, Canadian Niagara Power Company, Lim-
ited, in which Opinac has a 50 percent interest, anti
Plum Street Enterprises, Inc.; and Utilities Mutual In-
su'rance Company. Mr. Davis also holds the position of
Chief Executive OIficer, Plum Street Enterprises,'nc.



WILLIAMJ. DONLON
o Eo'rzner Chaznnan ofthe Board and CliiefExecutz've

0 icer, Niagara Mohazvh Pozver Corporation
.tor since 1980

; Donlon, Age 67, retired in 1993 as Chairman
.cg the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Corpo-
r'ation with 45 years service, as an active employee.
Director ofOpinac Energy Corporation, a wholly-owned

;"subsidiary'of the Corporation, and ONBANCorp., Inc.
I

h

ANTHONYH. GIOIA
Chairman and ChiefExecutive Officer ofGioia

.Manageznent, Inc.
o Director since 1996
o Member ofComPensation &'uccession and Nuclear
.-. Oversight Committees ofthe Board

'Mr. Gioia, Age 55, Chairman and Chief Executive
OfficerofGioia Management, Inc., a holding company
for several companies, including three packaging com-
panies located in Buffalo and Lockport, NY. Mr. Gioia
has held liis present position since 1987.

DR. PATTIMcGILLPETERSON
o Senior I'ellozv ofthe Cornell Institute forPublic Affairs

'torsince1988
er ofAudit and CorPorale Public Policy

&'ronmentalAffairs Cominittees ofthe Board

Dr. Peterson, Age 53, Senior Fellow of the Cornell
Institute for Public Affairs, Cornell University, Ithaca,
NY. Dr. Peterson served as President of St. Lawrence
University from 1987-1996. Prior to that, she was Presi-
dent of Wells College. She holds the title President
Emerita at both institutions. Director ofSecurity Mu-
tual Life Insurance Company. Independent Trustee of
John Hancock Mutual Funds.

n I
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CONTINUINGCLr4SS IDIRECTORS—
TERMS EXPIRING IN1998

ALBERTJ. BUDNEY,JR.
1'reszdent, Niagara Mohazrrjz Pozvei Corporation

o, „Director since 1995

Mr. Budney, Age 49, was elected President of the
Corporation in 1995. Mr. Budney was previously em-
ployed by UtiliCorp United, Inc., an energy services
company, as Managing Vice President of the UtiliCorp
Power Services Group and as President of the Missouri

Public Service Division. From 1990-1992,'he held the
position ofVice President with Stone 8c Webster Inc.,
an engineering firm. Director and Presiderit ofOpinac
Energy Corporation, a whollywwned subsidiary of the
Corporation, and Director ofits subsidiaries, Canadian
Niagara Power Company, Limited, in which Opinac has
a 50 percent interest, and Plum Street Enterprises, Inc.;
and Director ofUtilities iMutual Insurance Company.

EDMUNDM. DAVIS
o Attorney
o

. Director since 1970
o Member ofExecutive, Compensation &"Succession,

Corporate Public Policy &'nvironmezzlal Affairs
(ChairPerson), and Finance Committees ofthe Board

Mr. Davis, Age 67, retired in 1995 as of counsel to
Hiscock k Barclay, LLP, Syracuse, NY,Attorneys-at-Law.
Mr. Davis was a partner and had been associated with
the law firm since 1957.

1

DR. BONNIE GUITON HILL
o President and ChiefExecutive Officer of Times Minor

I'oundatzon and Vzce President ofTimes Mzrror
o Director since 1991
o Member ofExecutive, Audit and CorPorate Public Policy

&'Environmental Affairs Conzmi tlees ofthe Boarcl

Dr. Hill,Age 55, President and Chief Executive Of-
ficer of the Times MirrorFoundation, a non-profit in-
stitution, and Vice President of Times Mirror, a news
and information company, located in Los Angeles, CA.
Dr. Hillserved as Dean and Professor ofCommerce of
the McIntire School of Commerce at the University of
Virginia from 1992-1996. Prior to that, she served as

the Secretary of State and Consumer Services Agency
for the State ofCalifornia. Director ofAKSteel Corpo-
ration; Crestar 1'inancial Corporation; Hershey Foods
Corporation; Louisiana-Pacific Corporation; and
RREEF America, Inc.

HENRYA. PANASCI,JR.
Chairznan, Oygzzzrs Management GrouP, LLC

o Director since 1988
o 'Member ofCompensation &'uccession and Finance

Committees oftIre Board

Mr. Panasci, Age 68, Chairman of Cygnus Manage-
ment Group, LLC, a consulting firmspecializing in ven-
ture capital and private investments located in Syracuse,
NY. Mr. Panasci retired in 1996 as Chairman of the



Board and Chief Executive Officer of Fay's Incorpo-
rated, a drug store chain. Mr. Panasci co-founded Fay's

Drug Co., Inc. with his father in 1958. Director of
National Association ofChain Drug Stores.

Board ofDirectors
and Committees

Meetings and Attendance

During 1996, sixteen meetings of the Corporation's
Board ofDirectors were held. Each director, except for
Mr. H. Eugene Lockhart, attended more than 75 per-
cent of the combined total of meetings of the Board of
Directors and the Committees on which he or she served.

There are six standing Committees of the Board:
the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the
Compensation and Succession Committee, the Com-
mittee on Corporate Public Policy and Environmental
Affairs, the I inance Committee and the Nuclear Over-
sight Committee. The Board docs not have a standing
Nominating Committee to nominate candidates for
Board membership, but functions as a committee of
the whole. Anynomination may be made from the floor
by any shareholder who has made a written request to
the Corporation to have such nomination considered
at the annual meeting in accordance with the require-
ments of the Corporation's By-I aws. Information with
respect to the AuditCommittee and the Compensation
and Succession Committee is set forth below.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, consisting ofJohn G. Wick,
Chairperson, WilliamF. Allyn, Bonnie Guiton Hill,H.
Eugene Lockhart, Patti McGillPeterson and Donald B.
Riefler, all of whom are non-employee directors, met
eleven times in 1996. Duties performed by the Audit
Committee include meeting with the independent ac-

countants, chief internal auditors and certain person-
nel of the Corporation to discuss'he planned scope of
auditing examinations and the adequacy of internal
controls and interim and annual financial reporting;
reviewing the results of the annual examination of the
consolidated financial statements and periodic inter-
nal audit examinations; reviewing the services and fees

of the Corporation's independent accountants; over-
seeing matters involving compliance with corporate
business ethics policies; reviewing management's assess-

ment offinancial risks; authorizing and
participat'pecial

projects and studies; and performing anl
duties or funcuons deemed appropriate by the Bo.

ComPensation and Succession Committee

The Compensation and Succession Committee„
consisting of Stephen B. Schwartz, Chairperson, Will-
iam F. Allyn,Edmund M. Davis, Anthony H. Gioia and
Henry A. Panasci, Jr., all of whom are non-employee
directors, met nine times during 1996. The Committee
cvaluates the performance of the Corporation's Chief
Executive Officer and the other senior officers of the
Corporation; reviews the annual and incentive compen-
sation of the elected officers of the Corporation, the
Corporation's compensation programs and benefit
plans, and officer development and succession plans;
makes recommendations to the Board ofDirectors with
respect to these matters; and meets with the Cor-
poration's actuarial advisors to review the advisor's an-
nual reports and progress toward funding the pension,
post-retirement healtli plans, and supplemental execu-
tive retirement plan.

Compensation and
Succession Commitee InterlocAs an
Insider Partici ation

Directors Allyn,Edmund Davis, Gioia, Panasci and
Schwartz, all ofwhom are non-employee directors, are
members of the Compensation and Succession
Committee.

No person serving during 1996 as'a member of the
Compensation and Succession Committee ofthe Board
served as an officer or employee of the Corporation or
any of its subsidiaries during or prior to 1996.

No person serving during 1996 as an executive of-
ficer of the Corporation serves or has served as a direc-
tor or a member of the compensation committee of
any other entity that has an executive officerwho serves
or has served either as a member of the Compensation
and Succession Committee or as a member ofthe Board
ofDirectors ofNiagara Mohawk Power Corporation.



Security Oumershi ofCertain Bene 'al Oumters and Mana ement

he following table shows the persons (as the term is used in Section 13(d) (3) of the Securities Exchange Act
) known to the Corporation to beneficially own more than five percent (5%) of the Corporation's Common

as of March 6, 1997. It also shows the same information for all directors of the Corporation, the executive
,officers named in the Summary Compensation Table below and the directors and executive officers of the Corpo-
ration as a group. The table also lists the number ofstock units credited to directors, named executive officers and
the directors and executive oAicers ofthe Corporation as a group as ofMarch 6, 1997, pursuant to the Corporation's

'-t„'ompensation and benefit programs. No voting rights are associated with stock units.

Name and Address of ', Amount and Nature of Percent Number of
Title of Class Beneficial Owner Beneficial Ownershi ** of Class Stock Units Held
Common Stock Fidelity Management Trust Co.

82 Devonshire Street
Boston, Massachusetts 02109

Directors:
William F. Allyn
AlbertJ. Budney,Jr.
Lawrence Burkhardt, III
Douglas M. Costle
Edmund M. Davis
William E. Davis
WilliamJ. Donlon
Anthony H. Gioia
Bonnie Guiton Hill
H. Eugene Lockhart
Henry A. Panasci, Jr.
Patti McGillPeterson
Donald B. Riefler
Stephen B. Schwartz
John G. Wick

Named Executives:
B. Ralph Sylvia
John W. Powers
Darlene D. Kerr
AllDirectors and Executive
OQicers (23) as a group

12,230,956(1)

1,000
500
452
500

2,274
24,754(2)
15,343(3)

500
700
375

2,500
500

1,000
500

1,320

17,285(4)
23,220(5)
12,228(6)

141,305 (7)

8.47%

7,990(8)
55,000(9)

1,371(8)
8,149(8)

25,218(8)
105,000(9)

0
1,143(8)

, 6,909(8)
1,143(8)
1,143(8)
9,797(8)

24,475(8)
9,802(8)
1,371(8)

35,350(9)
25,750(9)
25,750(9)

430,961

Less than one percent. J

Based on information furnished to the Corporation by the Directors and Executive OIIicers. Includes sliarcs ofCommon
Stock credited under the Employees'avings Fund Plan as ofMarch 6, 1997.

(1) FidelityManagement Trust Company serves as Trustee. The above represents shares in tlie Corporation's /on-Represented and
Represented Employees'avings Fund Plans. The Trustee willvote all shares ofCommon Stock held in the Trusts established for
the Plans in accordance with the directions received from the employees participating in thc Plans. The Trustee willvote shares
forwhich it receives no instructions in the same proportion as itvotes shares for which it receives instructions.

(2) Includes presently exercisable options for 22,625 shares ofCommon Stock.
(3) Includes presently exercisable options for 13,333 shares of Common Stock.
(4) Includes presently exercisable options for 13,000 shares of Common Stock.
(5) Includes presently exercisable options for 9,000 shares of Common Stock.,
(6) Includes presently exercisable options for 6,000 shares ofCommon Stock.
(7) Includes presently exercisable options for 89,083 shares ofCommon Stock.
(8) Represents deferred stock units granted pursuant to the Outside Director Deferred Stock Unit Plan. No voting rights are

associated with deferred stock units. For additional information regarding deferred stocl units, refer to page II-16 ("Com-
pensation ofDirectors" ).

(. resents stock units granted in 1995 pursuant to thc 1995 Stock Incentive Plan and in 1996 and 1997 pursuant to the OHicer
g-Term Incentive Plan. No voting rights are associated with stock units. For additional information regarding stock units

nted to named executives, refer to pages II-8-II-9 ("1995 Stock Incentive Plan" and "OIIiccrLong-Term Incentive Plan" ).



Section 16(a) Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities and Exchange Act
of 1934 requires the Corporation's directors and ex-
ecutive officers to file initial reports ofownership and
reports of changes in ownership of the Corporation's
equity securities with the Securities and Exchange Com-

'mission ("SEC") and the New York Stock Exchange.
Based solely on a review of the copies of such forms
and written representations from the Corporation's
directors and executive officers, the Company be s

"that during the preceding year the Corporatio
rectors and executive officers have complied wi
Section 16(a) filingrequirements.

Board ofDirectors'ompensation and Succession Committee Report On Executive Compensation

The Compensation and Succession Committee of
the Board ofDirectors (the "Committee" ) is composed
entirely ofnonwmployee directors. The Committee has
responsibility for recommending officer salaries and for
the administration of the Corporation's officer incen-
tive compensation plans as described in this report. The
Committee makes recommendations to the Board of
Directors >vhich makes final officer compensation de-
terminations.

'hisCommittee report describes the Corporation's
executive officer compensation policies, the compo-
nents of the compensation program, and the manner
in which 1996 compensation determinations were made
for the Corpo'ration's Chairman of the Board,and Chief
Executive Officer, Mr. William E. Davis.

The 1996 Executive Officer Compensation Program
was composed entirely of base salary, frozen at 1995
levels, and 1996 grants ofstock units and stock appre-
ciation rights ("SARs") made pursuant to the new Of-
ficer Long-Term Incentive Plan ("LTIP") adopted by
the Board of Directors on September 25, 1996, as de-
scribed later in this report.

Base Salary

The Committee seeks to ensure that salaries of the
Corporation's officers, including executive officers,
remain competitive with levels paid to comparable posi-
tio'ns Among 23 Eastern Region investor-owned electric

'nd

gas utilities (the same companies included in the
peer group shown'on the performance graph - the "Peer"
Group" ) together with other U.S. electric and gas utili-
ties with comparable revenues (collectively referred to
as the "Comparator Utilities"). The Committee believes
that competitive salaries provide the foundation of the
Corporation's officer compensation program and are
essential for, the Corporation to attract and retain quali-
fied officers, especially in light of the increasing com-
petition within the industry. Each officer position has
been assigned to a competitive salary range. The. Com-
mittee intends to administer salaries within the 25th to

75th percentiles ofpractice with respect to those Com-
parator Utilities.The'1996 salary of the ChiefExecutive
Officer and the average salary of the other four named
executive officers fall below median (50th percentile)
competitive levels. Since executive officer salaries were
frozen at 1995 levels, as a condition for receipt of 1995
stock incentive grants, the competitiveness of 1996 ex-
ecutive officer compensation i's based entirely on stock.-
related incentives in the form of stock units and stock
appreciation rights granted under the 1995 Stock In-
centive Plan ("SIP") and the Officer Long-Term Incen-
tive Plan adopted by the Board of Directors on
September 25, 1996.

1995 Stoep Incentive Plan

On December 14, 1995, the Board ofDirect
proved the SIP to promote the success and en . ce
the value of the Corporation through the retention
and continued motivation of the Corporation's offic>
ers and to focus their efforts toward the execution of
business strategies directed toward improving finan-
cial returns to shareholders. Awards under the SIP
consisted ofstock units and SARs. The stock unit grants
willbe paid in cash in early 1998 based on the average
closing price of the Corporation's common stock dur-
ing the last twelve consecutive trading days in 1997.
Dividends are credited (in an amount equivalent to
dividends paid, ifany, on the Corporation's common
stock) with respect to all stock units granted. These
credits are reinvested'at the prevailing stock price,
thereby increasing the number ofstock units payable't the end of the period. The SARs first become

exer-'isable

on January 2, 1998 and may'be exercised until
they expire on De'cember 31, 2002.

The SIP was structured so that any compensation'
earned by officers during the two-year period 1996 and
1997, other than base salary, will be based on the
Corporation's year-end 1997 stock price.,and total
returns realized by shareholders during this p
Accordingly, participants (including the ext



officer listed in the Summary Compensation Table)
willnot receive any salary increases (except to reflect
promotions), annual bonus payments or stock option

during 1996 and 1997. Participants have also sur-
ed their rights to payment with respect to Per-

formance Share Units (a performance-based incentive
plan first. adopted in 1992) granted in 1995 for the
1995-1997 period as a condition ofparticipation in the

~ SIP. Generally speaking, SIP grants were structured so
that the Corporation's stock price would have to more
than double during this two-year period in order for
the total compensation of the participants to approxi-
mate median competitive levels.

The Committee does not intend to make further
SIP grants other than the 1995 stock unit grants which
become payable in early 1998 and the 1995 stock ap-
preciation rights grants which become exercisable on
January 1, 1998 and expire on December 31, 2002.
Long-term incentive grants were made in 1996 and 1997
under the LTIP described below.

Ofhcer Long-Term Incentive Plan

Since SIP stock unitgrants willbe paid in early 1998,
when SIP SAR grants willalso first become exercisable,
and the Committee seeks to provide a continuous pro-
g of long-term stock incentives thereafter, on Sep-
t 25, 1996 the Board of Directors adopted the

nd approved stock unit and SAR grants for the
1996-1998 period. These stock unit grants willbe paid
in cash in early 1999, one year after SIP stock unit grants
have been paid. Dividends are credited (in an amount
equivalent to dividends paid, if any, on the
Corporation's common stock) with respect to the 1996-
1998 stock unit grants, which are reinvested at the pre-
vailing stock price, thereby increasing the number of
stock units payable in early 1999. Thc payment value of
the stock units willbe based on the average closing price
of the Corporation's common stock during the
last twelve consecutive trading days in 1998. The 1996
LTIP SAR grants first become exercisable on
January 2, 1999, and may be exercised until they expire
on December 31, 2005.
~,

On January 29, 1997, the Board of Directors ap-
proved the grant ofLTIP stock units and SARs for the
1997-1999 performance period. These stock units, and
accumulated dividend stock units, willbe paid in early
2000 based on the average closing price of the
Corporation's common stock during the last twelve
consecutive trading days in 1999. The SARs firstbecome
exercisable on January 2, 2000, and can be exercised

ey expire on December 31, 2006.

„The size ofboth the l996-1998 and 1997-1999 LTIP
stock unit and SAR grants were determined,, based on
the price ofthe Corporation's common stock at the time
these grants were made, so that the combination of the
officers'urrent salaries plus the grant date present value
ofSIP, and LTIP grants for the 1996-1998 and 1997-1999
performance periods, would approximate the 50th per-
centile of comparator utility'otal compensation prac-
tice for the three-y'ear period 1995 through 1997. The
competitiveness'of the actual compensation realized from
SIP and the 1996-1,998 and 1997-1999 LTIP grants will
depend on the market value of the Corporation's com-
mon stock at the end of 1997, 1998, and 1999.

Compensation of8'illiam E. Davis, Chairman ofthe
Board and ChiefExecutive OfPcer

Mr. Davis became CEO on May 1, 1993. In April
1996, Mr. Davis voluntarily reduced his annual salary
from a level of$490,000 to the current level of$450,500.
The Committee has been advised by its consultant that
Mr. Davis'996 salary falls below the median relative to
the CEOs ofthe Comparator Utilities. On December 13,
1995, the Board granted Mr. Davis 25,000 stock units
and 142,500 SARs, with an exercise price of $ 10.75,
under the 1995 Stock Incentive Plan. Mr. Davis'IP
stock unit and SAR grants were intended to maintain
the competitiveness of his total compensation during
the 1996 and 1997 period, based on the Corporation's
year-end 1997 stock price, considering that his salary
would not be increased and that he would receive no
annual bonuses and no stock options during this
two-year period.

As previously indicated, the Committee and the
Board ofDirectors seek to provide a continuous program
oflong-term stock incenuves beyond 1997 when SIP stock
unit grants are paid and SIP SAR grants become exercis-
able. Accordingly, on September 25, 1996 the Board of
Directors approved a grant of 45,000 stock units and
90,000 SARs, with an exercise price of$8.00, forMr. Davis
for the 1996-1998 performance period. On January 29,
1997 the Board of. Directors approved a grant of35,000
stock units and 70,000 SARs, with an exercise price of
$ 10.30, for the 1997-1999 performance period. Both the
1996-1998 and 1997-1999 grants were made under the
terms of the LTIP. The size of the 1996-1998 and 1997-
1999 LTIP grants for Mr. Davis was determined so that
the grant date present value ofboth grants, in combina-
tion with his current salary and his SIP grants, would
approximate the 50th percentile for compar'ator utility
chiefexecutive officers during the 1995-1997 period. The
competitiveness of the compensation Mr. Davis actually



realizes from the SIP and I.TIP grants will depend on
the market value of the Corporation's common stock at
the end of 1997, 1998, and 1999.

The Committee is aware of the limitations that tax
legislation has placed on the tax deductibility of com-
pensation in excess of $ 1 million which is paid in any
year to an executive officer. Currently none of the ex-
ecutive officers has received compensation subject to
such limitations. The Committee willcontinue to moni-
tor developments in this area and take appropriate ac-

tions to preserve the tax deductibility oF compensation
paid to executive officers, should this become necessary.

Through the combination of base salary, and dur-
ing 1996 and 1997, the combination ofstock unit and
stock appreciation right grants, the Committee seeks
to focus the efforts ofofficers toward improving,
ally and over the longer-term, the financial retui
its shareholders.

0 ~

Submitted by the Compeiisation and Succession Com-

mittee ofthe Board ofDirectors:

Stephen B. Schwartz, Chairperson
William F. Allyn
Edmund M. Davis
Anthony H. Gioia
Henry A. Panasci, Jr.



Executive Com ensation

Position

he table below sets forth all compensation paid by the Corporation and its wholly-owned subsidiaries forservices
ed in all capacities during the fiscal years ended December Sl, 1996, December Sl, 1995 and December Sl,

to the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer and to each of the other four most highly compen-
.sated Executive Officers of the Corporation for the fiscal year ended December Sl, 1996.

4

U

Summary ComPensation Table,
t Fiscal Years 1996,'995 and 1994

Annual Com ensation Lon -Term Com ensation

Other Restricted Securities AllOther
Annual, Stock Underlying Compensation

Name Year Sal A Bonus Com ensation Acids $ D 0 tions/SARs ¹) E

W. E. Davis Chairman of the
Board and Chief
Executive 08icer

1996 $462,351 $ 0 $ 0 $360,000 90,000 $43,365
1995 473,542 0 0 246,875 152,500 35,729
1994 441,542 0 0 ", — 20,000 44,916

A.J. Budney,Jr. Presidentand
Chief Operating
OHicer

1996 315,002 0 2,956(C) $ 180,000 45,000 24,975
1995 236,251 50,000(B) 32,727 148,125

"
76,000 '8,541

1994

B. R. Sylvia

J.W. Powers

Executive Vice
President

Senior Vice
President

Senior Vice
President

1996 295,001 0 0 $ 114,000 28,500 .10,174
1995 295,001 0 0 98,750 49,000 24,832
1994 290,834

'
0

' — 5,000 8,061

1996 211,002 0 0 $ 142,000 30,000 30,541
1995 209,251 0 0 0 22,000 58,466
1994 187,301 0 '0 3,000 " 27,836

1996 210,001 0 0 $82,000 20,500 9,415
1995 191,085 0 0 74,063 31,500 7,338
1994 183,968

' — '
3,000 6,829

(A) Includes all employee contributions to the Employees'avings Fund Plan.
gB) 1995 bonus forMr. Budney represents a bonus for 1995 guaranteed at the time he was hired ifearnings per share thresholds were not met

under the Oificer Incentive Compensation Plan (an annual incentive compensation plan adopted by the Board ofDirectors on Decemb'er 13,
1990, and suspended for 1996 and 1997 as a condition ofparticipation in the SIP).

(C) 1996 and 1995 Other Annual Compensation for Mr. Budney represents amounts reimbursed for payment of taxes associated with
relocation expenses.

(D) In 1995, stock units were granted pursuant to the SIP adopted by the Board ofDirectors on December 14, 1995. These stock units vest
and become payable on December 31, 1997. Dividend equivalents, ifany, willbc credited on all stock units and willbe paid in cash when
the related stock units are paid. The 1995 values listed in the table were calculated by multiplying the stock units granted by the closing
market price of the company's stock ($9.875) on the date of the grant (December'31, 1995).

In 1996, stock units were gnntcd pursuant to the LTIP adopted by the Board ofDirectors on September 25, 1996. These grants were made
for the three-year period January 1, 1996, through Dcccmbcr 31, 1998, and vest and become payable on January 2, 1999. Thc 1996 values
listed in the table were calculated by multiplying thc stock'units granted by $8.00, the price at the time these stock unit grants were
detcrmincd. Dividend equivalents, ifany, will bc credited on these gnnts and will bc paid when the related stock units are paid. For
Mr. Powers, the value also includes the value of stock units granted in 1996 under thc 1995 SIP.

As of the cnd of the 1996 fiscal year, based on a closing market price of$9.875, Mr. Davis held 70,000 stock units having a market value
of$691,250; Mr. Budney held 37,500 stock units having a market i~luc, of$370,313; Mr. Sylvia held 24,250 stock units having a market
value of$239,469; Mr. Powers held 17,750 stock units having a market value of$ 175,281; and Ms. Kerr held 17,750 stock units having a
market value of$ 175,281.

(E) AllOdier Compensauon for 1996 includes: Employer contributions to thc Corpontion's Employees'avings Fund Plan: Mi'.Davis ($4,500),
Mr. Sylvia ($4,500), Mr. Powers ($4,500), and Ms. Kerr ($4,500); Taxable portion of life insurance premiums: Mr. Davis ($8,994),
Mr. Budney ($ 1,472), Mr. Sylvia ($3,587), Mr. Powers ($3,528), and Ms. Kerr ($3,115); Employer contributions to the Corporation's Excess
Benefit Plan: Mr. Davis ($9,871), Mr. Sylvia ($2,187), Mr. Powers ($ l,513), and Ms. Kerr ($1,800); Payments under the Corporation's

ocation Policy: Mr. Budney ($3,503). All Other Compensation for the three years shown now include directors fees reccivcd from
nac Energy Corporation, which in prior proxy statements were reflecte under Salary. In 1996, those fees were: Mr. Davis ($20,500),

. Budney ($20,000), and Mr. Powers ($21,000).



The following table discloses, for the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, Mr. WilliamE. Davis and

the other named executives, the number and terms ofSARs granted during the fiscal year ended December 31, 1996.

Option/SAR Grants in Last Fiscal Year

Individual Grants

% ofTotal
Options/SARs
Granted to
Employees
In Fiscal
Year

~ a
r

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Options/SARs Exercise or
Granted Base Price Expiration Grant Date

Name (¹) (A) Per Share Date (B) Present Value (C)

W. E. Davis 90,000 23.90% 8.00 12/31/2005 $ 174,600

A.J. Budney,Jr. 45,000 11.95% 8.00 12/31/2005 87,300
B. R. Sylvia 28,500 7.57% 8.00 12/Sl/2005 55,290

J. W. Powers 9,500 2.52% 8.00 12/31/2002 17,480

J. W. Powers 20,500 5.44% 8.00 12/31/2005 39,770
D. D. Kerr 20,500 5.44% 8.00 12/31/2005 89,770

1

(A) The firstgrant listed for Mr. Pow'ers represents a grant ofSARs made under the SIP, while the second grant for Mr. Powers

and the grant to the other four named executive oAicers represents SARs granted in 1996 under the LTIP.

(B) SARs granted in 1996 under the LTIP become exercisable January 2, 1999, and those granted to Mr. Powers under the

1995 SIP become exercisable January 2, 1998. AllSARs become exercisable upon a change in control.

(C) The grant date present value of SARs is calculated using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model with the following
assumptions: market price of the stock at the September 25, 1996 grant date ($8.00); exercise price ofrights thatexpire on
December 81, 2005 ($8.00); stock volatility (0.2867); dividend yield (5.02%); risk free rate (6.50%); exercise term (10

years); Black-Scholes ratio (0.2425); and BlackScholes value ($1.94) for rights that expire on December 31, 2005. Stock

volatilityand dividend yield assumptions are based on 36 months ofresults for the period ending December 81, 1996. The
Black-Scholes assumptions used to calculate the grant date present value for the rights provided to Mr. Powers

expiration date of December 81, 2002 were the same as noted above, except, for risk free rate (6.25%); exercise

years); Black-Scholes ratio (0.2308); and BlackScholes value ($1.84).

The following table summarizes exercises of options by the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Of-"

ficer, Mr.WilliamE. Davis, and the other named executives, the number ofunexercised options held by them and
the spread (the difference between the current market price of the stock and the exercise price of the option, to
the extent that market price at the end of the year exceeds exercise price) on those unexercised options for fiscal

year ended December 31, 1996.

Value of Unexercised
Options/SARs At
Fiscal Year-End ($) (A)

Aggregated Option/SAR Exercises in Last Fiscal Year
and Fiscal Year-End Option Values

a

M Number of
Securities Underlying
Unexercised Options/SARs
AtFiscal Year End (¹)

Name
z

W. E. Davis
A.J. Budney,Jr.
B. R. Sylvia
J. W. Powers
D. D. Kerr

Shares
Acquired on
Exercise (¹)

0
0
0
0
0

Value
R~ealized ($

$0
0
0
0
0

Exercisable

12,625
,0

8,000
6,000
3,000

Unexercisable

262,500
121,000
82,500
55,000
55,000

Exercisable

$0
0
0
0
0

Unexercisable

$ 168,750,
84,375
53,488
56,251
38,438

(A) Calculated based on the closing market price of the Corporation's common stock on December 31, 1996 ($9.87
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NIAGARAMOHAWKPOWER CORPORATION
Comparison of Five-Year Cumulative Total Return(l)

vs. S8cP 500 and Peer Group of Eastern Region Utilities

TOTALSHAREHOLDERS RETURNS .,
t

-E}— NIAGARAMOHAWKPOWER

S&P 500 INDEX

Peer Group

100.00

75.00

50.00

NMPC
S&P 500
Peer Group

Dec 91

100.00
'I 00.00
100.00

Dec 92

111.36
107.62
114.70

Dec 93

123.01
118.46
125.19

Dec 94

92.73
120.03
107.67

Dec 95

67.57
165.13
142.42

Dec 96

70.23
203.05
139.96

sumes $ 100 invested on 12-31-91 in Niagan Mohawk stock, S&:P 500 and Eastern Region utilities'. All divi-
dends assumed to be reinvested over the five-year period.

4

PEER GROUP OF EASTERN REGION.UTILITIES:
Allegheny Power System Inc. Long Island Lighting Co.
Atlantic Energy, Inc. National Fuel'as Company
Baltimore Gas 8: Electric Company New England Electric System
Boston Edison Company New York State Electric &: Gas Corp.
Brooklyn Union Gas Company Northeast Utilities
Central Hudson Gas 8: Electric Corp. Orange &;Rockland Utilities Inc.
Central Maine Power Co. Pennsylvania Power 8: Light Co.
Consolidated Edison Co. ofNew York, Inc.. PECO Energy Company
-PQE, Inc. Public Service Enterprise Group Inc.
Delmarva Power 8c Light Co. Rochester Gas 8: Electric Corp.
Eastern UtilitiesAssociates The United Illuminating Company
General Public Utilities Corp'.

II

(1) Total returns for each Extern Region Utilitywerc determined in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Commission's
regulations, i.e., weighted according to each issuer's stock market capitalization.



Retirement Benefits

The following table illustrates the maximum aggre-
gate pension benefit, with certain deductions for Social
Security, payable by the Corporation under both the
Niagara Mohawk Pension Plan ("Basic Plan" ) and the
Corporation's Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan
("SERP") to an officer in specified average salary and

yea~f service classifications. Such benefitamounts have
been calculated as though each officerselected a straight
lifeannuity and retired on December 31, 1996 at a 5.

The amount ofcompensation taken into account
a tax-qualified plan is subject to certain annual
(adjusted for increases in the cost of living, $150,000 iii„

1995 and $ 150,000 in 1996). This limitation may reduce
benefits payable to highly compensated individuals.

Annual Retirement Allowance

8-Year Average
Annual Sal

$ 150,000
225,000
300,000
375,000
450,000
525,000

10 Years
Service*

$21,090
25,440
25,866
'25,866
25,866
25,866

20 Years
Service

$ 82,184
127,134
172,134
217,134
262,134
307,134

80 Years
Service

$ 82,134
127,134
172,134
217,134
262,184

'307,184

40 Years
Service

$ 82,134
127,134
172,134
217,134
262,134
307,134

45 Years
Service

$ 94,770
127,134
172,134
217,134
262,134
307,134

*Subject to five-year average annual salary.

b

The credited years ofservice under the Basic Plan and
the SERP for the individuals listed in the Summary Com-
pensation Table are Mr. Davis, 7 years; Mr. Budney, 2 years;
Mr. Sylvia, 6 years; Mr. Powers, 33 years; Ms. Kerr, 23 years.

The Basic Plan, a noncontributory, tax-qualified
defined benefit plan, provides all employees of the Cor-
poration with a minimum retirement benefit related
to the highest consecutive five-year average compensa-
tion. Compensation covered by the Basic Flan includes
only the participant's base salary or pay, subject to the
maximum annual limitnoted above. Directors who are
not employees are not eligible to participate.

The SERP is a nonqualified, noncontributory de-
fined benefit plan providing additional benefits to cer-
tain officers of the Corporation upon retirement after
age 55 who have 20 or more years ofemployment. The
Committee may grant exceptions to these requirements.
The SERP provides for payment monthly ofan amount
equal to the greater of (i) 60% ofmonthly base salary
averaged over the final 36 months ofemployment, less

benefits payable under the Basic Plan, retirement ben-
efits accrued during previous employment and one-half
of the maximum Social Security benefit to which the
participant may be entitled at the time of retirement,
or (ii) benefits payable under the Basic Plan without
regard to the annual benefit limitations imposed by the
Internal Revenue Code. Participants in the SERP may

elect to receive their benefit in a lump sum payment
provided certain established criteria are met.

EmPloyee Agreements

The Corporation entered into employment agree-
ments with Messrs. Davis, Budney, Sylvia and Powers
and Ms. Kerr, effective as ofDecember 20, 1996, which
superseded their prior agreements with the Corpora-
tion. The agreements have a three-year term, and, un-
less either party gives 60 days prior notice to the
contrary, the agreements are extended at the end of
each year foran additional year. In the event ofa change
in control (as defined in the agreement), the agree-
ment will remain in effect for a period of at least 36
months thereafter unless a notice not to extend the term
of the agreement was given at least 18 months prior to
the change in control. The agreements provide that
the executive willreceive a base salary at the executive'~
current annual salary or such greater amount deter-
mined by the Corporation and that the executive will
be able to participate in the Corporation's incentive
compensation plans according to their terms. In addi-
tion, the executive is entitled to business expense reim-
bursement, vacation, sick leave, perquisites, fringe
benefits, insurance coverage and other terms and con-
ditions of the agreement as are provided to emp es

ofthe Corporation with comparable rank and se



The employment agreements also provide that the
executive's benefits under the SERP will be based on
the executive's salary, annual incentive awards and SIP

as applicable. Further, ifthe executive's employ-
terminatcd by the Corporation without cause

(sv ether prior to or after a change in control), or by
'the executive for good reason after a change in con-

trol, or after completing eightyears ofservice, the agrcc-
. ments provide that the executive willbe deemed fully
gested under such plan without reduction forearly com-
mencement. Ifthe executive is under age 55 at the time
ofsuch termination, the executive willbe entitled to a
fullyvested benefit under the SERP upon attaining age
55, without reduction for early commencement.

The agreements restrict under certain circum-
stances prior to a change in control the executive's
ability to compete with the Corporation'and to use
confidential information concerning the" Corporation.
In the event ofa dispute over an executive's rights un-
der the executive's agreement following a change in
control of the Corporation, the Corporation will pay
the executive's reasonable legal fees with respect to the
dispute unless the executive's claims are found to be
frivolous.

Ifthe executive's employment is terminated by the
Co oration without cause prior to a change in control
( mcd in the agreement), the cxccutive will be
e to a lump sum severance benefit in an amount
equa to two times the executive's base salary plus an
amount equal to two times the greater of the executive's

$ i) most recent annual incentive award or (ii) average
annual incentive award paid over the previous three
years (a portion of the value of the SIP awards to the
executive will be treated as incentive awards for 1996
and 1997 for this purpose). In addition, the executive
will receive a ~g r~ portion of the incentive award
which would have been payable to the executive for
the fiscal year in which termination of employment oc-
curs provided that the executive has been employed for
180 days in such fiscal year. In the event ofsuch termina-
tion of employment, the executive willalso be entitled
to continued participation in the Corporation's employee
benefit plans for two years, coverage for the balance of
the,executive's life under a life insurance policy provid-
ing a death benefit equal to 2.5 times the executive's base

salary at termination and payment by the Corporation
offees and expenses or any executive recruiting or place-
ment firm in seeking new employment.

IF, following a change in control, the executive's
employment is terminated by the Corporation without
c r by the executive for good reason (as defined
i greement), the executive will be entitled to a

lump sum severance benefit equal to four times the
executive's base salary. The executive will also be en-
titled to the additional benefits referred to in the last
sentence of the preceding paragraph, except that em-
ployee benefit plan coverage for medical, prescription

, drug, dental and hospitalization benefits willcontinue
for the remainder of the executive's life with all premi-
ums therefor paid by the Corporation and coverage
under other employee benefit plans will continue for
four years. In the event that the payments to the execu-
tive upon termination of employment following a

change in control would subject the executive to the
excise tax on excess parachute payments under the In-
ternal Revenue Code, the Corporation will reimburse
the executive for such excise tax (and the income tax
and excise tax on such reimbursement).

In November 1994, the Corporation entered into a
supplemental agreement with Mr. Powers in'xchange
for his foregoing retirement under thc Corporation's
Voluntary Employee Reduction Program and continu-
ing employment with the Corporation until
December 31, 1996. This agreement was modified by
an agreement between Mr. Powers and the Corpora-
tion entered into'in October 1996 in exchange for his
foregoing retirement on December 31, 1996, and con-
tinuing employment with the Corporation for up to
twelve additional months. Under thc agreements, Mr.
Powers became entitled to a lump sum payment follow-
ing the successful closing of the sale ofHYDRACO En-
terprises, Inc., and to a severance allowance equal to
one-half ofhis annual salary in effect on December 31,
1996, which was paid to him inJanuary 1997. The agree-
ments also provide that Mr. Powers would be entitled
to (i) a SIP award of7,500 stock units and 9,500 SARs,
which would be fullyvested (assuming retirement dur-
ing 1997) and payable (in the case of stock units) or
exercisable (in the case ofSARs) on December 31, 1997,
(ii) long-term incentive grants equivalent to those pro-
vided to other senior vice presidents for the 1996-1998
and 1997-1999 cycles (prorated for his period of ser-
vice during those cycles), (iii)a lump sum payment for
unused vacation for 1995, 1996 and 1997 upon retire-
ment and (iv) "grandfathered" retiree medical cover-
ages in effect on December 31, 1996. Under the
agreements Mr. Powers also is entitled to a benefit un-
der the Corporation's SERP no less than his benefit
calculated as of November 1994, and to have the fees
he received as a member of the board of directors of
Opinac Energy Corporation (or would have received
in the event that such fees are eliminated) taken into
account in calculating his benefit under this plan
period. InJanuary 1997, the Committee agreed that if



Mr. Powers elected to receive a lump sum payment of
his benefit under the SERP, itwould be based on a dis-
count rate no higher than the applicable discount rate
in effect under the plan on December 31, 1996.

Com ensation ofDirectors

Directors who are not employees of the Corpora-
tion receive an annual retainer of $20,000 and $ 1,000
per Board meeting attended. Directors who are not
employees and who chair any of the standing Board
Committees receive an additional annual fee of$3,000
and those who serve on any ofthe standing Board Com-
mittees, including the chair, receive $850 per Commit-
tee meeting attended. The Corporation also reimburses
its directors for travel, lodging and related expenses they
incur in attending Board and Committee meetings.

The Corporation had an unfunded, nonqualified
retirement plan for directors who have not been em-
ployees of the Corporation. Under the plan, a director
retiring at age 65 or older after ten years ofservice as a
director was entitled to an annual benefit equal to such
director's annual retainer, including Chairperson's fee
ifapplicable, at the time of retirement. Ifa director of
such age retired after serving less than ten years, but
more than five years, such director would receive a
pro-rated benefit based on years of service. Ifa direc-
tor served on the Board less than five years or left be-
fore reaching age 65, no benefit was available.

On December 2, 1996, the retirement plan for out-
side directors was terminated by the Board of Direc-
tors, effective December 31, 1995. In its place, the Board
of Directors adopted the Outside Director Deferred
Stock Unit Plan, under. which outside directors age 60
and older were given the alternative to: (1) continue to
receive plan benefits, based on the current retainer of
$20,000 ($23,000 for Committee Chairs), upon their
retirement in accordance with the terms of the plan as

described above; (2) have the present value of their
accrued plan benefits, as of December 31, 1995, con-
verted into deferred stock units based on the
Corporation's closing stock price of $8.75 on Decem-
ber 2, 1996; or (3) receive payment of half their cur-
rent retirement plan benefitand to have half the present
value of their accrued retirement benefit as of,Decem-

ber 31, 1995, converted into deferred stock units at a
price of$8.75/share. The present value ofaccrued re-
tirement benefits as of December 31, 1995, was con-
verted into deferred stock units at a price of $8 r
outside directors who were under age 60...

Deferred Stock Units ("DSUs"), administered iq,
accordance with the terms of the Outside Director De'-

ferred Stock Unit Plan adopted by the Board ofDirec-
tors on December 2, 1996, would be paid when a person:
ceases to be an outside director, either in a lump suns

or in five equal annual installments. The first DSU in-
stallment paymen't would be made shortly after the
director's service ends and the other installments would
be paid on the first through fourth anniversaries ofsuch
date, based on the prevailing stock price at that time.

DSUs willbe credited with respect to any dividen'ds
paid during the term of their deferral. Such dividend
credits would be reinvested into DSUs of equivalent
current'value based on tlie prevailing price of the
Corporation's comm'on stock at that time.

Commencing in 1996, and annually thereafter, each
outside director will be credited with DSUs equal in
value to 50% of the prevailing year's annual retainer
(60% for Committee Chairs). Accordingly, all outside
directors were credited with 1,143 DSUs (1,371 for
Committee Chairs) based on a closing stock p of
$8.75 on December 2, 1996, the date the Board,a
the Outside Director Deferred Stock Unit Plai . ie
beneficial stock ownership table on page II-7, shows the
DSUs which have been credited to each of the outside
directors under this plan as of March 6, 1997.

The Corporation provides certain health and life
insurance benefits to directors who are'not employees
of the Corporation. During 1996, the following direc-
tors received the indicated benefits under the forego-
ing arrangements: Mr. Allyn ($6,043), Mr. Burkhardt
($3,887), Mr. Costle ($3,684), Mr.'dmund Davis
($5,568), Mr. Donlon ($250), Dr. Hill ($432), Mr.
Panasci ($ 182), Dr. Peterson ($3,305), Mr. Riefler
($6,313) and Mr.Wick ($5,848). Mr. Burkhardt received
a consulting fee of$ 18,000 during 1996. EffectiveJanu-
ary 1997, each outside director covered'nder the
Co'rporation's health care plans willcontribute 20 per
cent of the monthly costs associated with these plans. t



Shareholder I'r osals

P OSAL 2 I

e Benedictine Sisters, 3120 W. Ashby, San Anto-
.nio, Texas 78228, who own 205 shares of the
Corporation's common stock have advised the Corpo-
ration that they intend'o present the following pro-

'posal at the 1997Annual Meeting ofShareholders. The
proposed resolution and supporting statement are as
follows:

"WHEREAS WE BELIEVE:Responsible implemen-
tation of a sound, credible environmental policy in-
creases long-term shareholder value by raising
eAiciency, decreasing clean-up costs, reducing litigation,
and enhancing public image and product attractiveness;

Adherence to public standards for environmental
performance gives a company greater public credibil-
ity than standards created by industry alone. For maxi-
mum credibilityand usefulness, such standards should
specifically meet the concerns of investors and other
stakeholders;

Companies are increasingly being expected by in-
vestors to do meaningful, regular, comprehensive and
im rtial environmental reports. Standardized environ-

reports enable investors to compare perfor-
over time. They also attract investment from

investors seeking companies which are environmentally
responsible and which minimize risk ofenvironmental
liability.

WHEREAS: The Coalition for Environmentally Re-
sponsible Economies (CERES) - which includes share-
holders of this Company; public interest representatives,
and environmental experts - consulted with corpora-
tions to produce the CERES Principles as comprehen-
sive public standards for both environmental
performance and reporting. Fifty-four companies, in-
cluding Sun (Sunoco), General Motors, H.B. Fuller,
Polaroid, and Bethlehem Steel, have endorsed these
principles to demonstrate their commitment to public

'nvironmental accountability. Fortune-500 endorsers
'ay that benefits ofworkingwith CERES are public cred-

ibility; 'value-added'or the company's environmental
'nitiatives;

f

In endorsing the CERES Principles, a company com-
mits to work toward:

1. Protection of the biosphere
2. Sustainable natural resource use
3. Waste reduction and disposal
4. Energy conservation
5. Risk reduction
6. Safe products 8t: services
7. Environmental restoration
8. Informing the public
9. Management"commitment

10. Audits and reports
(Full text of the CERES Principles and accompany-

ing CERES Report Form, obtainable from CERES, 711
AtlanticAvenue, Boston MA02110, tel: 617/4514927).

CERES is distinguished from other initiatives for
corporate environmental responsibility, in being (1) a
successful model ofshareholder relations; (2) a leader
in public accountability through standardized environ-
mental reporting; and (3) a catalyst for significant and
measurable environmental improvement within firms.

RESOLVED: Shareholders request the Company to
endorse the CERES Principles as a part ofits commitment
to be publiclyaccountable for its environmental impact."

Statement ofShareholders

"Many investors support this resolution. Those spon-
soring similar resolutions at various companies hav'e
portfolios totaling $75 billion. The number of public
pension funds and foundations supporting this resolu-
tion increases every year. The objectives are: standards
for environmental performance and disclosure; meth-
ods for measuring progress toward these goals; and a
format for public reporting ofprogress. We believe this
is comparable to the European Community regulation
for voluntary participation in verified and publicly-re-
ported eco-management and auditing, and fullycom-
patible with ISO 14000 certification.

Your vote FOR this resolution willencourage scru-
tiny of our Company's environmental policies and re-
ports and adherence to standards upheld by
management and stakeholders alike."



Board ofDirectors'Response to the Shareholder
ProPosal

,In 1991, the Corporation adopted a Corporate
Policy on Protection of the Environment ~yhich articu-
lates the Corporation's proactive approach toward en-
vironmental issues. The environmental policy takes the
Corporation beyond mere compliance with the law. In
addition, its comprehensive environmental manage-
ment system has helped the Corporation stay, in thc
forefront of progress toward an environmentally sus-

tainable energy future.
The Corporation carefully reviewed the CERES Prin-

ciples and does not believe that endorsement ofa set of
broad-based principles, in addition to the Corporation's
environmental policy and programs, would help the
Corporation be'tter fulfillits continuing commitment to
environmental excellence. The Corporation believes that
its environmental program provides the most specific and
focused approach to ensure that the'Corporation is in
compliance with all applicable environmental regulations
and to position itself as a recognized leader for its envi-
ronmental achievements.

Therefore, the Board ofDirectors recommends that
you vote AGAINSTthis proposal.

PROPOSAL 3

Edward S. George, 89 Corning Hill,Glenmont, New
York 12077, who owns 5,000 shares of the Corporation's
Common„Stock, has advised the Corporation that he
intends to present the following proposal at the 1997
Annual Meeting ofShareholders:

"Whereas the dividend is tile first casualty in any
economic, downturn and the stockholder is. the first
casualty, and„,thc last to benefit from an upturn, be it

Resolved: That when a dividend is cut, it is recom-
mended that, with respect to future contract obligations,
no salaries willbe increased or any stock options allowed
to executives or directors until the dividend is restored
to its original amount before thc,cut." N

Statement ofShareholder

"The bullet must be large enough to enable the
executives and directors as well as the stockholders to
get their teeth on

it.'he

administration willmaintain that the increases in
salary and stock options are necessary to attract and hold
good people. This cliche'elongs with the one 'The check
is in the mail', the NewYorkState Legislature and certain
elected officials tojustifyan increase in their salaries, and
'I'm from the government and I'm here to help.'"

Board ofDirectors'Response to the Shareholder
Proposal

The suspension ofdividend payments on the
mon stock was taken to help stabilize the Corpor
financial condition and provide flexibilityas th
poration addresses growing pressure from mandate&
power purchases and weaker sales. While we recognize
the unfavorable effect it has had on our shareholder's,
the Corporation believes that the shareholders'ong-
term financial interests would not be served by basing
compensation decisions on dividend payment levels.

The Corporation'and the Compensation and Suc-
cession Committee ofthe Board ofDirectors have made
decisions regarding the compensation of officer and
other employees which we'believe are appropriate to the
circumstances the Corporation faces. The Compensation
and Succession Committee's Report„on Executive Com-
pensation, which appears earlier in this Proxy Statement,
describes the decisions that, have been. made regarding
the structure and administration of the officer compen-
sation program, including a freeze on salary increases
during 1996 and 1997. These decisions willensure the
Corporation's ability to maintain a group of qualified
officer, in an increasingly competitive industry, and will
directly relate the payinent of'a significant'component
of their total compensation to the future value ur
stock and our shareholders'nvestment. Adopt a
rigid, inflexible rule like that proposed by Dr. ~e

could harm'the stockholders by making retention of
qualified executives difficult,ifnot impossible.

Therefore, the Board ofDirectors recommends that
you vote AGAINSTthis proposal.

Additional Information

The directors and officers of the Corporation and
its subsidiaries ar'e insured 'against obligations which may
be incurred as a result of the Corporation's indemnifi-
cation of its directors and'officers. The coverage also
insures the directors and officers against liabilities for
which they may not be indemnified'by the Corpora-
tion or its subsidiaries, except a dishonest act or brcachr
oftrust. The insurance was purchased from the National
Union Fire Insurance Company, Associated Electric 8."

Gas Insurance Services, Ltd.,Aetna Casualtyand Surety
Company, Federal Insurance Company, CNAInsurance
Company and ACE Insurance Company, Ltd. for the
term fromJanuary 31, 1997 to January 30, 199 an
aggregate premium of $1,829,45L



Ind endent Accountants

e Corporation has selected the independent ac-
ig firmofPrice Waterhouse LLP to examine the

fi ial statements of the Corporation and its subsid-
eiaries for the year ended December 31, 1997. Repre-
sentatives of Price Waterhouse LLP will be present at

.the meeting with the opportunity to make a statement
ei[ they desire to do so and willbe available to respond

to appropriate questions.

Expenses incurred in connection with this solicita-
tion willbe borne by the Corporation. The firmofD. F.

King 8c Co., Inc. has been engaged to aid in the solici-
tation ofproxies for a fee of$ 10,500. Directors, oIIicers
or employees of the Corporation may solicit proxies in
person, by telephone, or by mail, but without extra com-
pensation. Upon request, brokerage houses or other
nominees or fiduciaries willbe reimbursed by the Cor-
poration for the expense offorwarding proxy material
to beneficial owners of stock.

Quarterly orts

Shareholders who are ~Lrrt~j'quarterly reports
di . tl t r 'nd who would like to re-
ceive the Corporation's quarterly reports may write to
Investor Relations, Niagara Mohawk Power Corpora-
tion, 300 Erie Boulevard West, Building C 3, Syracuse,
New York 13202-7904 to be included on the
Corporation's mailing list.

Other Business

Management does not know ofany matters ofbusi-
ne ther than the foregoing to be presented at the

Meeting. However, ifother matters are prop-
e ought before the meeting or any adjournment
thereof, the proxies willbe voted accordingly to the best
judgment of the persons authorized thereby.

Shareholder Proposals For 1998
Annual Meetin

Proposals ofshareholders intended to be presented
at the 1998 Annual Meeting must be received by the
Corporation on or before December 2, 1997, to be con-
sidered for inclusion in the Corporation's Proxy State-
ment and Form ofProxy relating to that meeting.

By Order of the Board'of Directors

Kap ia A. Rice
Secretary

Dated: April7, 1997
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